
YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONYOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Regular MeetingRegular Meeting
AGENDAAGENDA

February 27, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. February 27, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS

625 COURT STREET, ROOM 206
WOODLAND, CA 95695

COMMISSIONERS COMMISSIONERS 
BILL BIASI, CHAIR (City Member)

GLORIA PARTIDA, VICE CHAIR (City Member)
LUCAS FRERICHS (County Member)

PAMELA MILLER (Public Member)
OSCAR VILLEGAS (County Member)

ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERSALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS
SHEILA ALLEN (COUNTY MEMBER)

TANIA GARCIA-CADENA (CITY MEMBER)
ERIK VINK (PUBLIC MEMBER)

CHRISTINE CRAWFORD
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ERIC MAY
COMMISSION COUNSEL

Meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) are held in person in the Board of 
Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Suite 206, Woodland, CA. LAFCo will, to the best of its 
ability, provide hybrid and remote options for LAFCo meeting participants and to the public; however, LAFCo 
cannot guarantee these options will be available due to technical limitations outside our control. For 
assurance of public comment, LAFCo encourages in-person and written public comments to be submitted. 
The Zoom link / phone number and instructions for participating in the meeting through Zoom are set forth in 
the "Public Participation Instructions" on the final page of this agenda.

NNOOTTIICCEE::
This agenda has been posted at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting in a location freely 
accessible to members of the public, in accordance with the Brown Act and the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act. The public may subscribe to receive emailed agendas, notices and other updates by 
contacting staff at lafco@yolocounty.org.

All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission. If you challenge a 
LAFCo action in court, you may be limited to issues raised at the public hearing or submitted as 
written comments prior to the close of the public hearing. If you wish to submit written material at the 
hearing, please supply 8 copies.

FFPPPPCC  --  NNoottiiccee  ttoo  AAllll  PPaarrttiieess  aanndd  PPaarrttiicciippaannttss  iinn  LLAAFFCCoo  PPrroocceeeeddiinnggss
All parties and participants on a matter to be heard by the Commission that have made campaign 
contributions totaling more than $500 to any Commissioner in the past 12 months must disclose this 
fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record as required by Government Code Section 84308.

Contributions and expenditures for political purposes related to any proposal or proceedings before 
LAFCo are subject to the reporting requirements of the Political Reform Act and the regulations of the 
Fair Political Practices Commission, and must be disclosed to the Commission prior to the hearing on 
the matter.

1

mailto:lafco@yolocounty.org


PL EASE NOT EPL EASE NOT E  - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience of reference.
Items may be taken out of order upon request of the Chair or Commission members.

CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment: This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on subjects
relating to LAFCo purview but not relative to items on this Agenda. The Commission reserves the right to
impose a reasonable time limit on any topic or on any individual speaker.

OATH OF OFFICEOATH OF OFFICE

4. Sheila Allen, County Member Alternate, and Erik Vink, Public Member Alternate

CONSENT AGENDACONSENT AGENDA

5. Approve the LAFCo Meeting minutes of October 31, 2024

6. Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 First Quarter Financial Update

7. Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 Second Quarter Financial Update.

8. Consider an update to the Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures to amend Section 2.5
(Political Contribution Disclosure) in compliance with SB-1243

9. Consider an amendment to the Yolo LAFCo Project Policies to add a new Section 3.4 requiring an
annexation agreement of property owners that receive out of area services

10. Consider authorizing the Chair to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement 2025-02
between Yolo LAFCo and Yolo County to share staffing services as needed

11. Consider authorizing the Chair to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement 2025-03 between Yolo
LAFCo and Yolo County Regarding Office Space and Administrative Services

12. Review and file the 2024 Yolo Local Government Website Transparency Scorecard

13. Correspondence

REGULAR AGENDAREGULAR AGENDA

14. Consider the Municipal Service Review (MSR)/Sphere of Influence (SOI) Initial Study for the City of
Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-03) and determine a comprehensive MSR/SOI Update is not needed for this five-
year review cycle per Government Code §56425(g)

15. Authorize the Chair to sign Agreement 2025-01 with RSG, Inc. not to exceed $19,700, to conduct an
independent fiscal analysis of the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD) Reorganization Proposal

16. Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to the Commission to serve one-year terms, beginning March 1, 2025, and
ending February 1, 2026

Agenda

2



EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORTEXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
 

17. A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update of staff
activity for the month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request that action be taken
on any item listed.  

     a.  CALAFCO Update 

     b.  CALAFCO Legislative Summary 

     c.  Long Range Planning Calendar

 

 

COMMISSIONER REPORTSCOMMISSIONER REPORTS
 

18. Action items and reports from members of the Commission, including announcements, questions to be
referred to staff, future agenda items, and reports on meetings and information which would be of interest to
the Commission or the public.

 

 

ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT
 

19. Adjourn to the next Regular LAFCo Meeting  
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted by 5:00 p.m. Friday, February 21,
2025, at the following places:
 

On the bulletin board outside the east entrance of the Erwin W. Meier County Administration Building,
625 Court Street, Woodland, CA;
 
On the bulletin board outside the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 Court Street, Room 206,
Woodland, CA: and,
 
On the LAFCo website at: www.yololafco.org.

ATTEST:
Terri Tuck, Clerk

Yolo LAFCO

A.D.A. NOTICEA.D.A. NOTICE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules
and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format should contact
the Commission Clerk for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who requires a
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting
should contact the Commission Clerk as soon as possible and at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The
Commission Clerk may be reached at 530-666-8048 or at the following address: Yolo LAFCo, 625 Court
Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA 95695. 
 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:
Meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) are held in person in the Board of
Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Room 206, Woodland, CA. If you cannot attend the
LAFCo meeting in person but desire to follow the meeting remotely, make a public comment, or comment on
a specific item on the agenda, you may do so by:

Joining through Zoom on your computer at  https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/88179429444, or participate by
phone by calling 1-408-638-0968, Webinar ID: 881 7942 9444. Please note there is no participant code,
you will just hit # again after the recording prompts you.
 
If you are joining the meeting via Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, press the "raise a
hand" button. If you are joining the meeting by phone, press *9 to indicate a desire to make comment.

3

http://www.yololafco.org
https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/88179429444


The moderator will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to comment. Press *6 to
unmute. The Commission reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit on time afforded to any topic
or to any individual speaker.
 
If you wish to submit a written comment on a specific agenda item or on an item not on the agenda,
please email the Commission Clerk at lafco@yolocounty.org or send to 625 Court Street, Suite 107,
Woodland, CA 95695. Please include meeting date and item number. Please submit your comment by
2:00pm the day prior to the meeting, if possible, to provide the Commission a reasonable opportunity to
review your comment in advance of the meeting. All written comments are distributed to the
Commission, filed into the record, but will not be read aloud.
 

Please note that LAFCo cannot guarantee that hybrid and remote options will be available due to technical
limitations outside our control. For assurance of public comment, LAFCo encourages in-person or written
public comments to be submitted. 

 

4

mailto:lafco@yolocounty.org


  
  Consent    Consent    5. 5.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Approve the LAFCo Meeting minutes of October 31, 2024

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the LAFCo Meeting minutes of October 31, 2024.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT-Minutes 10.31.24

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 02/18/2025 11:25 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/18/2025

5



6



DRAFT 

  

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
October 31, 2024 

The Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission met on the 31st day of October 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 
in the Yolo County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 Court Street, Room 206, Woodland CA. 
Voting members present were Chair and City Members Bill Biasi and Gloria Partida, County 
Members Lucas Frerichs and Oscar Villegas, and Public Member Pamela Miller. Alternate 
Members absent were Public Member Richard DeLiberty, City Member Tania Garcia-Cadena, 
and County Member Jim Provenza. Others present were Executive Officer Christine Crawford, 
Clerk Terri Tuck, and Counsel Eric May. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Biasi called the Meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. 

Item № 1 Pledge 

Commissioner Partida led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item № 2 Roll Call 

PRESENT: Miller, Partida, Villegas, Biasi  
ABSENT: Frerichs  

Item № 3 Public Comments 

There were no public comments.  

CONSENT 

Item № 4 Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of September 26, 2024 

Item № 5 Correspondence 

Minute Order 2024-44: The recommended actions on Consent were approved. 

MOTION: Miller SECOND: Villegas 
AYES: Miller, Villegas, Biasi 
ABSENT: Frerichs 
ABSTAIN: Partida 

Commissioner Frerichs arrived at the dais at 9:07 a.m. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Item № 6 Conducting Authority Protest Hearing Adopting Resolution 2024-12 for the 
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo 
No. 24-01) 

Item 5 
 

7



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes  October 31, 2024 
 

 

 2 

After staff summarized the Commission’s resolution from September 26, 2024, making 
determinations to approve the Reorganization subject to the protest process, the Chair 
opened the Public Hearing to receive any protests. There were no protests, and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

Minute Order 2024-45: After receiving no protests from landowners, the Commission, 
acting as the Conducting Authority for these proceedings, adopted Resolution 2024-12 
ordering the PIRMI area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo 
No. 24-01), subject to the findings and conditions of approval stated in the resolution. 

MOTION: Villegas SECOND: Miller 
AYES: Frerichs, Miller, Partida, Villegas, Biasi 
NOES: None 

REGULAR AGENDA 

Item № 7 Study session to discuss the reorganization plan for the Elkhorn Fire 
Protection District (no action will be taken) 

Minute Order 2024-46: The item was discussed. No action was taken. 

Item № 8 Consider and adopt the Yolo LAFCo 2025 Meeting Calendar 

Minute Order 2024-47: The Commission adopted the 2025 LAFCo Meeting Calendar. 

MOTION: Villegas SECOND: Partida 
AYES: Frerichs, Miller, Partida, Villegas, Biasi 
NOES: None 

Item № 9 Executive Officer’s Report 

The Commission was given written reports of the Executive Officer’s activities for the 
period of September 23 through October 25, 2024, and was verbally updated on recent 
events relevant to the Commission, including the Long Range Planning Calendar and 
Legislative Summary. 

Staff commented that recruitment is now open for the LAFCo Senior/Principal Planner 
position and will close on November 11, 2024. 

It was reported that Executive Officer Christine Crawford, Counsel Eric May, and 
Commissioners Biasi and Miller attended the CALAFCO Conference held at Tenaya 
Lodge in Yosemite. Staff noted that there were several interesting sessions, including 
topics such as environmental justice, succession planning, and private water systems. 

Staff indicated that the December 5th meeting would most likely be cancelled, barring any 
unforeseen matters that may come up. To that effect, the Commission will be officially 
notified of the cancellation mid-November. 

Item № 10 Commissioner Reports 

Commissioner Miller commented on her attendance at the CALAFCO Conference, stating 
that she also enjoyed the session on environmental justice and the concept of municipal 

8



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes  October 31, 2024 
 

 

 3 

fairness, which inspired her to start asking questions. She noted there is a determination 
on disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs) in our MSRs and that definition of 
a DUC is different than the definition in government code and particularly in LAFCo code 
on environmental justice. She suggested looking at things from both definitions when 
doing MSRs, not only the definition of a DUC and the determinations that we do there but 
also the environmental justice and municipal fairness component. Commissioner Miller 
mentioned she asked questions of staff regarding any policies Yolo LAFCo may have 
around environmental justice and including it as a potential topic of discussion when YED 
Talks are resurrected.    

Commissioner Biasi commented that it was his first time attending the CALAFCO 
Conference and thought that it was very informative. Biasi stated that he attended the 
LAFCo 101, the environmental justice session, and the succession planning. He enjoyed 
meeting others who have very similar issues at Yolo LAFCo, including fire protection 
districts.   

Commissioner Partida thanked staff for coming out to El Macero and attending the county 
service area (CSA) meeting. Partida believes that meeting was an example of why its 
important to promote LAFCo so that others understand what the role of LAFCo is and the 
importance of what LAFCo does. 

Commissioner Villegas asked in terms of MSRs, with regards to environmental justice, 
about public engagement during the MSRs of special districts. Villegas asked if the public 
is aware that these DUCs exist and, if there are questions to be asked regarding DUCs, 
should that be done during the MSR process. 

Staff stated that there are seven mandated determinations for MSRs in state law. By 
policy, the Commission can add other determinations to inform the MSR process, as was 
done with broadband, for example. Staff can put forth a policy to the Commission to 
expand how we may want to go beyond DUCs and talk more about environmental justice 
and what can be done. Regarding public outreach, staff believes a better job can be done 
with outreach but struggles with how to reach people. Staff can do more through social 
media and town hall meetings as another way to reach out during the MSR process. Staff 
is open to more suggestions on getting increased participation from the public.  

Commissioner Partida asked how this would overlap with the County’s Climate Action 
Plan. Partida mentioned focus groups going on and County staff working in the 
unincorporated areas. If there is overlap, could staff piggyback onto that by getting 
information out and collect feedback in those areas. 

Staff agreed it is a good idea and could reach out to County Planning. Staff believes there 
is some overlap but LAFCo staff is not integrated into that process. 

Commissioner Biasi added that one of the goals talked about during the Governance 
Session in February was more outreach to the cities by going to a council meeting or visit 
a community within the County to let them know what services are being provided. 

9



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes  October 31, 2024 
 

 

 4 

Item № 11 Adjournment 
 

Minute Order 2024-48: By order of the Chair, the meeting was adjourned at 9:57 a.m. to 
the next regular meeting. 
 
 
  

____________________________ 
Bill Biasi, Chair 

ATTEST:      Local Agency Formation Commission  
        County of Yolo, State of California 
________________________________ 
Terri Tuck 
Clerk to the Commission 

10



  
  Consent    Consent    6. 6.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 First Quarter Financial Update

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 First Quarter Financial Update

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The intent of the quarterly financial report is to provide the Commission with an update on how LAFCo performed
financially in the previous quarter as compared to the adopted budget and to discuss any issues as appropriate. The
practice was recommended during a previous audit as an additional safeguard to ensure sound financial
management, given the small size of the LAFCo staff. In accordance with LAFCo Administrative Policies and
Procedures, the Commission adopts the final budget and is authorized to make adjustments as appropriate.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The LAFCo FY 2024/25 budget was adopted on May 23, 2024. During the first quarter, LAFCo is on track for both
revenue and expenditure.  

REVENUEREVENUE 
At the end of the first quarter of FY 2024/25, LAFCo had received $560,485 (82.9%) of its expected revenue of
$675,962. Fund balance has been used to balance most of the remainder of the budget (16.5%). LAFCo's most
significant revenue source comes from local government agency payments. By the close of the first quarter, LAFCo
had received 99.3% of its funds from the agencies. Additional revenue not anticipated in the budget and received
during the first quarter included $8,250 for review of the City of Woodland annexations. Other minimal revenue not
yet received includes investment earnings. 

EXPENDITUREEXPENDITURE 
LAFCo total expenditures during the first quarter of FY 2024/25 were $109,254 (18.73%) of the annual budgeted
costs of $675,962. LAFCo expended $94,347 (16.68%) under Salaries and Benefits and $14,907 (17.45%) under
Services and Supplies. 

Regarding Salaries and Benefits accounts, in-lieu health insurance payments are being charged to Health Insurance
(account 501130) while funding was allocated to Other Employee Benefits (account 501190) per County budget
instructions. So the Health Insurance account appears over budget. However, the funds are there in a different
account. Therefore, LAFCo remains on track for the Salaries and Benefits category overall. Staff will schedule an
item later this fiscal year to approve a budget adjustment.  

LAFCo expended $14,907.31 (17.45%) of its Services and Supplies allocation of $85,421. Insurance - Public
Liability (510051) has exceeded its budget due to an unanticipated supplemental fee from YCPARMIA (Yolo County
Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority, our local risk management pool), which passed along higher
premiums from the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority to recover several years when claims were
paid for other agencies that exceeded what the premiums covered. 

BUDGET REPORTSBUDGET REPORTS  
The Budget Status Summary (Attachment A) is an easy-to-read summary of the budget. The General Ledger
Report (Attachment B) shows a running balance of all transactions, including both revenue and expenditure
amounts.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-FY24-25 Q1 Budget Status Summary

11



ATT B-FY24-25 Q1 Transactions
Form ReviewForm Review

InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford 02/19/2025 02:51 PM
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 02/20/2025 11:35 AM
Form Started By: JD Trebec Started On: 02/12/2025 02:28 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025

12



LAFCO BUDGET - 1st QUARTER BUDGET STATUS SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2024/25

Account Name 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year FY 24/25 %

Account # Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter to Date Budget Budget

REVENUES

403100 INVESTMENT EARNINGS-POOL $0.00 3,000$     0.00%

430020 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-COUNTY $276,117.00 $276,117.00 276,117$     100%

430023 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WEST SACRAMENTO $96,415.00 $96,415.00 96,415$     100%

430025 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WOODLAND $85,695.00 $85,695.00 85,695$     100%

430027 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WINTERS $8,987.00 $8,987.00 8,987$     100%

430029 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-DAVIS $85,021.00 $85,021.00 85,021$     100%

440520 OTH CHRG FR SVC-LAFCO FEES $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $0 0.00%

470999 USE FUND BALANCE AVAILABLE-BUDGET ONLY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 110,727$    120,727$     

TOTAL AGENCY COST 552,235$     

TOTAL OTHER LISTED SOURCES 123,727$     

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES $560,485.00 -$     -$     -$     671,212$    675,962$     99.30%

Item 6-ATT A

13



LAFCO BUDGET - 1st QUARTER BUDGET STATUS SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2024/25

1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year FY 24/25 %

Account # Account Name Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter to Date Budget Budget

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

500100 REGULAR EMPLOYEES $57,204.04 $57,204.04 $325,388 17.58%

500110 EXTRA HELP $236.25 $236.25 $20,840.00 0.00%

501100 RETIREMENT (CALPERS) $18,636.20 $18,636.20 $116,072 16.06%

501110 SOCIAL SECURITY TAX (OASDI) $3,834.27 $3,834.27 $21,099 18.17%

501120 MEDICARE $896.72 $896.72 $5,492 16.33%

501130 HEALTH INSURANCE (Life Ins/EAP/in-lieu) $1,149.90 $1,149.90 $150.00 766.60%

501150 OPEB - RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE $3,936.00 $3,936.00 $22,451 17.53%

501170 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE $0.00 $185 0.00%

501180 WORKERS' COMP INSURANCE $500.00 $500.00 $500 100.00%

501190 OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $7,953.28 $7,953.28 $53,364 14.90%

     TOTAL SALARY & BENEFITS $94,346.66 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $94,346.66 565,541$           16.68%

SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

510025 COMMUNICATIONS - INTERNAL CHARGE $484.00 $484.00 $1,934 25.03%

510051 INSURANCE-PUBLIC LIABILITY $609.00 $609.00 $500 121.80%

510030 FOOD $0.00 $0 0.00%

510070 MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT $84.35 $84.35 $500 16.87%

510071 MAINTENANCE-BLDG IMPROVEMENT $0.00 $250 0.00%

510090 MEMBERSHIPS $4,756.00 $4,756.00 $6,900 68.93%

510110 OFFICE EXPENSE $317.33 $317.33 $750 42.31%

510111 OFFICE EXP-POSTAGE $312.00 $312.00 $500 62.40%

510120 IT SERVICE-DEPARTMENT SYSTEM MAINTENANCE $0.00 $2,500 0.00%

510121 IT SERVICES-ERP (Enterprise/Resource/Planning) $1,245.00 $1,245.00 $4,980 25.00%

510122 IT SERVICES-CONNECTIVITY $974.00 $974.00 $3,897 24.99%

510160 PUBLICATIONS AND LEGAL NOTICES $516.37 $516.37 $1,000 51.64%

510170 RENTS AND LEASES - EQUIPMENT $16.67 $16.67 $100 16.67%

510173 RENTS INTERNAL CHARGE (Records Storage-Archives) $0.00 $1,714 0.00%

510180 TRAINING $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $4,000 70.00%

510190 MINOR EQUIPMENT (Computers) $0.00 $0 0.00%

510200 TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL $971.59 $971.59 $6,000 16.19%

510251 PROF & SPEC SVC‐AUDITING & ACCOUNTING $0.00 $15,000 0.00%

510252 PROF & SPEC SVC‐INFO TECH SERVICES $1,821.00 $1,821.00 $10,000 18.21%

510256 PROF & SPEC SVC‐LEGAL SERVICES $0.00 $12,000 0.00%

510275 PROF & SPEC SVC‐OTHER $0.00 $10,000 0.00%

540500-3005 TRANSFER OUT (Trane debt-water,sewer,HVAC) $0.00 $2,896 0.00%

     TOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES $14,907.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,907.31 85,421$             17.45%

OTHER CHARGES

526601 PAYMENTS TO OTHER GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS $0.00 $0 0.00%

     TOTAL OTHER CHARGES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 0.00%

OTHER FINANCING USES

590100 APPROP FOR CONTINGENCY $0.00 $25,000 0.00%

590999 CONTRIBUTIONS TO FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0 0.00%

     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,907.31 25,000$             59.63%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $109,253.97 -$               -$               -$               124,161$        675,962$           18.37%

14



PostingDate ClosePeriod Account Description Amount Event Code
Account 
Totals

ACCOUNT 403100     INVESTMENT EARNINGS ‐ POOL
10/01/2024 October 2025 403100 Q1 INTEREST APPORTIONMENT ‐5409.76 JE
10/01/2024 October 2025 403100 Q1 INTEREST APPORTIONMENT FEE 89.78 JE ‐$5,319.98
ACCOUNT 440520     OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES ‐ LAFCO FEE
11/25/2024 November 2025 440520 Final Payment‐LAF#24‐01 PIRMI/Sports Park Reorg to W ‐8741.01 CL
11/05/2024 November 2025 440520 16949 ‐ CA DEPT OF TAX AND FEE ADMIN 2700.00 AD ‐$6,041.01
ACCOUNT 500100     REGULAR EMPLOYEES
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9562.42 PW
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 ‐259.03 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 5463.43 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 328.20 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 955.74 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 902.55 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 1912.48 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 ‐259.03 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 7375.42 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 1230.75 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 956.24 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 ‐259.03 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 8502.34 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 937.00 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 123.08 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 ‐259.03 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9524.92 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 37.48 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 ‐259.03 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9349.17 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 82.05 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 93.70 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 37.48 PW

Item 6-ATT B

15



10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 ‐259.03 PW $57,899.39
ACCOUNT 500110     EXTRA HELP
12/20/2024 December 2025 500110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 765.00 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 450.00 PW $1,215.00
ACCOUNT 501100     RETIREMENT
12/20/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 3238.17 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
12/06/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 3238.17 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1 $18,852.00
ACCOUNT 501110     OASDI
12/20/2024 December 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 47.43 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 226.44 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501110 Summarized transaction 440.80 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 432.16 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 27.90 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 221.51 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 221.50 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 432.16 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 432.16 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 221.51 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 432.16 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 221.51 PD $3,357.24
ACCOUNT 501120     FICA / MEDICARE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 11.09 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501120 Summarized transaction 154.03 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501120 Summarized transaction 154.02 PD

16



11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 101.07 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 6.53 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 51.81 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 51.80 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 101.07 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 101.07 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 51.81 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 101.07 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 51.80 PD $937.17
ACCOUNT 501130     HEALTH INSURANCE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 233.25 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD $1,399.50
ACCOUNT 501150     OPEB ‐ RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501150 Summarized transaction 663.60 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501150 Summarized transaction 663.60 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 446.37 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 217.23 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 217.23 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 446.37 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 446.37 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 217.23 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 446.37 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 217.23 PD $3,981.60
ACCOUNT 501190     OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
12/20/2024 December 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1738.48 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1738.48 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW

17



10/11/2024 October 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW $9,929.92
ACCOUNT 510025     COMMUNICATIONS INTERNAL CHARGE
12/01/2024 December 2025 510025 Q2 IT TELECOM CHARGE FY24/25 484.00 JE
ACCOUNT 510051     INSURANCE ‐ PUBLIC LIABILITY
10/03/2024 October 2025 510070 16728 ‐ WIZIX TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC 132.43 AD
10/03/2024 October 2025 510070 16728 ‐ WIZIX TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC 3.71 AD $136.14
ACCOUNT 510071    MAINTENANCE ‐ BUILDING IMPROVEMENT
12/01/2024 December 2025 510071 FY24/25 TRANE DEBT LAFCO 2896.00 JE $2,896.00
ACCOUNT 510090     MEMBERSHIPS
10/21/2024 October 2025 510090 10312 ‐ CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DIST ASSN 1351.00 AD $1,351.00
ACCOUNT 510110     OFFICE EXPENSE
11/18/2024 November 2025 510110 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.99 AD
11/15/2024 November 2025 510110 10058 ‐ STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL 104.23 AD
11/13/2024 November 2025 510110 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 498.77 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510110 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 251.99 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510110 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.99 AD $866.97
ACCOUNT 510121     IT SERVICE ‐ ERP
12/01/2024 December 2025 510121 Q2 IT ERP CHARGE FY24/25 1245.00 JE $1,245.00
ACCOUNT 510122     IT SERVICE ‐ CONNECTIVITY
12/01/2024 December 2025 510122 Q2 IT CONNECTIVITY CHARGE FY24/25 974.00 JE $974.00
ACCOUNT 510160     PUBLICATIONS AND LEGAL NOTICES
10/21/2024 October 2025 510160 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 178.76 AD $178.76
ACCOUNT 510170     RENTS AND LEASES ‐ EQUIPMENT
11/18/2024 November 2025 510170 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.49 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510170 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.49 AD $10.98
ACCOUNT 510200     TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL
11/21/2024 November 2025 510200 29443 ‐ PAMELA MILLER 286.97 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 12674 ‐ CHRISTINE CRAWFORD 20.00 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 13136 ‐ ERIC MAY 370.71 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 29421 ‐ WILLIAM BIASI 434.44 AD
11/13/2024 November 2025 510200 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 1582.83 AD $2,694.95
ACCOUNT 510252     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ INFO TECH SERVICES
12/01/2024 December 2025 510252 GIS‐Elkhorn FPD Reorg LAF#24‐02 315.00 JE
11/01/2024 November 2025 510252 GIS‐Elkhorn FPD Time Analysis 210.00 JE $525.00
ACCOUNT 510256     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ LEGAL SERVICES
11/13/2024 November 2025 510256 15400 ‐ COLANTUONO HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY 562.50 AD $562.50
ACCOUNT 510275     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ OTHER
11/05/2024 November 2025 510275 15369 ‐ FRAME SURVEYING & MAPPING 945.00 AD $945.00

18



ACCOUNT 100000     CASH IN TREASURY
12/20/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16727.40 ZB
12/20/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
12/12/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐1351.00 ZB
12/06/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16118.21 ZB
12/06/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐974.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐1245.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐484.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐315.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐2896.00 ZB
11/27/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
11/27/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐286.97 ZB
11/25/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 8741.01 ZB
11/22/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16689.14 ZB
11/22/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
11/21/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐104.23 ZB
11/21/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐3469.25 ZB
11/08/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.70 ZB
11/08/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
11/07/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐3645.00 ZB
11/01/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐210.00 ZB
10/31/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
10/25/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.70 ZB
10/25/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
10/24/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐430.75 ZB
10/11/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.69 ZB
10/11/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
10/10/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐136.14 ZB
10/03/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
10/01/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 5409.76 ZB
10/01/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐89.78 ZB ‐$99,092.61
ACCOUNT 200000     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
12/12/2024 December 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 1351.00 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 286.97 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 104.23 AP

19



11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 498.77 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 1582.83 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 20.00 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 370.71 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 562.50 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 434.44 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐286.97 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.99 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.49 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐434.44 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐370.71 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐20.00 AC
11/15/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐104.23 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐562.50 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐498.77 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐1582.83 AC
11/07/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 2700.00 AP
11/07/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 945.00 AP
11/05/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐945.00 AC
11/05/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐2700.00 AC
10/31/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
10/31/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
10/24/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 251.99 AP
10/24/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 178.76 AP
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐1351.00 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐251.99 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐178.76 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.99 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.49 AC
10/10/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 132.43 AP
10/10/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 3.71 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐132.43 AC
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐3.71 AC $11.48

20



  
  Consent    Consent    7. 7.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 Second Quarter Financial Update.

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 Second Quarter Financial Update.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The intent of the quarterly financial report is to provide the Commission with an update on how LAFCo performed
financially in the previous quarter as compared to the adopted budget and to discuss any issues as appropriate. The
practice was recommended during a previous audit as an additional safeguard to ensure sound financial
management, given the small size of the LAFCo staff. In accordance with LAFCo Administrative Policies and
Procedures, the Commission adopts the final budget and is authorized to make adjustments as appropriate.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The LAFCo FY 2024/25 budget was adopted on May 23, 2024. During the second quarter, LAFCo remained on
track with both revenue and expenditures. 

REVENUEREVENUE 
LAFCo has received 100% of its budgeted revenue. Quarter two showed an additional $6,041 was received for the
final payment of the City of Woodland's annexation proposals. 

EXPENSEEXPENSE 
Halfway through the fiscal year, LAFCo's expenses totaled $247,474 (36.61%) of the budgeted $675,962. 

For Salaries and Benefits, the Health Insurance item (501130) is over budget due to the same issue noted last
quarter. The County changed accounts for in-lieu health insurance policies which were not consistent with budget
instructions. This will be corrected in a future budget adjustment and funds are available in a different account (
Other Employee Benefits 501190) to cover the item this fiscal year. 

Services and Supplies expenses total $27,777 (32.52%) of the budgeted $85,421. A few accounts under Services
and Supplies exceeded appropriations during the second quarter. Maintenance-Bldg Improvement (510071)
exceeded its appropriation by 1,158%, due to County staff charging the wrong account to LAFCo for water, sewer,
and HVAC debt for the administration building. This occurred last year as well. Staff will appropriate the $2,896 to
account 540500-3005, as recommended in the County's Budget Instructions. Also, the advertising for the new
LAFCo position was incorrectly charged to Office Expense (510110) which caused this account to go over budget.
The advertising charge of $499 will be moved to Publication and Legal Notices (510106). This will result in Office
Expenses remaining below budget and Publication and Legal Notices being 119% of its budget.  

BUDGET REPORTSBUDGET REPORTS  
The Budget Status Summary (Attachment A) is an easy-to-read summary of the budget. The General Ledger
Report (Attachment B) shows a running balance of all transactions, including both revenue and expenditure
amounts.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-FY24-25 Q2 Budget Status Summary
ATT B FY24-25 Q2 Transactions

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate

21



Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 02/20/2025 11:40 AM
Form Started By: JD Trebec Started On: 02/18/2025 02:44 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025

22



LAFCO BUDGET - 2nd QUARTER BUDGET STATUS SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2024/25

Account Name 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year FY 24/25 %

Account # Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter to Date Budget Budget

REVENUES

403100 INVESTMENT EARNINGS-POOL $0.00 3,000$    0.00%

430020 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-COUNTY $276,117.00 $276,117.00 276,117$    100%

430023 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WEST SACRAMENTO $96,415.00 $96,415.00 96,415$    100%

430025 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WOODLAND $85,695.00 $85,695.00 85,695$    100%

430027 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WINTERS $8,987.00 $8,987.00 8,987$    100%

430029 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-DAVIS $85,021.00 $85,021.00 85,021$    100%

440520 OTH CHRG FR SVC-LAFCO FEES $8,250.00 $6,041.01 $14,291.01 $0 0.00%

470999 USE FUND BALANCE AVAILABLE-BUDGET ONLY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 110,727$    120,727$    

TOTAL AGENCY COST 552,235$    

TOTAL OTHER LISTED SOURCES 123,727$    

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES $560,485.00 6,041$     -$     -$     677,253$    675,962$    100.19%

Item 7-ATT A

23



LAFCO BUDGET - 2nd QUARTER BUDGET STATUS SUMMARY FISCAL YEAR 2024/25

1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year FY 24/25 %

Account # Account Name Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter to Date Budget Budget

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

500100 REGULAR EMPLOYEES $57,204.04 $57,899.39 $115,103.43 $325,388 35.37%

500110 EXTRA HELP $236.25 $1,215.00 $1,451.25 $20,840.00 0.00%

501100 RETIREMENT (CALPERS) $18,636.20 $18,852.00 $37,488.20 $116,072 32.30%

501110 SOCIAL SECURITY TAX (OASDI) $3,834.27 $3,357.24 $7,191.51 $21,099 34.08%

501120 MEDICARE $896.72 $937.17 $1,833.89 $5,492 33.39%

501130 HEALTH INSURANCE (Life Ins/EAP/in-lieu) $1,149.90 $1,399.50 $2,549.40 $150.00 1699.60%

501150 OPEB - RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE $3,936.00 $3,981.60 $7,917.60 $22,451 35.27%

501170 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE $0.00 $185 0.00%

501180 WORKERS' COMP INSURANCE $500.00 $500.00 $500 100.00%

501190 OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS $7,953.28 $9,929.92 $17,883.20 $53,364 33.51%

     TOTAL SALARY & BENEFITS $94,346.66 $97,571.82 $0.00 $0.00 $191,918.48 565,541$              33.94%

SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

510025 COMMUNICATIONS - INTERNAL CHARGE $484.00 $484.00 $968.00 $1,934 50.05%

510051 INSURANCE-PUBLIC LIABILITY $609.00 $609.00 $500 121.80%

510030 FOOD $0.00 $0 0.00%

510070 MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT $84.35 $136.14 $220.49 $500 44.10%

510071 MAINTENANCE-BLDG IMPROVEMENT $2,896.00 $2,896.00 $250 1158.40%

510090 MEMBERSHIPS $4,756.00 $1,351.00 $6,107.00 $6,900 88.51%

510110 OFFICE EXPENSE $317.33 $866.97 $1,184.30 $750 157.91%

510111 OFFICE EXP-POSTAGE $312.00 $312.00 $500 62.40%

510120 IT SERVICE-DEPARTMENT SYSTEM MAINTENANCE $0.00 $2,500 0.00%

510121 IT SERVICES-ERP (Enterprise/Resource/Planning) $1,245.00 $1,245.00 $2,490.00 $4,980 50.00%

510122 IT SERVICES-CONNECTIVITY $974.00 $974.00 $1,948.00 $3,897 49.99%

510160 PUBLICATIONS AND LEGAL NOTICES $516.37 $178.76 $695.13 $1,000 69.51%

510170 RENTS AND LEASES - EQUIPMENT $16.67 $10.98 $27.65 $100 27.65%

510173 RENTS INTERNAL CHARGE (Records Storage-Archives) $0.00 $1,714 0.00%

510180 TRAINING $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $4,000 70.00%

510190 MINOR EQUIPMENT (Computers) $0.00 $0 0.00%

510200 TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL $971.59 $2,694.95 $3,666.54 $6,000 61.11%

510251 PROF & SPEC SVC‐AUDITING & ACCOUNTING $0.00 $15,000 0.00%

510252 PROF & SPEC SVC‐INFO TECH SERVICES $1,821.00 $525.00 $2,346.00 $10,000 23.46%

510256 PROF & SPEC SVC‐LEGAL SERVICES $562.50 $562.50 $12,000 4.69%

510275 PROF & SPEC SVC‐OTHER $945.00 $945.00 $10,000 9.45%

540500-3005 TRANSFER OUT (Trane debt-water,sewer,HVAC) $0.00 $2,896 0.00%

     TOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES $14,907.31 $12,870.30 $0.00 $0.00 $27,777.61 85,421$                32.52%

OTHER CHARGES

526601 PAYMENTS TO OTHER GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS $0.00 $0 0.00%

     TOTAL OTHER CHARGES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 0.00%

OTHER FINANCING USES

590100 APPROP FOR CONTINGENCY $0.00 $25,000 0.00%

590999 CONTRIBUTIONS TO FUND BALANCE $0.00 $0 0.00%

     TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $0.00 $12,870.30 $0.00 $0.00 $27,777.61 25,000$                111.11%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $109,253.97 123,312$       -$               -$               247,474$        675,962$              36.61%

24



PostingDate ClosePeriod Account Description Amount Event Code
Account 
Totals

ACCOUNT 403100     INVESTMENT EARNINGS ‐ POOL
10/01/2024 October 2025 403100 Q1 INTEREST APPORTIONMENT ‐5409.76 JE
10/01/2024 October 2025 403100 Q1 INTEREST APPORTIONMENT FEE 89.78 JE ‐$5,319.98
ACCOUNT 440520     OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES ‐ LAFCO FEE
11/25/2024 November 2025 440520 Final Payment‐LAF#24‐01 PIRMI/Sports Park Reorg to W ‐8741.01 CL
11/05/2024 November 2025 440520 16949 ‐ CA DEPT OF TAX AND FEE ADMIN 2700.00 AD ‐$6,041.01
ACCOUNT 500100     REGULAR EMPLOYEES
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9562.42 PW
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
12/20/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 ‐259.03 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 5463.43 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 328.20 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 955.74 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 902.55 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 1912.48 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000101 ‐259.03 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 7375.42 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 1230.75 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 956.24 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 ‐259.03 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 8502.34 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 937.00 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 123.08 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 ‐259.03 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9524.92 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 37.48 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 ‐259.03 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 9349.17 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 82.05 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 93.70 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Summarized transaction 346.52 PW
10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 37.48 PW

Item 7-ATT B

25



10/11/2024 October 2025 500100 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 ‐259.03 PW $57,899.39
ACCOUNT 500110     EXTRA HELP
12/20/2024 December 2025 500110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 765.00 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 500110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 450.00 PW $1,215.00
ACCOUNT 501100     RETIREMENT
12/20/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 3238.17 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
12/06/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 3238.17 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 2178.14 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction 1060.03 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501100 Summarized transaction ‐96.17 P1 $18,852.00
ACCOUNT 501110     OASDI
12/20/2024 December 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 47.43 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 226.44 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501110 Summarized transaction 440.80 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 432.16 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 27.90 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 221.51 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 221.50 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 432.16 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 432.16 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 221.51 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 432.16 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501110 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 221.51 PD $3,357.24
ACCOUNT 501120     FICA / MEDICARE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000103 11.09 PD
12/20/2024 December 2025 501120 Summarized transaction 154.03 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501120 Summarized transaction 154.02 PD

26



11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 101.07 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 6.53 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 51.81 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 51.80 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 101.07 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 101.07 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 51.81 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 101.07 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501120 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 51.80 PD $937.17
ACCOUNT 501130     HEALTH INSURANCE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 233.25 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 230.25 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501130 Summarized transaction 3.00 PD $1,399.50
ACCOUNT 501150     OPEB ‐ RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE
12/20/2024 December 2025 501150 Summarized transaction 663.60 PD
12/06/2024 December 2025 501150 Summarized transaction 663.60 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 446.37 PD
11/22/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000099 217.23 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 217.23 PD
11/08/2024 November 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000097 446.37 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 446.37 PD
10/25/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000094 217.23 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 446.37 PD
10/11/2024 October 2025 501150 Journal created by run group GHRPR100000000000092 217.23 PD $3,981.60
ACCOUNT 501190     OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
12/20/2024 December 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1738.48 PW
12/06/2024 December 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1738.48 PW
11/22/2024 November 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW
11/08/2024 November 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW
10/25/2024 October 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW

27



10/11/2024 October 2025 501190 Summarized transaction 1613.24 PW $9,929.92
ACCOUNT 510025     COMMUNICATIONS INTERNAL CHARGE
12/01/2024 December 2025 510025 Q2 IT TELECOM CHARGE FY24/25 484.00 JE
ACCOUNT 510051     INSURANCE ‐ PUBLIC LIABILITY
10/03/2024 October 2025 510070 16728 ‐ WIZIX TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC 132.43 AD
10/03/2024 October 2025 510070 16728 ‐ WIZIX TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC 3.71 AD $136.14
ACCOUNT 510071    MAINTENANCE ‐ BUILDING IMPROVEMENT
12/01/2024 December 2025 510071 FY24/25 TRANE DEBT LAFCO 2896.00 JE $2,896.00
ACCOUNT 510090     MEMBERSHIPS
10/21/2024 October 2025 510090 10312 ‐ CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DIST ASSN 1351.00 AD $1,351.00
ACCOUNT 510110     OFFICE EXPENSE
11/18/2024 November 2025 510110 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.99 AD
11/15/2024 November 2025 510110 10058 ‐ STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL 104.23 AD
11/13/2024 November 2025 510110 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 498.77 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510110 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 251.99 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510110 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.99 AD $866.97
ACCOUNT 510121     IT SERVICE ‐ ERP
12/01/2024 December 2025 510121 Q2 IT ERP CHARGE FY24/25 1245.00 JE $1,245.00
ACCOUNT 510122     IT SERVICE ‐ CONNECTIVITY
12/01/2024 December 2025 510122 Q2 IT CONNECTIVITY CHARGE FY24/25 974.00 JE $974.00
ACCOUNT 510160     PUBLICATIONS AND LEGAL NOTICES
10/21/2024 October 2025 510160 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 178.76 AD $178.76
ACCOUNT 510170     RENTS AND LEASES ‐ EQUIPMENT
11/18/2024 November 2025 510170 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.49 AD
10/21/2024 October 2025 510170 10246 ‐ ALHAMBRA 5.49 AD $10.98
ACCOUNT 510200     TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL
11/21/2024 November 2025 510200 29443 ‐ PAMELA MILLER 286.97 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 12674 ‐ CHRISTINE CRAWFORD 20.00 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 13136 ‐ ERIC MAY 370.71 AD
11/18/2024 November 2025 510200 29421 ‐ WILLIAM BIASI 434.44 AD
11/13/2024 November 2025 510200 10380 ‐ US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC 1582.83 AD $2,694.95
ACCOUNT 510252     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ INFO TECH SERVICES
12/01/2024 December 2025 510252 GIS‐Elkhorn FPD Reorg LAF#24‐02 315.00 JE
11/01/2024 November 2025 510252 GIS‐Elkhorn FPD Time Analysis 210.00 JE $525.00
ACCOUNT 510256     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ LEGAL SERVICES
11/13/2024 November 2025 510256 15400 ‐ COLANTUONO HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY 562.50 AD $562.50
ACCOUNT 510275     PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES ‐ OTHER
11/05/2024 November 2025 510275 15369 ‐ FRAME SURVEYING & MAPPING 945.00 AD $945.00

28



ACCOUNT 100000     CASH IN TREASURY
12/20/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16727.40 ZB
12/20/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
12/12/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐1351.00 ZB
12/06/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16118.21 ZB
12/06/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐974.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐1245.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐484.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐315.00 ZB
12/01/2024 December 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐2896.00 ZB
11/27/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
11/27/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐286.97 ZB
11/25/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 8741.01 ZB
11/22/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16689.14 ZB
11/22/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
11/21/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐104.23 ZB
11/21/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐3469.25 ZB
11/08/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.70 ZB
11/08/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
11/07/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐3645.00 ZB
11/01/2024 November 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐210.00 ZB
10/31/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
10/25/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.70 ZB
10/25/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
10/24/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐430.75 ZB
10/11/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐16204.69 ZB
10/11/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 96.17 ZB
10/10/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐136.14 ZB
10/03/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐11.48 ZB
10/01/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry 5409.76 ZB
10/01/2024 October 2025 100000 To zone balancing entry ‐89.78 ZB ‐$99,092.61
ACCOUNT 200000     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
12/12/2024 December 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 1351.00 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
11/27/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 286.97 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 104.23 AP

29



11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 498.77 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 1582.83 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 20.00 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 370.71 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 562.50 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 434.44 AP
11/21/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐286.97 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.99 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.49 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐434.44 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐370.71 AC
11/18/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐20.00 AC
11/15/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐104.23 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐562.50 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐498.77 AC
11/13/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐1582.83 AC
11/07/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 2700.00 AP
11/07/2024 November 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 945.00 AP
11/05/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐945.00 AC
11/05/2024 November 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐2700.00 AC
10/31/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
10/31/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
10/24/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 251.99 AP
10/24/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 178.76 AP
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐1351.00 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐251.99 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐178.76 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.99 AC
10/21/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐5.49 AC
10/10/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 132.43 AP
10/10/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 3.71 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.99 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Payment Accrual 5.49 AP
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐132.43 AC
10/03/2024 October 2025 200000 Accounts payable accrual ‐3.71 AC $11.48

30



  
  Consent    Consent    8. 8.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider an update to the Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures to amend Section 2.5 (Political
Contribution Disclosure) in compliance with SB-1243

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the recommended amendment to Section 2.5 of the Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The Political Reform Act of 1974 prohibits agency officers from accepting, soliciting or directing a contribution
above a specified threshold from a party or participant (or their agents) (1) while a proceeding involving a license,
permit, or other entitlement for use, including most contracts, is pending before the agency and (2) for 12 months
after a decision. Senate Bill 1243 (2024) amended the Act to raise the threshold for contributions from $250 to $500
and extends the period to cure violations from within 14 days to within 30 days. The text of the adopted Yolo LAFCo
Administrative Policies and Procedures would be amended to comply with the changes to state law, specifically
raising the regulated contribution amount from $250 to $500.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND

Section 2.5 of the Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures shall be amended to read as follows:

2.5      P O L IT IC A L C O N T R IB U T IO N  D IS C L O S U R E2.5      P O L IT IC A L C O N T R IB U T IO N  D IS C L O S U R E

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 56100.1, 56700.1 and 57009, contributions and expenditures for
political purposes related to a proposal or proceeding before LAFCo, including for a change of organization or
reorganization or any proposal at the conducting authority stage of the LAFCO process (Reportable LAFCo
Proceeding), are subject to the reporting and disclosure to the same extent as required for local initiative
measures under the Political Reform Act (PRA), Government Code Section 81000 et seq., and the regulations
of the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) implementing that law.

Consistent with Government Code 56300, Yolo LAFCo adopts the following procedures requiring
contributions disclosure which shall be included on the proposal form:

1.         Any applicant, opponent, or participant to a Reportable LAFCo Proceedings shall submit to the
LAFCo Executive Officer all disclosures required by the PRA of contributions or expenditures for political
purposes related to that LAFCo Proceeding. The disclosures may be submitted to LAFCo up to 7 calendar
days after filing with the FPPC, but in no event later than 9:00 a.m. of the hearing of the Reportable LAFCo
Proceeding.

2.         On every agenda of the Yolo LAFCo, the following statement shall be printed:

"All parties and participants on a matter to be heard by the Commission that have made campaign
contributions totaling $250 $500 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months must disclose this
fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record as required by Government Code Section 84308."
"Contributions and expenditures for political purposes related to any proposal or proceedings before
LAFCo are subject to the reporting requirements of the Political Reform Act and the Fair Political
Practices Commission and must be disclosed to the Commission prior to the hearing on the matter."

31



AttachmentsAttachments

No file(s) attached.

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 03:04 PM
Eric May Eric May 02/13/2025 10:55 AM
Form Started By: JD Trebec Started On: 02/04/2025 08:28 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/13/2025

32



  
  Consent    Consent    9. 9.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider an amendment to the Yolo LAFCo Project Policies to add a new Section 3.4 requiring an annexation
agreement of property owners that receive out of area services

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the recommended amendment to the Yolo LAFCo Project Policies to add a new Section 3.4.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
California Government Code Section 56133 states that LAFCo authorization is required for a city or district to
provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary but within its sphere of influence. The extension
of services must be "in anticipation of a later change of organization," with the goal that the newly-serviced property
would consent to a later annexation into the city or district providing services. However, there is some ambiguity
about whether a parcel that has been authorized by LAFCo to receive out of area service may later challenge the
annexation of the parcel into the city or district service area. 

The addition of Section 3.4 to the Project Policies would clarify the obligation to ensure timely annexation of parcels
that receive out of area services by requiring an annexation agreement recorded on and running with the property.
The agreement waives the owner's right to protest any future change of organization to annex the property by the
agency which is serving it and states that LAFCo will not include a protest received by the property owner in its
determination of whether protest thresholds have been met. The agreement form is provided as Attachment A.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The Yolo LAFCo Project Policies be amended to add a new Section 3.4 that shall read as follows: 

3.4       ANNEXATION AGREEMENT3.4       ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  
To ensure timely annexation of properties provided new or extended services outside a city or district's jurisdictional
boundary but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later change of organization as authorized by
Government Code section 56133(b), subject property owners shall agree, as a Condition of Approval to the
extension of services to their property, to the recording of an agreement running with the property that waives the
landowner's rights to protest any future change of organization that includes the annexation of the served property to
the city or district providing out-of-jurisdiction services. If any protest from such landowners is received for the
property receiving services, LAFCo will not include the protest in its determination of whether protest thresholds
have been met as to any reorganization that includes the annexation of the property to the city or district. 

 

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-Annexation Agreement Form

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 03:09 PM
Eric May Eric May 02/13/2025 11:01 AM
Form Started By: JD Trebec Started On: 02/04/2025 09:57 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/13/2025

33



34



RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
County of Yolo

WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO:
[name and address]

APN(s): [insert]
(SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER’S USE)

Exempt from recording fees
Government Code §§ 6103, 27383 & 26857

AGREEMENT REGARDING FUTURE ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY

This Agreement is made and entered into on this __ day of ____, 20__, by and between the Yolo Local
Agency Formation Commission, (“LAFCo” hereafter), and _____________ (“Owner” hereafter) and is
based upon the following facts:

(a) Owner holds title to that certain real property (“the Property” hereafter) described in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto and shown for illustrative purposes only on the attached Exhibit “B”; and

(b) Owner desires to receive one or more municipal services (“Services”) provided by
________________ (“Agency”). Although the Property is not within Agency’s jurisdiction,
LAFCo has authorized Agency to provide the Services in anticipation of future annexation
pursuant to Government Code section 56133(b). The Parties recognize that at some point in the
future, the Property may be annexed to Agency.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO
AS FOLLOWS:

1. Owner hereby consents to the annexation of the Property to Agency. Owner agrees on behalf of
himself, his heirs, successors, and assigns that, in the event any future change of organization that
includes the annexation of the Property to ________ is approved by LAFCo, Owner waives all
rights to protest the annexation of the Property.

2. This Agreement shall be recorded with the Clerk Recorder’s Office. Owner agrees that the
obligations hereunder shall run with the Property and that the obligations undertaken by Owner
hereunder shall be binding on all parties having or acquiring any right, title, or interest in the
Property.

Item 9-ATT A

35



The parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first set forth above.

OWNER:

By:________________________________________________________ Date:______________
Property Owner, Print Name

     
________________________________________________________

Property Owner, Signature

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION:

By:_______________________________________________________ Date:______________
Executive Officer, Print Name

_______________________________________________________
Executive Officer, Signature

36



A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California
County of ______________

On                                                           before me,

_________________________________________________________________
                                                                                                                                                                         

personally appeared _______________________________________ who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature                                                                                 (Seal)

37



A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California
County of ______________

On                                                           before me,

_________________________________________________________________
                                                                                                                                                                         

personally appeared _______________________________________ who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature                                                                                 (Seal)

38



  
  Consent    Consent    10. 10.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider authorizing the Chair to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement 2025-02 between Yolo
LAFCo and Yolo County to share staffing services as needed

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Chair to sign the attached MOU.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
All services provided under this MOU are reimbursable at an hourly rate based on the employee's current cost of
salary and benefits. Services and budget would be agreed upon in each instance by the Executive Officer. 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The initial use of this MOU is intended for LAFCo's new employee, JD Trebec, formerly with the Yolo County
planning team, to complete a feasibility study to consider extending and connecting the existing Cal-Am water and
sewer system to additional areas of Dunnigan. His work would be limited to managing a consultant contract for the
Department of Community Services and would result in some revenue for LAFCo. However, the draft MOU is
intentionally generic, so it can be used to share additional staff services as needed and mutually agreed upon by
both parties. 

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-LAFCo-County MOU No. 2025-02 Re Shared Staffing

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 02/13/2025 02:16 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 02/12/2025 03:11 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/13/2025

39



40



- 1 -

Yolo County Agreement No. __-____ 

Yolo LAFCo Agreement No. 2025-02 

Memorandum of Understanding Between the County of Yolo and the Yolo Local Agency 
Formation Commission Regarding Shared Staffing Services  

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into on the __ day of _____, 
2025, by and between the County of Yolo (“County”) and the Yolo Local Agency Formation 
Commission (“LAFCo”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, LAFCo is a governmental agency created by state law to encourage the 
orderly formation and development of local agencies in Yolo County and to discourage urban 
sprawl; and 

WHEREAS, County and LAFCo are separate legal entities that employ their own staff; 

WHEREAS, the Parties at times desire to perform tasks that their respective existing 
staff do not have the expertise or capacity to complete, while the other Party may have capable 
staff with capacity to complete the tasks at that time;  

WHEREAS, there may also be times when a Party’s staffing needs do not require a full-
time equivalent employee for a certain function, but the other Party has similar needs that could 
be filled by sharing a full-time employee; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this MOU is to memorialize the contractual arrangement 
between the Parties for the parties’ sharing of staff for administrative tasks and other services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Shared Staffing.

A. Scope. The Parties may mutually agree to share certain staff for administrative, project
management, consulting, planning, and other staffing needs, whether short-term or
ongoing.

B. Initial Request. When requesting shared staffing from LAFCo, County shall make the
request to the LAFCo Executive Officer. When requesting shared staffing from the County,
LAFCo shall make the request to the County Administrator or the Department Head for
the County department in which an employee who might be shared is employed. Within
30 days of a request, the Parties shall meet and confer to discuss the staffing needs, time
period, and applicable costs.

Item 10-ATT A

41



- 2 -

C. Agreement to Share Staff. When the Parties have reached agreement on the parameters of
the shared staffing arrangement, the LAFCo Executive Officer and the County
Administrator or the County Department Head, or their respective designees, shall sign a
completed “Shared Staffing Memorandum” in the form provided in Exhibit A to this MOU.
The Shared Staffing Memorandum may be terminated by either Party by giving two weeks’
notice.

D. The work performed by the employee(s) shared under this MOU shall be consistent with
the class specifications of the employee’s position. The employee shall remain an employee
of the Party providing the shared services.

2. Payments for Services.

All services provided by under this MOU are reimbursable at the hourly rate set forth by
the Shared Staffing Memorandum, based on the employee’s current cost of salary and benefits. 
The hourly rate may be adjusted as needed to reflect changes in compensation costs or changes in 
staffing. The Party providing services shall invoice the other Party at least quarterly, and at the 
termination or completion of the Shared Staffing Memorandum. The Party receiving services shall 
pay the invoiced amount within thirty days. 

3. Term and Termination.

A. Term.  This MOU has an initial term commencing on February 1, 2025, and
extending through June 30, 2026.  Unless terminated by either party prior to the
expiration of the existing term, the term shall be renewed automatically for an additional
year on May 31 of each year with the term ending on June 30 the following year.

B. Termination.  Either party may terminate this MOU, with or without cause, by
giving two weeks’ prior written notice to the other party.

4. Indemnity.

A. By LAFCo.  To the extent allowed by law, LAFCo shall indemnify, defend, and
hold the County harmless from and against any and all claims and liabilities that may arise
due to LAFCo’s breach of any duty imposed by this MOU or any act or omission by a
shared County employee while performing tasks for LAFCo. Additionally, LAFCo hereby
indemnifies and holds the County harmless from any and all claims that may be made
against the County based upon any contention that an employer-employee relationship
exists between the County and any LAFCo employee by reason of this MOU or any
services provided pursuant to this MOU.

B. By the County.  To the extent allowed by law, the County shall indemnify, defend,
and hold LAFCo harmless from and against any and all claims and liabilities that may arise
due to the County’s breach of any duty expressly assumed by County in this MOU or any
act or omission by a shared LAFCo employee while performing tasks for County.

42



- 3 -

Additionally, County hereby indemnifies and holds LAFCo harmless from any and all 
claims that may be made against LAFCo based upon any contention that an employer-
employee relationship exists between LAFCo and any County employee by reason of this 
MOU or any services provided pursuant to this MOU. 

5. Governing Law.  This MOU has been made and delivered within the State of California,
and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with California law.

6. Notices.  All notices shall be deemed to have been given when made in writing and
delivered or mailed to the respective representatives of the parties, as follows:

To County:   To LAFCo:  
County of Yolo Yolo LAFCo 
Attn:  County Administrator Attn: Executive Officer 
625 Court Street, Room 202 625 Court Street, Room 107 
Woodland, CA 95695  Woodland, CA 95695 
Tel: (530) 666-8150  Tel: (530) 666-8048 

7. Severability.  Should any paragraph, clause or provision of this MOU be construed to be
against public policy or determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid
or unenforceable, such construction and decisions shall affect only those paragraphs,
clauses or provisions so construed or interpreted, and shall in no event affect the remaining
paragraphs, clauses or provisions of this MOU, which shall remain in force.

8. Entire Agreement.  This MOU is the entire agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral and written
agreements and discussions.  The Agreement can only be modified by written amendment
signed by both parties. Each party has cooperated in the drafting and preparation of this
MOU, and this MOU shall not be construed against any party on the basis of drafting.

43



- 4 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties through their authorized representatives have executed 
this MOU on the date first set forth above. 

COUNTY OF YOLO YOLO LAFCo 

By_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
 Mary Vixie Sandy, Chair Bill Biasi, Chair 

    Board of Supervisors Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Attest:  Approved as to Form: 
Julie Dachtler, Deputy Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 

By_______________________________ By _______________________________ 
    Deputy         (Seal)     Eric May,  

    Commission Counsel 
Approved as to Form: 
Philip J. Pogledich, County Counsel 

By_______________________________ 
    Philip J. Pogledich 

44



  

EXHIBIT A 
 

SHARED STAFFING MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Party Providing Staffing: __________________ 
 
Party Receiving Staffing: _________________ 
 
Employee Class Title: ____________________ 
 
Approximate hours: _____________ per week / per month / total 
      (circle one) 
 
End of staffing need (date, or ongoing): __________________ 
 
Location from which work is to be performed: __________________ 
 
Per hour cost (salary + benefits per Human Resources): __________________ 
 
Description of Tasks: _______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Other:    _______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________ 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
____________________________     ____________________________ 
County Administrator / Department Head  LAFCo Executive Officer 
 
Date: ____________________________  Date: ____________________________ 

45



46



  
  Consent    Consent    11. 11.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider authorizing the Chair to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement 2025-03 between Yolo LAFCo
and Yolo County Regarding Office Space and Administrative Services
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Chair to sign the attached MOU.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None. This MOU memorializes our current practice of LAFCo being invoiced for charges in the same manner as
County departments. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH Act) mandated that LAFCos become
independent agencies from their counties. The Yolo LAFCo office has since remained in the County Administration Building
and the County has continued to provide various administrative services and office space to LAFCo in the same manner as
County departments. The purpose of this MOU is to memorialize this existing arrangement and practice for the provision of
office space and administrative services by the County and LAFCo's payments for these services.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-LAFCo-County MOU No. 2025-03 Re Office Space and Admin Services

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 02/20/2025 03:51 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 02/20/2025 03:18 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025

47



48



- 1 -

Yolo County Agreement No. ____-____ 

Yolo LAFCo Agreement No. 2025-03 

Memorandum of Understanding Between the County of Yolo and the Yolo Local Agency 
Formation Commission Regarding Office Space and Administrative Services  

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into on the 11th day of March 
2025 (“Effective Date”), by and between the County of Yolo (“County”) and the Yolo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCo”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, LAFCo is a governmental agency created by state law to encourage the 
orderly formation and development of local agencies in Yolo County and to discourage urban 
sprawl; and 

WHEREAS, although the County and LAFCo are separate governmental entities, 
County has long provided various administrative services and office space to LAFCo; and 

WHEREAS, LAFCo may contract for services, facilities, equipment, supplies, and 
personnel pursuant to Government Code sections 56380, 56381, 56384; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this MOU is to memorialize the contractual arrangement 
between the Parties for the County’s provision of office space and administrative services by the 
County;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Scope of Services.  County agrees to provide the following to LAFCo:

A. Office Space: County shall provide LAFCo with mutually agreed upon office space
sufficient for LAFCo’s operations.  The office space will include at least two private offices
and a reception area accessible to the public. LAFCo shall have the right to use the County
Board Room and other meeting rooms for LAFCo functions, subject to availability.

B. Financial Services: The Yolo County Department of Financial Services shall collect funds
due to LAFCo from the County, cities, and special districts as authorized by Government
Code Section 56381 (c) and hold funds and issue warrants on behalf of LAFCo and provide
timely financial reporting to LAFCo of account transactions and balances.

C. Human Resources: The County’s Human Resources Department shall provide LAFCo all
services typically provided to County departments.  LAFCo employees shall be treated as
County employees for administrative purposes only (e.g., payroll, benefits, CALPERS,
OPEB, etc.).  The LAFCo Executive Officer shall be appointed by LAFCo and report only

Item 11-ATT A

49



 - 2 - 

to the LAFCo Commissioners, and all other LAFCo employees shall be hired by and report 
to the LAFCo Executive Officer. All disciplinary actions of LAFCo Executive Officer shall 
be overseen by LAFCo Commission, with assistance from the County’s Human Resources 
Department. Disciplinary actions of all other LAFCo employees shall be overseen by the 
Executive Officer, with assistance from the County’s Human Resources Department.  

D. Information Technology: Yolo County Innovation and Technology Services shall provide 
IT services commensurate with those provided to County departments, including 
equipment set-up, service desk support, networking, and remote access. 

E. Purchasing: The County Purchasing Division shall provide to LAFCO services typically 
provided to County departments.   

F. Record Retention and Archives.  The County Archives shall provide to LAFCO services 
typically provided to County departments.   

G. Legal Services: The Office of the County Counsel shall provide legal counsel and 
representation pursuant to a separate legal services agreement. 

2. Payments for Services.   
 

All services provided by the County to LAFCo are reimbursable at the rate established by 
the Board of Supervisors or, for matters not covered by an adopted rate or charge, as set forth in 
this Section. The County shall invoice LAFCo in the same manner as County departments.  The 
County shall submit invoices for the estimated actual cost of its services and any other costs 
recoverable under these terms and conditions to LAFCo Executive Officer with a request for 
payment authorization on at least a quarterly basis.  The LAFCo Executive Officer will review 
invoices submitted by the County and either approve payment or advise the County of any 
concerns within 30 days after receiving each invoice.  If payment is approved, it shall be made 
from LAFCo’s unrestricted funds within 30 days of approval. 

 
3. Adoption of County Policies. 
 

LAFCo shall adopt by reference the following portions of the County’s Administrative 
Policies and Procedures Manual: 

 
a) Chapter 2 regarding procurement. 
b) Chapter 4 regarding technology & communications. 
c) Chapters 5-7 regarding personnel administration, which shall apply to LAFCo employees. 
d) Chapter 12 regarding payroll. 

 
Additionally, LAFCo shall adopt by reference the County’s Personnel Rules and 

Regulations, which shall apply to LAFCo employees.  Although treated as County employees for 
administrative purposes, all LAFCo employees shall remain employees of LAFCo. 

 

50



 - 3 - 

In no event shall a County policy adopted by reference override a policy adopted by 
LAFCo, Commission direction to LAFCo employees, or any requirement or obligation applicable 
by law. 

 
4. Term and Termination.   
 

A. Term.  This MOU has an initial term commencing on the Effective Date and 
extending through June 30, 2026.  Unless terminated by either party prior to the 
expiration of the existing term, the term shall be renewed automatically for an additional 
year on May 31 of each year with the term ending on June 30 the following year. 
 
B. Termination.  Either party may terminate this MOU, with or without cause, by 
giving 180 days prior written notice to the other party.   

 
5. Indemnity.   
 

A. By LAFCo.  To the extent allowed by law, LAFCo shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold the County harmless from and against any and all claims and liabilities that may arise 
due to LAFCo’s failure to pay its debts, LAFCo’s breach of any duty imposed by this 
MOU, or LAFCo’s breach of any other duty not expressly assumed by County under this 
Agreement.   Additionally, LAFCo shall indemnify and defend County for all claims and 
liability arising from LAFCo employees being treated as County employees for 
administrative purposes. 
 
B. By the County.  To the extent allowed by law, the County shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold LAFCo harmless from and against any and all claims and liabilities that may arise 
due to the County’s breach of any duty expressly assumed by County in this MOU.   
 
C. LAFCo shall maintain its own workers compensation and liability coverage 
through Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority during the 
term of this Agreement. 
 

6. Governing Law.  This MOU has been made and delivered within the State of California, 
and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with California law. 
 

7. Notices.  All notices shall be deemed to have been given when made in writing and 
delivered or mailed to the respective representatives of the parties, as follows: 
 
To County:       To LAFCo:   
County of Yolo     Yolo LAFCo 
Attn:  County Administrator     Attn: Executive Officer 
625 Court Street, Room 202    625 Court Street, Room 107 
Woodland, CA 95695     Woodland, CA 95695 
Tel: (530) 666-8150     Tel: (530) 666-8048 
 

51



 - 4 - 

8. Severability.  Should any paragraph, clause or provision of this MOU be construed to be 
against public policy or determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid 
or unenforceable, such construction and decisions shall affect only those paragraphs, 
clauses or provisions so construed or interpreted, and shall in no event affect the remaining 
paragraphs, clauses or provisions of this MOU, which shall remain in force. 
 

9. Entire Agreement.  This MOU is the entire agreement between the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral and written 
agreements and discussions.  The Agreement can only be modified by written amendment 
signed by both parties. Each party has cooperated in the drafting and preparation of this 
MOU, and this MOU shall not be construed against any party on the basis of drafting.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties through their authorized representatives have executed 
this MOU on the date first set forth above. 

 
COUNTY OF YOLO    YOLO LAFCo 
 
By_______________________________  By_______________________________ 
    Mary Vixie Sandy, Chair        Bill Biasi, Chair 
    Board of Supervisors    Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
Julie Dachtler, Deputy Clerk     
Board of Supervisors 
 
By_______________________________  By _______________________________ 
         Deputy          (Seal)         Eric May,     
                 Commission Counsel 
Approved as to Form: 
Philip J. Pogledich, County Counsel 
 
By_______________________________ 
    Philip J. Pogledich 
 

52



  
  Consent    Consent    12. 12.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Review and file the 2024 Yolo Local Government Website Transparency Scorecard

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and file the 2024 Yolo Local Government Website Transparency Scorecard.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
In the fall of 2017, the cities and County requested LAFCo to begin preparing web transparency scorecards on an
annual basis promoting a vision for open government and transparency for government agencies countywide (cities,
County, special districts, and joint powers authorities), thereby fostering public trust and accountability.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The checklist criteria are intended to establish a generally accepted minimum standard for transparency, i.e. this is
not intended to be used as a "best website" contest. We acknowledge some of our larger and more resourced
agencies go far above and beyond these criteria for higher levels of public service and communication. The goal for
smaller agencies is not necessarily to have a high score at the outset, but to set a baseline that will hopefully see
improvement from year to year.

Scorecard ResultsScorecard Results
Website transparency remained relatively consistent across most agency categories. An agency's website
transparency appears to correlate somewhat with how functional and resourced it is. Districts in violation of state
law requiring websites for independent special districts include: two cemetery districts (Cottonwood and Knights
Landing), one fire protection district (Elkhorn), and three Reclamation Districts (307, 730, and 765). Capay
Cemetery District also does not have a website, but has adopted a hardship resolution keeping it in compliance. 

Cities and County (5)
City and Yolo County content overall remained at a relatively high level in the low 90s, except for Winters which
dropped from 94% to 81% this year.

Special Districts (47)
Special district content is summarized by each district type below. The six districts that are not in compliance with
legal requirements (to either maintain a website or adopt a hardship resolution) generally are very small, volunteer-
run districts with no staff to maintain a website. 

Cemetery districts (6 total) remained consistently low, around 40%, because three cemetery districts (Capay,
Cottonwood and Knights Landing) do not have a website at all. Capay adopted a hardship resolution which
keeps them in compliance with state law at least. Davis achieved a 100% score, Winters a 94% score, and
Mary's a 52% score. 
Community Services Districts (4 total) content has consistently hovered in the mid-50s. Esparto CSD has a
95% transparency score, Madison has a 57% score, but Cacheville and Knights Landing CSDs are in the 30s. 
County Service Areas (7 total) content has remained high but declined from 97% in 2022 to 89% in 2024.
The Sacramento-Yolo Port District (1) content has declined over the years from 89% in 2022 to 78% in 2024.
But we're doing its municipal service review this year, so staff can reinforce this issue. 
The Yolo County Resource Conservation District (1) improved from 70% in 2022 to 83% in 2024.
Water districts (3 total) remain relatively consistent in the low 60s range, with a 60% average in 2024.
Fire protection districts (FPDs) (15 total, although only 5 are independent districts which require websites)

53



improved from 47% in 2022 to 56% in 2024. Two FPDs do not have a website at all (Elkhorn and No Man's
Land), but only Elkhorn FPD, as an independent district, is required to have one. 
Reclamation districts (10 total) content improved slightly from 32% in 2022 to 44% in 2024. Three RDs (RD
307, RD 730 and RD 765) do not have websites at all and are not in compliance with state website laws (i.e.
have not adopted hardship waivers).  

Joint Powers Authorities/Agencies (18)
Joint Powers Authorities/Agencies' (JPAs) content has stayed consistent at 55% for the last three years. Of the 18
total local JPAs tracked on the scorecard, five JPAs do not have websites at all. These JPAs are: Conaway Ranch,
Winters Branch Library Financing Authority, Winters Public Finance Authority, Woodland Finance Authority, and
Yolo County Public Agencies Financing Authority. However, there is no legal website requirement for JPAs.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-2024 Web Transparency Scorecard Report

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 02:55 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 02/10/2025 03:11 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/12/2025

54



Yolo Local Government 

2024 

 Website Transparency Scorecard

“ 

“A lack of transparency results in distrust and a deep sense of insecurity.” 

– Dalai Lama

“A democracy requires accountability and accountability requires transparency.” 

– President Barack Obama

February 27, 2025 

Item 12-ATT A

55



Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

2 

OVERVIEW 

Yolo County residents are likely unaware of all the various local agencies that serve them. The most 
common method for the public to obtain this information today is the internet. Residents should be able to 
easily find the description of services provided, the names and contact information of board members and 
management, the budget, agendas and minutes of meetings, and other information. An effective website 
presence can also benefit the agency by making resources available online and save staff time.  

In the fall of 2017, the cities and County requested LAFCo to begin preparing web transparency scorecards 
on an annual basis promoting a vision for open government and transparency for government agencies 
countywide (cities, County, special districts, and joint powers authorities), thereby fostering public trust and 
accountability. 

The checklist criteria are intended to establish a generally accepted minimum standard for transparency, 
i.e., it is not intended to be a “best website” contest. We acknowledge some of our larger agencies go far 
above and beyond these criteria for higher levels of public service and communication. The goal for smaller 
agencies is not necessarily to have a high score at the outset, but to set a baseline that will hopefully see 
improvement from year to year. 

WEBSITE CONTENT CHECKLIST 

The scorecard is based on the following criteria to be included on each agency’s website or webpage. 
These criteria were borrowed from the 2015-16 Marin Web Transparency Report Card prepared by the 
Marin County Grand Jury, which consolidated several well-respected organizations’ checklists1. LAFCo has 
adapted the checklist over the years to better suit Yolo’s local agencies.  

Below is the current checklist used for this report.  

1. Overview 

a. Description of services/functions: What actions does the agency undertake and what 
services does the agency provide?  

b. Boundary of service area: What specific area does the agency serve? (May not be 
applicable to all JPAs. If not, who (generally) or what agencies does the JPA serve?) 

2. Budget 

a. Budget for current fiscal year and three years prior to the current year. 

b. Financial reserves policy: What is the agency's policy for designated reserves and reserve 
funds? (The policy should be in either the agency policy manual or found in the budget or 
audit reports).  

3. Meetings 

a. Board meeting schedule: When and where specifically does the agency meet? 

b. Archive of Board meeting agendas & minutes for at least the last 6 months: Both approved 
minutes and past agendas  

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  

a. Board members (names, contact info, terms of office (terms do not apply to JPAs), 
compensation, and biography): Who specifically represents the public on the Board? How 
can the public contact them? When were they elected (or appointed)? How much do they 
earn in this role (as required by Assembly Bill 2040 effective January 1, 2015)?  

b. Election procedure and deadlines: If the public wishes to apply to be on the Board, how 
and when can they do so? (Does not apply to JPAs) 

c. Reimbursement and compensation policy: Which (if any) expenses incurred by the Board 
are reimbursed? Do the Board members receive compensation? 

 
1 Sunshine Review (now Ballotpedia), Illinois Policy 10-Point Transparency Checklist, Institute for Local Government, 
and the Special District Leadership Foundation. 

56



Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

3 

5. Administrative Officials 

a. General manager and key staff (names, contact info, compensation, and benefits): Who 
specifically runs the agency on a day-to-day basis? How can the public contact them? How 
much do they earn in this role (as required by Assembly Bill 2040 effective January 1, 
2015)? What specific benefits are they eligible for (healthcare, retirement plan, educational 
benefits, etc.)? 

6. Audits 

a. Current financial audit 

b. Financial audits for the three years prior to the current year2.  

7. Contracts 

a. Current request for proposal and bidding opportunities 

b. Instructions on how to submit a bid or proposal 

8. Public Records 

a. What is the best way for the public to request public records? 

9. Revenue Sources 

a. Summary of fees received: fees for services, if any.  

b. Summary of revenue sources: bonds, taxes, loans and/or grants. The public should be able 
to understand how the agency is funded, generally speaking. 

10. Agency Specific Criteria 

a. Municipalities: Downloadable permit applications and zoning ordinances 

b. Special Districts: Authorizing statute/enabling act (Principal Act or Special Act), board 
member ethics training certificates, link to the LAFCo website and any state agency 
providing oversight 

c. Joint Powers Authorities: A copy of the joint powers agreement as filed and adopted (with 
any updates) 

REVIEW AND SCORING PROCESS 

For ease and transparency of use, information for each agency should be found within a few “clicks”. 
Information that is buried in an agency's board minutes or on other websites not available in a click from 
the agency's website is not in the spirit of transparency. Long and complex PDF (Portable Document 
Format) documents, such as a budget or an audit report, must be text-searchable, and not simply a picture 
of a page of text, to easily find specific details. 

The scoring rubric was determined based on the number of points on the checklist for which the criteria 
was completely met. If an agency partially met the criteria, partial points were awarded, and the checklist 
was denoted with an "incomplete". LAFCo remains open to public and agency feedback about what items 
are working well and which are not.  

LAFCo provided initial outreach information at multiple times when the program started up in 2018 to make 
agencies aware of the new scorecard, the checklist and process to expect. Website demonstrations were 
held for special districts in person and via webinar (which was recorded and can still be viewed). Now that 
the program is up and running on a regular schedule, LAFCo sends all the agencies a courtesy letter each 
summer reminding agencies of scoring to occur in the fall and the website transparency scorecard after its 
finalized, typically in January.  

 
2 Audits are due to the State Controller’s Office following close of fiscal year as follows: for cities/county by the following 
March 31; special districts by the following June 30 unless a 2, 3 or 5-year interval has been approved by the County 
Auditor; and JPAs by the following June 30. 

57



Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

4 

LOCAL AGENCIES AND TRANSPARENCY SCORES 

There are 5 cities/county, 47 special districts (28 independent and 19 dependent districts), 18 local joint 
powers authorities, and LAFCo for a total of 70 local agencies included in this scorecard as listed below. 
Dependent districts may have a local advisory body (or in the case of many fire protection districts, Board 
of Supervisors authority delegated to a local fire commission), but ultimately answer to a city or county. 
Independent districts have locally elected or appointed boards for independent decision making.  

Every independent special district in California is required to either maintain a website by January 1, 2020, 
or adopt a hardship resolution annually. Senate Bill 929 added Government Code sections 6270.6 and 
53087.8. There is no legal requirement for dependent special districts and JPAs to maintain a website3.  

 
 

3 Shading indicates:  
• Red = district is not in compliance with SB 929 (i.e., it is independent, does not have a website, and has not 

filed a current adopted hardship resolution with LAFCo). 
• Yellow = district does not have a website but has adopted a hardship resolution, and therefore it is in 

compliance with SB 929.  
• Green = district does not have a website, but it’s not legally required.  

58



Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

5 

 

59



Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

6 

SCORECARD RESULTS  

The checklist criteria are intended to establish a generally accepted minimum standard for transparency. 
We acknowledge some of our larger agencies go far above and beyond these criteria for higher levels of 
public service and communication. The goal for smaller agencies is not necessarily to have a high score at 
the outset, but to set a baseline that will hopefully see improvement from year to year.  

CITIES/COUNTY 

The content for city and county websites remained at a high score across the board this year averaging 
96% in 2022, 92% in 2023, and 89% in 2024. 

SPECIAL DISTRICTS 

Although there’s been improvement since this process began, only 82% of Yolo’s independent special 
districts currently have a website (23 out of 28). Cemetery district content remained constant at a low 
average score of 41% (although Davis and Winters cemetery are quite high individually with both scoring 
100% and 94% respectively, and Mary’s cemetery scoring 52%, the other 3 cemetery districts score 0% so 
the average is low). The community services districts (CSDs) also remained consistent at 55% overall 
(Esparto CSD has a high score of 95% but the other three have midrange scores). The county service 
areas (CSAs) remain relatively consistent at 89%. The fire protection districts (FPDs) improved overall from 
47% in 2022 to 56% in 2024, likely in part due to their recent municipal services review. The port, resource 
conservation, water, and reclamation districts also remained at consistent levels as compared to the 
previous year.  

Special districts can be divided generally into two different categories: dependent and independent. 
Dependent districts are formed and may have a local advisory body, but ultimately answer to a city or 
county. Examples include the CSAs and some FPDs which can be formed either way. Independent districts 
have locally elected or appointed boards and make independent decisions (i.e., not subject to a city or 
county). Examples include CSDs, cemetery districts, reclamation districts, and water districts, among 
others. One reason why this is an important distinction is that legislation was passed in 2018 (SB 929 
McGuire) which requires independent special districts to have a website by January 1, 2020, or adopt a 
hardship resolution annually4. There are six (6) independent districts which are currently not in compliance 
with this law including 2 cemetery districts, 1 fire protection district, and 3 reclamation districts. 

JOINT POWERS AGENCIES/AUTHORITIES (JPAs) 

JPAs can take many varied forms. For the purposes of the Website Transparency Scorecard, LAFCo 
focused on the JPAs that operate locally as opposed to multi-county or statewide JPAs. Some of these 
local JPAs have an office with dedicated staff and others operate more as a “paper” JPA. As one might 
expect, the JPAs with dedicated staff and resources generally tend to have a website with more content 
while “paper” JPAs do not. Like the dependent districts, member agencies should work with “paper” JPAs 
to have a page on the agency website, such as the financing authorities. The joint powers 
agencies/authorities’ scorecards remained relatively consistent as compared to last year with an average 
score of 55%. 

WEBSITE RESOURCES 

Streamline web https://www.getstreamline.com/ offers a powerful, flexible content management system 
designed specifically for smaller local governments (used by Yolo LAFCo and several other districts and 
JPAs in the county) on a monthly fee, sliding scale based on agency budget.  

The Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF), a foundation arm of the California Special District 
Association (CSDA), provides scholarship funds for special districts to create their own website to comply 
with new requirements. Funding is available to districts either without a compliant website or no website at 

 
4 Senate Bill 929 added Government Code sections 6270.6 and 53087.8 

60

https://www.getstreamline.com/


Yolo LAFCo 
2024 Website Transparency Scorecard 

7 

all. Applications are evaluated on the 15th of each month until the funds are gone for the year. Follow this 
link to download the simple, one-page application: https://www.sdlf.org/scholarships/sdlf-scholarships. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Scorecard summaries by agency type 

B. Detailed scorecard for each agency 

C. Yolo Local Government Transparency and Accountability Program adopted fall 2017 

61

https://www.sdlf.org/scholarships/sdlf-scholarships


62



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Cities

Score: 90% Score: 92% Score: 81% Score: 93%
Overview P Overview P Overview X Overview P

Budget P Budget X Budget X Budget X

Meetings X Meetings X Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits X Audits P Audits X Audits X

Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P

Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P

County

Score: 90%
Overview P

Budget X

Meetings P

Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P

Contracts P

Public Records X

Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific P

City of Davis City of WoodlandCity of WintersCity of West Sacramento

County of Yolo

Attachment A

63



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Cemetery Districts

Score: 0% Score: 0% Score: 100% Score: 0% Score: 52%
Overview  Overview  Overview P Overview  Overview P

Budget  Budget  Budget P Budget  Budget 

Meetings  Meetings  Meetings P Meetings  Meetings P

Elected Officials  Elected Officials  Elected Officials P Elected Officials  Elected Officials X

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
X

Audits  Audits  Audits P Audits  Audits X

Contracts  Contracts  Contracts P Contracts  Contracts 

Public Records  Public Records  Public Records P Public Records  Public Records 

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific P Agency Specific  Agency Specific X

Score: 94%
Overview P

Budget X

Meetings P

Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P

Contracts P

Public Records P

Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific X

Community Service Districts (CSDs)

Score: 36% Score: 95% Score: 32% Score: 57%
Overview X Overview P Overview P Overview P

Budget X Budget P Budget  Budget 

Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials X Elected Officials P Elected Officials X Elected Officials X

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits  Audits P Audits  Audits 

Contracts  Contracts P Contracts  Contracts P

Public Records  Public Records P Public Records  Public Records 

Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources X

Agency Specific  Agency Specific X Agency Specific  Agency Specific X

Capay Cemetery District

Cacheville CSD

Cottonwood Cemetery 

District
Davis Cemetery District Mary's Cemetery District

Knights Landing Cemetery 

District

Esparto CSD Knights Landing CSD Madison CSD

Winters Cemetery District

NO Website (Hardship) NO Website (Non-Compliant) NO Website (Non-Compliant)

64



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

County Service Areas (CSAs)

Score: 95% Score: 97% Score: 97% Score: 97% Score: 80%
Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P

Budget X Budget X Budget X Budget X Budget X

Meetings X Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P Audits P Audits P Audits P Audits 

Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P

Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X

Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P

Score: 90% Score: 70%
Overview X Overview P

Budget X Budget 

Meetings X Meetings X

Elected Officials P Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P Audits 

Contracts P Contracts P

Public Records P Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X

Agency Specific P Agency Specific P

Wild Wings CSA Willowbank CSA

Dunnigan CSA Garcia Bend CSA North Davis Meadows CSA Snowball CSAEl Macero CSA

65



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Fire Protection Districts (FPDs)

Score: 90% Score: 63% Score: 27% Score: 55% Score: 0%
Overview P Overview P Overview X Overview X Overview 

Budget P Budget X Budget  Budget X Budget 

Meetings P Meetings P Meetings X Meetings P Meetings 

Elected Officials P Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials P Elected Officials 

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials


Audits P Audits X Audits  Audits  Audits 

Contracts P Contracts  Contracts  Contracts  Contracts 

Public Records P Public Records P Public Records  Public Records  Public Records 

Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources 

Agency Specific X Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific X Agency Specific 

Score: 28% Score: 64% Score: 45% Score: 0% Score: 89%
Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P

Budget  Budget X Budget X Budget X Budget X

Meetings X Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials X Elected Officials P Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits  Audits  Audits X Audits X Audits X

Contracts  Contracts  Contracts  Contracts  Contracts P

Public Records  Public Records P Public Records  Public Records  Public Records P

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific X Agency Specific X Agency Specific X Agency Specific X

Score: 41% Score: 61% Score: 90% Score: 93% Score: 95%
Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P

Budget X Budget X Budget P Budget X Budget P

Meetings X Meetings X Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
X

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits  Audits  Audits P Audits P Audits P

Contracts  Contracts  Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P

Public Records  Public Records P Public Records  Public Records P Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific X Agency Specific P Agency Specific X Agency Specific X

Esparto FPD Knights Landing FPD Madison FPD No Man's Land FPD

Capay Valley FPD Clarksburg FPD Dunnigan FPD East Davis FPD Elkhorn FPD

Zamora FPDWillow Oaks FPD Winters FPD Yolo FPD

Springlake FPD

West Plainfield FPD

NO Website (Non-Compliant)

NO Webpage 

66



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Reclamation Districts

Score: 89% Score: 0% Score: 21% Score: 0% Score: 0%
Overview P Overview  Overview P Overview  Overview 

Budget X Budget  Budget  Budget  Budget 

Meetings P Meetings  Meetings P Meetings  Meetings 

Elected Officials P Elected Officials  Elected Officials X Elected Officials  Elected Officials 

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Audits P Audits  Audits  Audits  Audits 

Contracts P Contracts  Contracts  Contracts  Contracts 

Public Records P Public Records  Public Records  Public Records  Public Records 

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources 

Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific 

Score: 33% Score: 92% Score: 95% Score: 84% Score: 23%
Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview P Overview X

Budget  Budget P Budget P Budget X Budget 

Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials X

Administrative 

Officials
X

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
X

Audits  Audits P Audits P Audits X Audits 

Contracts  Contracts P Contracts P Contracts P Contracts 

Public Records  Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P Public Records 

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources 

Agency Specific X Agency Specific X Agency Specific X Agency Specific X Agency Specific 

Score: 62%
Overview X

Budget 

Meetings X

Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits 

Contracts P

Public Records P

Revenue Sources X

Agency Specific X

KLRDD

Reclamation District 787 Reclamation District 999 Reclamation District 2035Reclamation District 900

Reclamation District 765

Reclamation District 1600

Reclamation District 150 Reclamation District 307 Reclamation District 537 Reclamation District 730

NO Website (Non-Compliant) NO Website (Non-Compliant) NO Website (Non-Compliant)

67



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Resource Conservation Districts

Score: 83%
Overview P

Budget X

Meetings P

Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P

Contracts P

Public Records P

Revenue Sources X

Agency Specific X

River Port Districts

Score: 78%
Overview P

Budget X

Meetings X

Elected Officials X

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P

Contracts P

Public Records P

Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific X

Water Districts

Score: 50% Score: 67%
Overview P Overview P

Budget  Budget X

Meetings X Meetings P

Elected Officials X Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits  Audits X

Contracts P Contracts 

Public Records P Public Records 

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific X

Dunnigan Water District YCFCWCD

Yolo-Sacramento Port 

District

Yolo County Resource 

Conservation District

68



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

Local JPAs (i.e. excludes multi-county or statewide JPAs)

Score: 0% Score: 93% Score: 66% Score: 10% Score: 97%
Overview  Overview P Overview X Overview P Overview P

Budget  Budget P Budget P Budget  Budget P

Meetings  Meetings P Meetings P Meetings  Meetings P

Elected Officials  Elected Officials P Elected Officials X Elected Officials  Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
X

Audits  Audits X Audits P Audits  Audits P

Contracts  Contracts P Contracts P Contracts  Contracts P

Public Records  Public Records P Public Records P Public Records  Public Records P

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific P Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific P

Score: 79% Score: 78% Score: 0% Score: 0% Score: 72%
Overview P Overview P Overview  Overview  Overview P

Budget X Budget  Budget  Budget  Budget P

Meetings P Meetings P Meetings  Meetings  Meetings X

Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials  Elected Officials  Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
X

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
X

Audits P Audits P Audits  Audits  Audits X

Contracts P Contracts P Contracts  Contracts  Contracts 

Public Records P Public Records P Public Records  Public Records  Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific P Agency Specific  Agency Specific  Agency Specific P

Score: 0% Score: 88% Score: 46% Score: 0% Score: 100%
Overview  Overview P Overview P Overview  Overview P

Budget  Budget P Budget  Budget  Budget P

Meetings  Meetings P Meetings ### Meetings  Meetings P

Elected Officials  Elected Officials X Elected Officials X Elected Officials  Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials


Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits  Audits P Audits  Audits  Audits P

Contracts  Contracts P Contracts P Contracts  Contracts P

Public Records  Public Records  Public Records P Public Records  Public Records P

Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources X Revenue Sources  Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific  Agency Specific P Agency Specific X Agency Specific  Agency Specific P

WSAFCA
West Sacramento Financing 

Authority

Winters Branch Library 

Financing Authority

Winters Public Finance 

Authority

Woodland-Davis Clean 

Water Agency

Woodland Finance 

Authority
Yolo County Law Library

Yolo County Public Agencies 

Financing Authority
YCPARMIA

Conaway Ranch

Yolo Animal Services 

Planning Agency

Davis Public Facilities 

Financing Authority

River City Regional Stadium 

Financing Authority
Riverfront

Valley Clean Energy 

Alliance
NO Website 

NO Webpage NO Webpage

NO WebpageNO Webpage

69



Yolo County Web Transparency Scorecards

JPAs (con't)

Score: 100% Score: 94% Score: 75%
Overview P Overview X Overview P

Budget P Budget X Budget X

Meetings P Meetings P Meetings P

Elected Officials P Elected Officials P Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P Audits P Audits 

Contracts P Contracts P Contracts 

Public Records P Public Records P Public Records P

Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific P Agency Specific P Agency Specific P

LAFCo

Score: 100%
Overview P

Budget P

Meetings P

Elected Officials P

Administrative 

Officials
P

Audits P

Contracts P

Public Records P

Revenue Sources P

Agency Specific P

Yolo LAFCo

YECA Yolo Habitat Conservancy
Yolo Subbasin Groundwater 

Agency

70



Agency Type Agency Name

Checklist 

Scores Notes Website?

Cities

City of Davis 90% www.cityofdavis.org

City of West Sacramento 92% www.cityofwestsacramento.org

City of Winters 81% www.cityofwinters.org

City of Woodland 93% www.cityofwoodland.org
County

County of Yolo 90% www.yolocounty.org

LAFCo

Yolo LAFCo 100% www.yololafco.org
Cemetery Districts

Capay Cemetery District 0% Hardship 2024 NO Website (Hardship expires Apr2025)

Cottonwood Cemetery District 0% Non-Compliant NO Website

Davis Cemetery District 100% www.daviscemetery.org

Knights Landing Cemetery District 0% Non-Compliant NO Website  

Mary's Cemetery District 52% www.maryscemetery.org
Winters Cemetery District 94% www.winterscemetery.org

Community Service Districts

Cacheville Community Services District 36% www.cacheville.specialdistrict.org
Esparto Community Services District 95% www.ecsd-ca.org

Knights Landing Community Services District 32% klcsd.specialdistrict.org
Madison Community Services District 57% www.madisoncsd.org

County Service Areas

Dunnigan County Service Area 95% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
El Macero County Service Area 97% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Garcia Bend County Service Area 97% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
North Davis Meadows County Service Area 97% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Snowball County Service Area #6 80% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Wild Wings County Service Area 90% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Willowbank County Service Area & Community Advisory Committee 70% yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa

Fire Protection Districts

Capay Valley Fire Protection District (Dependent) 90% cvfpd.specialdistrict.org
Clarksburg Fire Protection District 63% clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org
Dunnigan Fire Protection District (Dependent) 27% dunniganfire.com
East Davis Fire Protection District (Dependent) 55% eastdavisfiredistrict.com
Elkhorn Fire Protection District 0% Non-Compliant NO Website 

Esparto Fire Protection District (Dependent) 28% www.espartofire.org
Knights Landing Fire Protection District (Dependent) 64% knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org
Madison Fire Protection District 45% www.madison-fire.com
No Man's Land Fire Protection District (Dependent) 0% NO Webpage  

Springlake Fire Protection District (Dependent) 89% www.springlakefpd.org
West Plainfield Fire Protection District (Dependent) 41% www.wpfd.net
Willow Oak Fire Protection District (Dependent) 61% www.willowoakfire.com
Winters Fire Protection District (Dependent) 90% www.wintersfire.org

Yolo Fire Protection District 93% www.yolofpd.org
Zamora Fire Protection District 95% zamorafire.specialdistrict.org

71

https://www.cityofdavis.org/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/
http://www.cityofwinters.org/
https://www.cityofwoodland.org/
https://www.yolocounty.org/
https://www.yololafco.org/
http://www.daviscemetery.org/
https://www.maryscemetery.org/
https://www.winterscemetery.org/
https://www.cacheville.specialdistrict.org/
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/
https://www.madisoncsd.org/
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/
https://dunniganfire.com/
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/
https://www.espartofire.org/
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/
https://www.madison-fire.com/
https://www.springlakefpd.org/
https://www.wpfd.net/
http://www.willowoakfire.com/
http://www.wintersfire.org/
https://www.yolofpd.org/
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/


Reclamation Districts

Reclamation District 108 n/a rd108.org
Reclamation District 150 89% www.rd150.com
Reclamation District 307 0% Non-Compliant NO Website

Reclamation District 537 21% rd537.specialdistrict.org
Reclamation District 730 0% Non-Compliant NO Website

Reclamation District 765 0% Non-Compliant NO Website

Reclamation District 787 33% www.rd-787.org
Reclamation District 900 (subsidiary to WSac) 92% www.rd900.org
Reclamation District 999 95% rd999.org
Reclamation District 1600 84% rd1600.specialdistrict.org
Reclamation District 2035 23% rd2035.specialdistrict.org
Reclamation District 2068 n/a

Reclamation District 2093 n/a

Knights Landing Ridge Drainage District 62% www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district

River Port District

Sac-Yolo Port District 78% www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Resource Conservation District

Yolo County Resource Conservation District 83% yolorcd.org
Water Districts

Dunnigan Water District 50% www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district

Yolo County Flood Control & Water Conservation District 67% www.ycfcwcd.org
Joint Powers Authorities

Conaway Ranch (County) 0% NO Website

Davis Public Facilities Financing Authority 93% www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
River City Regional Stadium Financing Authority (West Sacramento) 66% https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
Riverfront (West Sacramento) 10% www.riverfrontstreetcar.com/

Valley Clean Energy Alliance 97% valleycleanenergy.org/

West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency (WSAFCA) 79% www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
West Sacramento Public Financing Authority 78% https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
Winters Branch Library Financing Authority (County) 0% NO Webpage

Winters Public Finance Authority 0% NO Webpage

Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency 72% www.wdcwa.com

Woodland Finance Authority 0% NO Webpage

Yolo Animal Services Planning Agency (County) 88% www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/animal-services-working-group/yolo-animal-services-planning-agency-jpa
Yolo County Law Library 46% www.yololawlibrary.org
Yolo County Public Agencies Financing Authority (County) 0% NO Webpage

Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority 100% www.ycparmia.org

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) 100% www.yolo911.org

Yolo Habitat Conservancy 94% www.yolohabitatconservancy.org

Yolo Subbasin Groundwater Agency 75% www.yologroundwater.org

72

https://rd108.org/
https://www.rd150.com/
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/
https://www.rd-787.org/
https://www.rd900.org/
https://rd999.org/
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/
https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/
http://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://yolorcd.org/
http://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district/
https://www.ycfcwcd.org/
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
http://www.riverfrontstreetcar.com/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.wdcwa.com/
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/animal-services-working-group/yolo-animal-services-planning-agency-jpa
http://www.yololawlibrary.org/
http://www.ycparmia.org/
https://www.yolo911.org/
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/
https://www.yologroundwater.org/


Audit completed: (10/03/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/about-davis/government
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/about-davis/location-and-topography
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budgetshown in budget

Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 3.5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings/minutesLast Minutes posted 09.01.24

Total 8.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-clerk/elections
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-manager-s-office/staff-directory
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafrLast CAFR FY20/21

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 2 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafrOpenGov FY21/22

Total 2

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://cityofdavisca.nextrequest.com/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/fee-schedules
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Municipalities  (10 points)

a. Downloadable Permit Applications (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/community-development-and-sustainability/building
b. Zoning Ordnances (5 pts) 5 https://ecode360.com/45134446#45134446
Total 10

Total Score 90

City of Davis

Attachment B

73

https://www.cityofdavis.org/about-davis/government
https://www.cityofdavis.org/about-davis/location-and-topography
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings/minutes
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-clerk/elections
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-manager-s-office/staff-directory
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
https://cityofdavisca.nextrequest.com/
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/fee-schedules
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/community-development-and-sustainability/building
https://ecode360.com/45134446#45134446


Audit completed: (10/03/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/about-the-city
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/services/gis-maps
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 Could not find

Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council/city-council-meetings-agendas

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council/city-council-meetings-agendas

No access to approved signed 

minutes, only drafts attached to 

agenda packets.

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk-s-office/election-information
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ecode360.com/43198432#431984322.04.080 Compensation

Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/contact-us
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/book-of-fees
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Municipalities  (10 points)

a. Downloadable Permit Applications (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/community-development/building-division
b. Zoning Ordnances (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/community-development/code-enforcement
Total 10

Total Score 92

City of West Sacramento

74

https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/about-the-city
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/services/gis-maps
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council/city-council-meetings-agendas
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council/city-council-meetings-agendas
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/city-council
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk-s-office/election-information
https://ecode360.com/43198432#43198432
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/contact-us
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/book-of-fees
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/community-development/building-division
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/community-development/code-enforcement


Audit completed: (10/08/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/27/Government
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/27/GovernmentNo map, just description

Total 8

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/FinanceLast budget FY21/22

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/194/Meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwinters.org/237/Elections
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwinters.org/directory.aspx
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/FinanceLast audit 2022

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
Total 3.33

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/Bids.aspx
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/Bids.aspx
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwinters.org/FormCenter/City-Hall-5/Public-Records-Request-Intake-46
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/217/Fee-Schedule
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Municipalities  (10 points)

a. Downloadable Permit Applications (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwinters.org/FormCenter/Community-Development-9/Building-Permit-Application-77
b. Zoning Ordnances (5 pts) 5 https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Winters/#!/Winters17/Winters17.html
Total 10

Total Score 81

City of Winters

75

https://www.cityofwinters.org/27/Government
https://www.cityofwinters.org/27/Government
https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
https://www.cityofwinters.org/194/Meetings
https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
https://www.cityofwinters.org/237/Elections
https://www.cityofwinters.org/178/City-Council
https://www.cityofwinters.org/directory.aspx
https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
https://www.cityofwinters.org/Bids.aspx
https://www.cityofwinters.org/Bids.aspx
https://www.cityofwinters.org/FormCenter/City-Hall-5/Public-Records-Request-Intake-46
https://www.cityofwinters.org/217/Fee-Schedule
https://www.cityofwinters.org/214/Finance
https://www.cityofwinters.org/FormCenter/Community-Development-9/Building-Permit-Application-77
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Winters/#!/Winters17/Winters17.html


Audit completed: (10/08/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/101/Departments
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/740/Transparency-in-GovernmentMap Library

Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
No Current FY24/25 Budget. Link 

shows FY23/24

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/742/Financial-Transparency
Total 8.33

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/608/City-Council
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/654/Meetings-Agendas
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/608/City-Council
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/683/Elections
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ecode360.com/43941076#43941076
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/Directory.aspx
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-ReportsLast Audit FYE 2022

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
Total 5

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/658/RFQ-RFP-Bid-Opportunities
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/658/RFQ-RFP-Bid-Opportunities
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/730/Public-Records-Request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/DocumentCenter/View/426/Fee-Schedule-PDF
Hard to find. Had to use "Search 

our Site"

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reportsshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Municipalities  (10 points)

a. Downloadable Permit Applications (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/565/Application-Forms-and-Common-Permit-Type
b. Zoning Ordnances (5 pts) 5 https://ecode360.com/43948922#43948922
Total 10

Total Score 93

City of Woodland

76

https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/101/Departments
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/740/Transparency-in-Government
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/742/Financial-Transparency
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/608/City-Council
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/654/Meetings-Agendas
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/608/City-Council
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/683/Elections
https://ecode360.com/43941076#43941076
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/Directory.aspx
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/658/RFQ-RFP-Bid-Opportunities
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/658/RFQ-RFP-Bid-Opportunities
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/730/Public-Records-Request
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/DocumentCenter/View/426/Fee-Schedule-PDF
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/164/Financial-Reports
https://www.cityofwoodland.gov/565/Application-Forms-and-Common-Permit-Type
https://ecode360.com/43948922#43948922


Audit completed: (10/10/24 ) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/innovation-and-technology-services/geographical-information-system/use-gis
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/budget-finance
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 cannot find

Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/board-calendar
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/board-meetings/board-of-supervisors-meeting-agendas-minutes
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ace.yolocounty.gov/35/Elections
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 5 https://ace.yolocounty.gov/31/Clerk-RecorderClerk/Recorder's Office only

Total 5

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/business/county-fees
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/budget-finance
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Municipalities  (10 points)

a. Downloadable Permit Applications (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/business/permits
b. Zoning Ordnances (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/planning-division/zoning-code
Total 10

Total Score 90

County of Yolo

77

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/innovation-and-technology-services/geographical-information-system/use-gis
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/budget-finance
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/board-calendar
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/board-meetings/board-of-supervisors-meeting-agendas-minutes
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors
https://ace.yolocounty.gov/35/Elections
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://ace.yolocounty.gov/31/Clerk-Recorder
https://www.yolocounty.gov/business/county-fees
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/budget-finance
https://www.yolocounty.gov/business/permits
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/planning-division/zoning-code


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Hardship Reso 01-202

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Capay Cemetery District

78



Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle (FYE2019-2023))

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Cottonwood Cemetery District

79



Audit completed: (10/10/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/burial-options/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/home/showdocument?id=6857
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/budget-reserve-policy/
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/district-transparency/
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 http://daviscemetery.org/davis-cemetery-staff/
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (3 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/procurement/
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/procurement/
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 http://daviscemetery.org/make-a-request/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/pricelist/
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
Total 10

Total Score 100

Davis Cemetery District

80

http://daviscemetery.org/burial-options/
https://www.yolocounty.gov/home/showdocument?id=6857
http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
http://daviscemetery.org/budget-reserve-policy/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/district-transparency/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/davis-cemetery-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
http://daviscemetery.org/procurement/
http://daviscemetery.org/procurement/
http://daviscemetery.org/make-a-request/
http://daviscemetery.org/pricelist/
http://daviscemetery.org/district-budget/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/
http://daviscemetery.org/cemetery-board-of-trustees-staff/


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Knights Landing Cemetery District

81



Audit completed: (10/10/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
Total 7

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administrationLast audit FY2019 (5 year cycle?)

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administrationPosted FYE 2018 & 2017

Total 5

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/burials/burial-fees
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/administrationshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.maryscemetery.org/burials
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 52

Mary's Cemetery District

82

https://www.maryscemetery.org/
https://www.maryscemetery.org/
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/burials/burial-fees
https://www.maryscemetery.org/administration
https://www.maryscemetery.org/burials


Audit completed: (10/10/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.winterscemetery.org/current-year-budgetLast Budget Posted FY23/24

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/winters-cemetery-district-reserve-policy
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-appointees
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.winterscemetery.org/winters-cemetery-reimbursement-policy
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.winterscemetery.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/audits-completed
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/audits-completed
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/contracts-and-bids
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/contracts-and-bids
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.winterscemetery.org/public-records-request-policy-of-winters-cemetery-district
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/services
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/current-year-budget
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.winterscemetery.org/public-cemetery-districts-principle-enabling-act
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 https://www.winterscemetery.org/required-training-certificatesAll outdated

Total 5

Total Score 94

Winters Cemetery District

83

https://www.winterscemetery.org/services
https://www.winterscemetery.org/service-area-map
https://www.winterscemetery.org/current-year-budget
https://www.winterscemetery.org/winters-cemetery-district-reserve-policy
https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-meetings
https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-meetings
https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-members
https://www.winterscemetery.org/board-appointees
https://www.winterscemetery.org/winters-cemetery-reimbursement-policy
https://www.winterscemetery.org/staff
https://www.winterscemetery.org/audits-completed
https://www.winterscemetery.org/audits-completed
https://www.winterscemetery.org/contracts-and-bids
https://www.winterscemetery.org/contracts-and-bids
https://www.winterscemetery.org/public-records-request-policy-of-winters-cemetery-district
https://www.winterscemetery.org/services
https://www.winterscemetery.org/current-year-budget
https://www.winterscemetery.org/public-cemetery-districts-principle-enabling-act
https://www.winterscemetery.org/required-training-certificates


Audit completed: (10/10/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map-2133d5e0-c501-4526-969c-542cf09244f6
Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-2023-budgetNo current FY 24/25 budget 

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 2.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings

Agenda/Minutes should be in PDF. 

Final approved minutes must be 

signed.

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-members
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/2023-financial-auditNo link for FYE 2023 audit

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-audits-historyLast Audit FYs15-19 (5-yr.Cycle?)

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-2023-budgetshown in budget

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 36

Cacheville CSD

84

https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map-2133d5e0-c501-4526-969c-542cf09244f6
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-2023-budget
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/2023-financial-audit
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-audits-history
https://cacheville.specialdistrict.org/cacheville-2023-budget


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-meetingsDo you meet at a specific time?

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/agendas-minutes-resolutions
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/personnel
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/audit-reports
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/audit-reports
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/current-projects
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/current-projects
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/sb-272-california-public-records-act
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/rates-and-policies
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members3 certs expired/2 do not have one

Total 5

Total Score 95

Esparto CSD

85

https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-meetings
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/agendas-minutes-resolutions
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/personnel
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/audit-reports
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/audit-reports
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/current-projects
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/current-projects
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/sb-272-california-public-records-act
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/rates-and-policies
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/budgets
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/about-us
https://www.ecsd-ca.org/board-members


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 4.25 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetingsLast minutes posted Aug2024

Total 9.25

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 2.66 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-members

Does the Board receive 

compensation? Suggest adding that 

to this page. No bio

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-informationLast posting on this site was 2022

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information
Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 32

Knights Landing CSD

86

https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/services
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/staff
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information
https://klcsd.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/agendas-minutes
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.madisoncsd.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.madisoncsd.org/compensation
Total 7

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.madisoncsd.org/personnel
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.madisoncsd.org/audit-reportsNone

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://www.madisoncsd.org/audit-reportsLast audit FYE 2016

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/current-projects
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/current-projects
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/rates-and-policies
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 57

Madison CSD

87

https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us
https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us
https://www.madisoncsd.org/board-meetings
https://www.madisoncsd.org/agendas-minutes
https://www.madisoncsd.org/board-members
https://www.madisoncsd.org/compensation
https://www.madisoncsd.org/personnel
https://www.madisoncsd.org/audit-reports
https://www.madisoncsd.org/audit-reports
https://www.madisoncsd.org/current-projects
https://www.madisoncsd.org/current-projects
https://www.madisoncsd.org/rates-and-policies
https://www.madisoncsd.org/about-us


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa/dunnigan-csa-financial-informationMissing FYs 23/24 & 24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa/dunnigan-csa-financial-information
Total 7.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
Meet as needed. No meetings held 

since 2013

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csaNo minutes

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
b. Last 3 years? (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 95

Dunnigan CSA

88

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa/dunnigan-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa/dunnigan-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/dunnigan-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-informationMissing FYs 23/24 & 24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-information
Total 7.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-charges
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-information
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 97

El Macero CSA

89

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/staff-directory
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-charges
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/el-macero-csa/el-macero-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csaMissing FYs 23/24 & 24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
Total 7.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 n/a No advisory committee

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 n/a No advisory committee

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 n/a No advisory committee

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 n/a No advisory committee

Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 97

Garcia Bend CSA

90

https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/garcia-bend-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa


Audit completed: (10/14/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa-financial-informationMissing FYs 23/24 & 24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 7.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa-charges
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 97

North Davis Meadows CSA

91

https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa-charges
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/north-davis-meadows-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 n/a No advisory committee

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 n/a No advisory committee

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 n/a No advisory committee

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 n/a No advisory committee

Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publicationsno info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publicationsno info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 80

Snowball CSA #6

92

https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/financial-services/publications
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/snowball-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 4 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csaReplace map to show 2022 version

Total 9

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-informationMissing FY 2024/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
Where, when, how often are 

meetings

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
Not consistent w/posting final 

minutes

Total 2.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-charges
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 90

Wildwings CSA

93

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-charges
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa/wild-wings-csa-financial-information
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/wild-wings-csa


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123Can't access govAccess

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123Can't access govAccess

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Where, when, how often are 

meetings

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Total 5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123Can't access govAccess

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123Can't access govAccess

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123Can't access govAccess

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 n/a Does not apply to CSAs

Total 10

Total Score 70

Willowbank CSA & CAC

94

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123
https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123
https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/public-works-division/rfp-rfq-ifb-bid-results
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa
https://www.yolocounty.gov/Admin/LogOn?ReturnUrl=%2fAdmin%2fComponents%2fPage%2fEditDesign%3fnavid%3d1123&navid=1123
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/county-administrator/county-service-areas-csa/willowbank-csa


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/cvfpd-budget
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fire-protection-district-reserve-policy
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/fire-personnel
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fpd-financial-audits
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fpd-financial-audits
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/guidelines-for-access-to-public-records-california-public-records-act-government-code-section-6250-et-seq
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/building-standards-in-capay-valley-and-contractor-resources
No info. Do you have fees for 

services? Taxes? Assessments?

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/cvfpd-budgetshown in budget

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-member-ethics-training2 certs expired/3 missing

Total 5

Total Score 90

Capay Valley FPD (D)

95

https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/services
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/cvfpd-budget
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fire-protection-district-reserve-policy
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/fire-personnel
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fpd-financial-audits
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/capay-valley-fpd-financial-audits
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/guidelines-for-access-to-public-records-california-public-records-act-government-code-section-6250-et-seq
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/building-standards-in-capay-valley-and-contractor-resources
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/cvfpd-budget
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/board-member-ethics-training


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/district-boundaries
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/current-budgetNo current/Only 2 of 3 prior

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 2.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 2.5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-membersno terms/bio

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
Total 6

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/most-recent-independent-audit
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/most-recent-independent-auditno info

Total 5

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information-d3525b5
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/current-budgetshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 63

Clarksburg FPD (I)

96

https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/services
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/district-boundaries
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/current-budget
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/staff
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/most-recent-independent-audit
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/most-recent-independent-audit
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information-d3525b5
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/current-budget


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.dunniganfire.com/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-meetings

no info. How often, date, time, 

place, etc. of meetings should be 

posted at the top of this page

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-meetings
Total 5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.dunniganfire.com/financial
Total 7

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.dunniganfire.com/personnel
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. review cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 https://www.dunniganfire.com/district-financial-informationinfo is old (2022)

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 https://www.dunniganfire.com/district-financial-informationinfo is old (2022)

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 27

Dunnigan FPD (D)

97

https://www.dunniganfire.com/about-us
https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-meetings
https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-meetings
https://www.dunniganfire.com/board-members
https://www.dunniganfire.com/financial
https://www.dunniganfire.com/personnel
https://www.dunniganfire.com/district-financial-information
https://www.dunniganfire.com/district-financial-information


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 4 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/district-boundary-and-sphere-of-influencemap is outdated

Total 4

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 1.25 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/2024-25-budget-and-reserve-requirementsOnly FY24/25 posted

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/reserve-guidlines
Total 6.25

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-meetingsWhere are meetings held?

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-membersinfo located on pdf attachment

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/district-compensation
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 n/a No staff/Board members only

Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/links
Are 1985 Assessment fees still in 

effect?

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/2024-25-budget-and-reserve-requirementsshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/links
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 55

East Davis FPD (D)

98

https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/district-boundary-and-sphere-of-influence
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/2024-25-budget-and-reserve-requirements
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/reserve-guidlines
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-meetings
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-meetings
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-members
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/board-members
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/district-compensation
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/links
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/2024-25-budget-and-reserve-requirements
https://www.eastdavisfiredistrict.com/links


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities? (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Elkhorn FPD (I)

99



Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.espartofire.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.espartofire.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 https://www.espartofire.org/board-meetings
Date, time, place, meetings are 

held?

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.espartofire.org/board-meetings
Total 5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.espartofire.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.espartofire.org/contact-us
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 28

Esparto FPD (D)

100

https://www.espartofire.org/services
https://www.espartofire.org/service-area-map
https://www.espartofire.org/board-meetings
https://www.espartofire.org/board-meetings
https://www.espartofire.org/board-members
https://www.espartofire.org/contact-us


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/services-504018b
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-informationNo current info for FY24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 3.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/how-to-apply-to-be-a-member-of-the-knights-landing-fire-protection-district
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. review cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request-policy-of-knights-landing-fire-protection-district
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-informationshown in budget

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/state-law-governing-fire-protection-districts
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 64

Knights Landing FPD (D)

101

https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/services-504018b
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/how-to-apply-to-be-a-member-of-the-knights-landing-fire-protection-district
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/staff
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request-policy-of-knights-landing-fire-protection-district
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/district-financial-information
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/state-law-governing-fire-protection-districts


Audit completed: (10/15/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-emergency-response-services-assessment
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 1.25 https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-emergency-response-services-assessmentFY 23/24 only

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 1.25

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/board-meetingstime of meetings?

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/board-meetingsTimely postings of minutes

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.madison-fire.com/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.madison-fire.com/madison-fire-department-firefighters
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.madison-fire.com/2019-2020-2021-district-auditLast Audit FYE 2021

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/2019-2020-2021-district-audit
Total 5

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 45

Madison FPD (I)

102

https://www.madison-fire.com/services
https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-emergency-response-services-assessment
https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-emergency-response-services-assessment
https://www.madison-fire.com/board-meetings
https://www.madison-fire.com/board-meetings
https://www.madison-fire.com/board-members
https://www.madison-fire.com/madison-fire-department-firefighters
https://www.madison-fire.com/2019-2020-2021-district-audit
https://www.madison-fire.com/2019-2020-2021-district-audit
https://www.madison-fire.com/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. review cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions? (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

No Man's Land FPD (D)

103



Audit completed: (10/16/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us
Map outdated. Suggest changing to 

2022 district map

Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparencyMissing FY24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparencyMissing 2023

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
Total 5

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
Financial Transaction Report-2022

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparencyshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us
Suggest adding current FPD Gov. 

Code Section number to page.

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 89

Springlake FPD (D)

104

https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us
https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-meetings
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-meetings
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
https://www.springlakefpd.org/board-members
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
https://www.springlakefpd.org/contact
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/transparency
https://www.springlakefpd.org/about_us


Audit completed: (10/16/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/district-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reports
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 3 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-meetingsSporadic on minutes

Total 8

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 2.66 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/staff
Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info 

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info 

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reportsshown in budget

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reportsshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 41

West Plainfield FPD (D)

105

https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/services
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/district-map
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reports
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-meetings
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-meetings
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/board-members
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/staff
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reports
https://www.westplainfieldfire.gov/budgets-and-other-financial-reports


Audit completed: (10/16/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/about
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financials
Missing 2 yrs.-FY24/25 missing 

revenue-FY23/24 not signed

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 2.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-meetingsno minutes

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-of-commissioners
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/election-procedures
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 7

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/public-records-request-policy-of-willow-oak-fire-protection-district
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 3 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financialsoutdated-2022

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 3 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financialsoutdated-2022

Total 6

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/advisory-bodies/special-district-directory/fire-protection-districts
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 3 https://www.willowoakfire.gov/ab1234Missing 2 of 5

Total 8

Total Score 61

Willow Oak FPD (D)

106

https://www.willowoakfire.gov/about
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/service-area-map
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financials
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-meetings
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-meetings
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/board-of-commissioners
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/election-procedures
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/staff
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/public-records-request-policy-of-willow-oak-fire-protection-district
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financials
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/financials
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/board-of-supervisors/advisory-bodies/special-district-directory/fire-protection-districts
https://www.willowoakfire.gov/ab1234


Audit completed: (10/16/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwinters.org/Directory.aspx?did=17
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/277/Current-RFPs-Bidding-Information
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/277/Current-RFPs-Bidding-Information
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
Total 10

Total Score 90

Winters FPD (D)

107

https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings
https://www.cityofwinters.org/Directory.aspx?did=17
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/277/Current-RFPs-Bidding-Information
https://www.wintersfire.org/277/Current-RFPs-Bidding-Information
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/275/WFPD-Financial-Information-Reserve-Polic
https://www.wintersfire.org/274/Winters-Fire-Protection-District
https://www.wintersfire.org/276/Commissioner-Board-Meetings


Audit completed: (10/16/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/services
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/budgets
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolofpd.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolofpd.org/elections
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolofpd.org/compensation
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolofpd.org/staffing-4d9e39e
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/financial-auditsLast Audit FY end 2021

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/financial-audits
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/proposals-and-bidding-opportunities
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/proposals-and-bidding-opportunities
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolofpd.org/public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/benefit-assessmentAre 1997 fees still used?

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/district-financial-informationshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points) 5

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolofpd.org/foundation-of-district-1939
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 3.33 https://www.yolofpd.org/training-certificatesMissing 1 of 3

Total 8.33

Total Score 93

Yolo FPD (I)

108

https://www.yolofpd.org/services
https://www.yolofpd.org/services
https://www.yolofpd.org/budgets
https://www.yolofpd.org/board-meetings
https://www.yolofpd.org/board-meetings
https://www.yolofpd.org/board-members
https://www.yolofpd.org/elections
https://www.yolofpd.org/compensation
https://www.yolofpd.org/staffing-4d9e39e
https://www.yolofpd.org/financial-audits
https://www.yolofpd.org/financial-audits
https://www.yolofpd.org/proposals-and-bidding-opportunities
https://www.yolofpd.org/proposals-and-bidding-opportunities
https://www.yolofpd.org/public-records-request
https://www.yolofpd.org/benefit-assessment
https://www.yolofpd.org/district-financial-information
https://www.yolofpd.org/foundation-of-district-1939
https://www.yolofpd.org/training-certificates


Audit completed: (10/17/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/district-budgets
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/zamora-fire-protection-district-reserve-policy
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/zamora-fire-protection-district-reimbursement-policy
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (5 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/financial-audits
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/financial-audits
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/proposals-bidding-opportunities
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/proposals-bidding-opportunities
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/document-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/revenue-sources
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/revenue-sources
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-member-certificates2 of 5, both expired

Total 5

Total Score 95

Zamora FPD (I)

109

https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/about-us
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/service-area-map
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/district-budgets
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/zamora-fire-protection-district-reserve-policy
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/zamora-fire-protection-district-reimbursement-policy
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/staff
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/financial-audits
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/financial-audits
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/proposals-bidding-opportunities
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/proposals-bidding-opportunities
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/document-request
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/revenue-sources
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/revenue-sources
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/fire-protection-districts-principle-enabling-act
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/board-member-certificates


Audit completed: (10/17/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/no info since FY 21-23 CIP Budget

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 2.5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473no minutes

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 78

Yolo Sacramento Port District

110

https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/port-commission-1473
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents/-fsiteid-1#!/
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/port-of-west-sacramento


Audit completed: (10/17/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/history
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.rd150.com/financialsMissing FY24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/financials
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd150.com/services
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd150.com/services
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd150.com/services
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd150.com/services
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/financials
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/financials
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/resources
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/resources
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd150.com/contact
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/financials
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd150.com/financials
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 https://www.rd150.com/servicesExpired

Total 0

Total Score 89

Reclamation District 150

111

https://www.rd150.com/
https://www.rd150.com/history
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/meetings
https://www.rd150.com/meetings
https://www.rd150.com/services
https://www.rd150.com/services
https://www.rd150.com/services
https://www.rd150.com/services
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/resources
https://www.rd150.com/resources
https://www.rd150.com/contact
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/financials
https://www.rd150.com/services


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Reclamation District 307

112



Audit completed: (10/17/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/district-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 1.33 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-of-trusteesNo contact, terms, compensation

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 1

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0 https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/staffno info

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 21

Reclamation District 537

113

https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/services
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/district-map
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/board-of-trustees
https://rd537.specialdistrict.org/staff


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities? (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Reclamation District 730

114



Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes: Non-Compliant

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 0

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 0

b. Last 3 years? (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Reclamation District 765

115



Audit completed: (10/17/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd-787.org/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd-787.org/district-maps
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd-787.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd-787.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 1.33 https://www.rd-787.org/board-membersNo contact info, terms, bio

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd-787.org/board-members
Total 5

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://www.rd-787.org/district-staffCompensation/benefits?

Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years? (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 3 https://www.rd-787.org/about-us
Suggest adding authorizing statute 

(GC section)

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

Total Score 33

Reclamation District 787

116

https://www.rd-787.org/about-us
https://www.rd-787.org/district-maps
https://www.rd-787.org/board-meetings
https://www.rd-787.org/board-meetings
https://www.rd-787.org/board-members
https://www.rd-787.org/board-members
https://www.rd-787.org/district-staff
https://www.rd-787.org/about-us


Audit completed: (10/18/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/about-us
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/reclamation-district-900-boundary-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/reclamation-district-900-reserve-policy
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd900.org/board-of-trustees
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd900.org/board-of-trustees
Total 7

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd900.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/rfb-s-rfp-s-rfq-s
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/rfb-s-rfp-s-rfq-s
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd900.org/public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/property-assessment
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financialsshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd900.org/rd-900-authorizing-act-1911
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 92

Reclamation District 900

117

https://www.rd900.org/about-us
https://www.rd900.org/reclamation-district-900-boundary-map
https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
https://www.rd900.org/reclamation-district-900-reserve-policy
https://www.rd900.org/board-meetings
https://www.rd900.org/board-meetings
https://www.rd900.org/board-of-trustees
https://www.rd900.org/board-of-trustees
https://www.rd900.org/staff
https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
https://www.rd900.org/rfb-s-rfp-s-rfq-s
https://www.rd900.org/rfb-s-rfp-s-rfq-s
https://www.rd900.org/public-records-request
https://www.rd900.org/property-assessment
https://www.rd900.org/archive-district-financials
https://www.rd900.org/rd-900-authorizing-act-1911


Audit completed: (10/18/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/meetings-2/
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/meetings-2/Final minutes should be signed

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://rd999.org/contact/
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://rd999.org/contact/
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 http://rd999.org/contact/
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 http://rd999.org/contact/
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/contracts/
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/contracts/
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 http://rd999.org/public-records-request/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/revenue-sources/
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/revenue-sources/
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 http://rd999.org/history/
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 http://rd999.org/contact/ 3 of 3 certificates expired

Total 5

Total Score 95

Reclamation District 999

118

http://rd999.org/
http://rd999.org/
http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
http://rd999.org/meetings-2/
http://rd999.org/meetings-2/
http://rd999.org/contact/
http://rd999.org/contact/
http://rd999.org/contact/
http://rd999.org/contact/
http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
http://rd999.org/financials-audits/
http://rd999.org/contracts/
http://rd999.org/contracts/
http://rd999.org/public-records-request/
http://rd999.org/revenue-sources/
http://rd999.org/revenue-sources/
http://rd999.org/history/
http://rd999.org/contact/


Audit completed: (10/18/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/services
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/budgets
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/reclamation-district-1600-est-1913-reserve-policy
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-members
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/rd1600-election-process-and-deadlines
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/reclamation-district-1600-est-1913-reimbursement-policy
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/auditsNo current. Last audit FYs19&20

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 3.33 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/audits
Total 3.33

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s-bidding
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s-bidding
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request-policy-of-reclamation-district-1600-est-1913
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/revenue-services
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/revenue-services
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 1.66 https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/ethics-training-certificate1 of 3 certificates

Total 1.66

Total Score 84

Reclamation District 1600

119

https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/services
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/services
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/budgets
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/reclamation-district-1600-est-1913-reserve-policy
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/rd1600-election-process-and-deadlines
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/reclamation-district-1600-est-1913-reimbursement-policy
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/staff
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/audits
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/audits
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s-bidding
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/current-rfp-s-bidding
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/public-records-request-policy-of-reclamation-district-1600-est-1913
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/revenue-services
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/revenue-services
https://rd1600.specialdistrict.org/ethics-training-certificate


Audit completed: (10/18/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/services

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0
No info. Suggest adding the LAFCo 

Boundary Map.

Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings

Meeting dates typed in are for 

2020. Suggest removing this info 

entirely and adding time & place of 

meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3 https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-members
no compensation (term expired on 

Angelo Christie)

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/staff

No compensation, benefits. 

Suggest adding link to 

publicpay.ca.gov
Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 23

Reclamation District 2035

120

https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/services
https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/board-members
https://rd2035.specialdistrict.org/staff


Audit completed: (10/18/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0
No map/description. Suggest 

adding the LAFCo Boundary Map

Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/klrdd-board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.rd108.org/klrdd-board-meetingsMinutes should be posted

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
b. Submittal Instructions? (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd108.org/public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 62

Knights Landing Ridge Drainage District

121

https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
https://www.rd108.org/klrdd-board-meetings
https://www.rd108.org/klrdd-board-meetings
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district-board
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
https://www.rd108.org/public-records-request
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district
https://www.rd108.org/knights-landing-ridge-drainage-district


Audit completed: (10/22/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-meetings/

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-meetings/
Suggest adding minutes in a timely 

manner

Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/staff/
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (1 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/news-and-events/
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/news-and-events/
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no fee charges listed

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/shown in annual reports

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 3 https://yolorcd.org/about-us/history/Suggest adding statute for RCDs

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 3

Total Score 83

Yolo County Resource Conservation District

122

https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-meetings/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-meetings/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/staff/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/news-and-events/
https://yolorcd.org/news-and-events/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/
https://yolorcd.org/about-us/history/


Audit completed: (10/22/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district
No map. Suggest adding the LAFCo 

Boundary Map

Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/dwd-board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 2.5 https://www.rd108.org/dwd-board-meetingsMinutes should be posted

Total 7.5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 2 https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district-boardNo terms/compensation

b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 0 no info

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 0 no info

Total 2

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.rd108.org/public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 50

Dunnigan Water District

123

https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district
https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district
https://www.rd108.org/dwd-board-meetings
https://www.rd108.org/dwd-board-meetings
https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district-board
https://www.rd108.org/dunnigan-water-district
https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
https://www.rd108.org/contract-opportunities
https://www.rd108.org/public-records-request


Audit completed: (10/22/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/about-us/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/about-us/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/Missing FY 24/25

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 3.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/agendas-meeting-minutes/
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/agendas-meeting-minutes/
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://ycfcwcd.org/staff/
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/FY 2023

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 3.33 https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/2 of 3

Total 8.33

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/water-rates/
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://ycfcwcd.org/agency-act/
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

Total Score 67

YCFWCD

124

https://ycfcwcd.org/about-us/
https://ycfcwcd.org/about-us/
https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/
https://ycfcwcd.org/agendas-meeting-minutes/
https://ycfcwcd.org/agendas-meeting-minutes/
https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
https://ycfcwcd.org/board-of-directors/
https://ycfcwcd.org/staff/
https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/
https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/
https://ycfcwcd.org/water-rates/
https://ycfcwcd.org/finance/
https://ycfcwcd.org/agency-act/


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Website Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Conaway Ranch

125



Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget/2023-2025-budget
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings/agendas
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-manager-s-office
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafrLast audit FY2021

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 3.33 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
Total 3.33

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/transparency-portal
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
Total 10

Total Score 93

Davis Public Facilities Financing Authority

126

https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/city-budget/2023-2025-budget
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/city-council-meetings/agendas
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-council/who-s-who
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/city-manager-s-office
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
https://www.cityofdavis.org/business/bids-rfp-s
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/transparency-portal
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/finance/comprehensive-annual-financial-reports-cafr
https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/commissions-and-committees/public-facilities-financing-authority


Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
No description of function on 

webpage

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authoritynoted in staff report

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authoritynoted in staff report

Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/agenda-archives/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority-archived-meeting-agendas
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 1.25 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
no info/link on webpage. Names 

only noted on staff report

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 1

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/contact-us
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0 no info/link on webpage

Total 0

Total Score 66

River City Reg. Stadium Financing Authority

127

https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/agenda-archives/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority-archived-meeting-agendas
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/river-city-regional-stadium-financing-authority
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/contact-us
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records


Audit completed: (11/07/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.sacrt.com/sacramento-downtown-riverfront-streetcar-project/
no info on the City of WSac website 

that I could find

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.sacrt.com/sacramento-downtown-riverfront-streetcar-project/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 10

Riverfront "Streetcar"

128

https://www.sacrt.com/sacramento-downtown-riverfront-streetcar-project/
https://www.sacrt.com/sacramento-downtown-riverfront-streetcar-project/


Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-story/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-story/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/board-meetings/
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/board-meetings/
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-leadership/
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-leadership/
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 7 https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/staff/No compensation/benefits info

Total 7

6. Audits  (10 points) (1 yr. cycle)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/solicitations-rfps/
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/solicitations-rfps/
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://valleycleanenergy.org/contact-us/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/rates-billing/
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
Total 10

Total Score 97

Valley Clean Energy Alliance

129

https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-story/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-story/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/board-meetings/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/board-meetings/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-leadership/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/our-leadership/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/staff/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/solicitations-rfps/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/solicitations-rfps/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/contact-us/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/rates-billing/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/
https://valleycleanenergy.org/documents/


Audit completed: (11/06/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documentsnoted in city's budget

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/west-sacramento-area-flood-control-agency
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/west-sacramento-area-flood-control-agency
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protectionno compensation link

c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 4

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection/flood-program-funding
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection/flood-program-funding
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

Total Score 79

WSac Area Flood Control Agcy

130

https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/west-sacramento-area-flood-control-agency
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/west-sacramento-area-flood-control-agency
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection/flood-program-funding
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/flood-protection/flood-program-funding


Audit completed: (11/06/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/economic-development/eifd
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 4 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documentsSome Info found in City's CAFRs

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 4 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documentsSome Info found in City's CAFRs

Total 8

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/economic-development/eifd
Total 10

Total Score 78

W Sac Public Financing Authority

Annual Reports for FYs19/20-

23/24. Info also found in City's 

CAFRs

131

https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/economic-development/eifd
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/commissions-committees/public-financing-authority-1474
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/business/invitation-to-bid
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/city-manager-s-office/city-clerk/public-records
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/finance-department/financial-documents
https://www.cityofwestsacramento.org/government/departments/economic-development/eifd


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Webpage Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Winters Branch Library Financing Authority

132



Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Webpage Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Winters Public Finance Authority

133



Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are'
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budget
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-areFound in agreement

Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/meeting-schedule-and-agendas
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0 https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/past-meetings--agendas-documents-and-videosLast final minutes posted 2022

Total 5

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/board-of-directors
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-areNoted in the JPA Agreement

Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/staffNo compensation/benefits link.

Total 5

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 0 https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/auditsLast audit 2020

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 1.66 https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/audits1 of 3

Total 1.66

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.wdcwa.com/contact/
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budgetshown in budget

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budgetshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are
Total 10

Total Score 72

Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency

134

https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are'
https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are
https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budget
https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are
https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/meeting-schedule-and-agendas
https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/past-meetings--agendas-documents-and-videos
https://www.wdcwa.com/governance/board-of-directors
https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are
https://www.wdcwa.com/about/staff
https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/audits
https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/audits
https://www.wdcwa.com/contact/
https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budget
https://www.wdcwa.com/finance/budget
https://www.wdcwa.com/about/who-we-are


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link: No Webpage Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 0

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0

Total 0

Total Score 0

Woodland Finance Authority

135



Audit completed: (11/06/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 n/a

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 3 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group

Found on recent agenda.Suggest 

current Board members be listed 

on webpage.
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
Total 8

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 5 n/a

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 n/a

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 n/a

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
Total 10

Total Score 88

Currently, does not maintain funds. 

See agreement.

Yolo Animal Services Planning Agency

Currently, does not maintain funds. 

See agreement.

Currently, does not maintain funds. 

See agreement.

136

https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group
https://www.yolocounty.gov/government/general-government-departments/community-services/animal-services-working-group


Audit completed: (11/05/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://yololawlibrary.org/about-us/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 n/a
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 1 https://yololawlibrary.org/about-us/next meeting info only

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0 https://yololawlibrary.org/board-of-trustees/10/3/24 agenda only

Total 1

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://yololawlibrary.org/board-of-trustees/
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 n/a

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 n/a

Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 n/a

Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 n/a free public access

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 5

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted? (10 pts) 5 n/a

Total 5

Total Score 46

Yolo County Law Library

137

https://yololawlibrary.org/about-us/
https://yololawlibrary.org/about-us/
https://yololawlibrary.org/board-of-trustees/
https://yololawlibrary.org/board-of-trustees/


Audit completed: (09/25/24) Score Link No Webpage Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit? (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Plus last 3 years? (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 0 n/a

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 0 n/a

Total 0

Total Score 0

Yolo County Public Agencies Finance Authority

138



Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/agenda.htmSuggest adding meeting address

b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/agenda.htm
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/board.htm
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 http://www.ycparmia.org/contact_us.htm
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (2 yr. cycle)

a. Current financial audit (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 n/a No fees

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
Total 10

Total Score 100

YCPARMIA

139

http://www.ycparmia.org/
http://www.ycparmia.org/
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/agenda.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/agenda.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/board.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/contact_us.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm
http://www.ycparmia.org/transparency.htm


Audit completed: (11/05/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/who-we-are
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financial-reserve-policy
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/jpa-board-members
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/board-overview-1bedd88
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolo911.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (1 yr. cycle)

a. Current financial audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/yeca-s-bids-contracts-surplus
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/yeca-s-bids-contracts-surplus
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolo911.org/911-public-records-request
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolo911.org/joint-powers-agreement
Total 10

Total Score 100

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency

140

https://www.yolo911.org/who-we-are
https://www.yolo911.org/service-area-map
https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
https://www.yolo911.org/financial-reserve-policy
https://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings
https://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings
https://www.yolo911.org/jpa-board-members
https://www.yolo911.org/board-overview-1bedd88
https://www.yolo911.org/staff
https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
https://www.yolo911.org/yeca-s-bids-contracts-surplus
https://www.yolo911.org/yeca-s-bids-contracts-surplus
https://www.yolo911.org/911-public-records-request
https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
https://www.yolo911.org/financials-compensation
https://www.yolo911.org/joint-powers-agreement


Audit completed: (11/05/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/faq
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 0 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
Total 5

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 3.75 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocsno current FY24/25 budget

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
Total 8.75

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points) (1 yr. cycle)

a. Current financial audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocsFY22/23

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/requestforproposals
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/requestforproposals
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/request-for-information
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/permitting
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
Total 10

Total Score 94

Yolo Habitat Conservancy

141

https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/faq
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/meetings
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/meetings
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/copy-of-staff-board-committees
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/requestforproposals
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/requestforproposals
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/request-for-information
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/permitting
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs
https://www.yolohabitatconservancy.org/admindocs


Audit completed: (10/30/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/our-mission
b. Service Boundary/Agencies Served (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 0 https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgetslast budget posted FY 20/21

b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/cash-reserves-policy
Total 5

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-of-directors
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-of-directors
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-members
b. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-members
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-officers-and-staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current financial audit  (5 pts) 0 https://www.yologroundwater.org/financial-auditsLast audit FY19/20

b. Plus last 3 years (5 pts) 0 https://www.yologroundwater.org/financial-audits
Total 0

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs & bidding opportunities (5 pts) 0 no info

b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 0 no info

Total 0

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yologroundwater.org/public-records-request-policy-of-yolo-subbasin-groundwater-agency
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgetsshown in budget

b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgetsshown in budget

Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: JPAs (10 points)

a. Joint powers agreement as filed/adopted (10 pts) 10 https://www.yologroundwater.org/our-mission
Total 10

Total Score 75

Yolo Subbasin Groundwater Agency

142

https://www.yologroundwater.org/our-mission
https://www.yologroundwater.org/service-area-map
https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgets
https://www.yologroundwater.org/cash-reserves-policy
https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-of-directors
https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-of-directors
https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-members
https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-members
https://www.yologroundwater.org/board-officers-and-staff
https://www.yologroundwater.org/financial-audits
https://www.yologroundwater.org/financial-audits
https://www.yologroundwater.org/public-records-request-policy-of-yolo-subbasin-groundwater-agency
https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgets
https://www.yologroundwater.org/adopted-budgets
https://www.yologroundwater.org/our-mission


Audit completed: (10/10/24) Score Link Notes

1. Overview (10 points)

a. Description of Services/functions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/services
b. Service Boundary (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/service-area-map
Total 10

2. Budget  (10 points)

a. Current FY + 3 years prior (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
b. Financial Reserve Policy (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
Total 10

3. Meetings  (10 points)

a. Schedule (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/commission-meetings
b. Archive of agendas/minutes (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/commission-meetings
Total 10

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  (10 points)

a. Board member information (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yololafco.org/commissioners
b. Election procedures/deadlines (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-lafco-administrative-policies-and-procedures
c. Reimbursement/Compensation policy (3.33 pts) 3.33 https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-lafco-administrative-policies-and-procedures
Total 10

5. Administrative Officials  (10 points)

a. General Manager and Key Staff Information (10 pts) 10 https://www.yololafco.org/staff
Total 10

6. Audits  (10 points)

a. Current audit (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
b. Last 3 years (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
Total 10

7. Contracts  (10 points)

a. Current RFPs (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/bid-requests
b. Submittal Instructions (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/bid-requests
Total 10

8. Public Records  (10 points)

a. Request for public records (10 pts) 10 https://www.yololafco.org/contact-us
Total 10

9. Revenue Sources  (10 points)

a. Summary of Fees (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/files/26c39e03a/Yolo+LAFCo+Fee+Schedule+04.22.21.pdf
b. Summary of Revenue Sources (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
Total 10

10. Agency Specific Criteria: Special Districts  (10 points)

a. Authorizing statute/enabling act (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/cortese-knox-hertzberg-local-government-reorganization-act-of-2000-act
b. Board ethics training certificates (5 pts) 5 https://www.yololafco.org/ethics-training-certificates
Total 10

Total Score 100

Yolo LAFCo

143

https://www.yololafco.org/services
https://www.yololafco.org/service-area-map
https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
https://www.yololafco.org/commission-meetings
https://www.yololafco.org/commission-meetings
https://www.yololafco.org/commissioners
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-lafco-administrative-policies-and-procedures
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-lafco-administrative-policies-and-procedures
https://www.yololafco.org/staff
https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
https://www.yololafco.org/bid-requests
https://www.yololafco.org/bid-requests
https://www.yololafco.org/contact-us
https://www.yololafco.org/files/26c39e03a/Yolo+LAFCo+Fee+Schedule+04.22.21.pdf
https://www.yololafco.org/financial-compensation-info
https://www.yololafco.org/cortese-knox-hertzberg-local-government-reorganization-act-of-2000-act
https://www.yololafco.org/ethics-training-certificates


144



Adopted by the cities and County on the following dates: Yolo County – November 7, 2017 
City of Davis – October 17, 2017 City of Winters – November 7, 2017 
City of West Sacramento – November 1, 2017 City of Woodland – November 21, 2017 

Yolo Local Government 

Transparency and Accountability Program 

VISION 

Our vision is to promote open government and transparency for government agencies countywide 

(cities, County, special districts, and joint powers authorities), thereby fostering public trust and 

accountability. We will achieve this by: 

• Requesting that LAFCo add selected types of joint powers authorities/agencies to its municipal

service review process already conducted with the cities and special districts.

• Supporting LAFCo to develop a scorecard measuring local agency website transparency,

performed on a regular basis.

• Agreement to a common checklist of information used to measure the level of transparency in

local agency websites.

• Ensuring that city/county websites are a model for other local government agencies to follow.

• Encouraging local special districts and JPAs to create a web presence if they do not already have

one.

GOALS 

The agencies seek to improve: 

• Transparency and accountability.

• Oversight.

• Service delivery and efficiency.

• Coordination among agencies.

• Public understanding of local government.

• Good governance by creating a standard of basic elements for a well-run governmental

organization (annual budget, CIP, audits, etc.).

VALUES 

TRUST AND INTEGRITY which the agencies will demonstrate by following through on their commitments, 

duties, and responsibilities. 

Attachment C

145



2 
 

OPEN, HONEST, AND CLEAR COMMUNICATION within each organization, between agencies and with the 

public. 

FISCAL ACCOUNTABILITY as demonstrated by making budgets, financial practices, compensation, and 

audits available to the public.  

PROMOTING AWARENESS of local government by promoting a website presence that describes the 

agency’s reason for existing, a description of services it provides, and the area it provides services to.  

ENCOURAGING UNDERSTANDING of where tax dollars go and how to easily contact board members and 

agency management. 

CIVIC RESPONSIBILITY through access to board meeting schedules, agendas and minutes so the public 

can more easily attend board meetings and become involved.  

TRANSPARENCY to respond to the growing movement to make governmental information available and 

searchable online.  

REPRESENTATION to inform the public regarding board members (names, contact information and 

terms of office) and their election/appointment process. 

 

JPA/SHARED PROGRAMS FINANCIAL BEST PRACTICES 

City/County managers will determine assignments to each JPA/Shared Programs for liaison/oversight 

purposes. Shared programs include programs that are funded via city/county cost sharing, e.g. Yolo 

County Animal Services, Office of Emergency Services, West Valley Fire Training Consortium, etc.  

Budget integration between JPAs/Shared programs and “member” agencies that fund them will be 

improved by implementation of the following process performed annually: 

• City/County managers will prepare a consolidated summary-level budget preparation memo for 

the JPAs and other shared programs that require city/County funding. The memo should convey 

the budget stance for the upcoming fiscal year, plus a longer range outlook. The intent is to 

create JPA alignment with the cities/County budget stance and mirror agency cycles of budget 

reductions or growth.  

• City/County managers may schedule budget workshops with the JPAs and shared programs each 

year around the March timeframe or as appropriate.   

• JPAs and other shared programs are requested to provide draft budgets for funding agencies’ 

executive manager review by May and final adopted budgets no later than June 15th of each 

year for integration into each funding agency’s budget.  

Formation of any new JPAs or shared programs should only be considered when the following criteria 
are met.1 The proposed JPA/shared program: 

• Will demonstrate cost reduction. 

• Is more efficient. 

 
1 Governments Working Together, A Citizen’s Guide to Joint Powers Agreements, California State Legislature, 
Senate Local Government Committee, August 2007 

146



3 
 

• Will reduce or eliminate overlapping services. 

• Will result in the sharing of resources. 

JPA agreements should include common policies supporting JPA funds to be held in the County Treasury 

(as appropriate), open government, and transparency. 

 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION – MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS OF SELECTED TYPES OF JPAs 

The Cities/County request that LAFCo conduct Municipal Service Reviews every five years of selected 

types of JPAs whose service area is mostly within the county and includes: (1) JPAs that provide 

municipal services; (2) JPAs that employ staff; and/or (3) JPAs with boards comprised of agency staff. 

New JPAs may be created in the future and added to this list, but currently those JPAs include: 

1. Valley Clean Energy Alliance 

2. West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency 

3. Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency 

4. Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority 

5. Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 

6. Yolo Habitat Conservancy 

7. Yolo Subbasin Groundwater Agency 

 

LAFCo steps to complete Municipal Service Reviews on a five-year cycle of these JPAs include: 

• Compiling publicly and readily available information. 

• Requesting any additional information from the JPA, minimizing JPA staff time. 

• Developing JPA recommendations regarding each of the seven standard MSR determinations. 

• Completing an administrative draft report for preview by JPA management. 

• Responding to any comments and preparing a draft report available for public review.  

• Publishing a hearing notice for public review and comment of the draft MSR. 

• Adopting the MSR at a public hearing, finalizing the report, and posting it online.  

• Sharing MSR findings with city/county managers, including any cumulative recommendations on 

ways to streamline and improve efficiencies with the governance structures countywide. 

 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION - WEBSITE TRANSPARENCY SCORECARD 

A website transparency scorecard will be prepared by LAFCo on a regular basis involving the following 

steps: 

147



4 
 

• Creating list of cities, County, JPAs and special districts 

• Encouraging local JPAs and special districts to establish websites and assist them, if desired 

• LAFCo conducts preliminary review of agency websites 

• LAFCo shares preliminary results with each agency to provide an opportunity for improvement 

• LAFCo conducts follow up review 

• The agency scorecard is finalized, adopted by the LAFCo Commission, shared with local agencies, 

and posted online 

 

AGENCY WEB TRANSPARENCY CHECKLIST 

The scorecard will be based on the following criteria: 

1. Overview 

a. Description of services/functions: What actions does the agency undertake and what 

services does the agency provide? 

b. Boundary of service area: What specific area does the agency serve? (May not be 

applicable to all JPAs. If not, who (generally)) or what agencies does the JPA serve?) 

2. Budget 

a. Budget for current fiscal year and three years prior to the current year. 

b. Financial reserves policy: What is the agency's policy for designated reserves and 

reserve funds? (The policy should be in either the agency policy manual or found in the 

budget or audit reports).  

3. Meetings 

a. Board meeting schedule: When and where specifically does the agency meet? 

b. Archive of Board meeting agendas & minutes for at least the last 6 months: Both 

approved minutes and past agendas  

4. Elected & Appointed Officials  

a. Board members (names, contact info, terms of office (does not apply to JPAs), 

compensation, and biography): Who specifically represents the public on the Board? 

How can the public contact them? When were they elected (or appointed)? How much 

do they earn in this role (as required by Assembly Bill 2040 effective January 1, 2015)? 

What background about the members illustrates their expertise for serving on the 

Board?  

b. Election procedure and deadlines: If the public wishes to apply to be on the Board, how 

and when can they do so? (Does not apply to JPAs) 

c. Reimbursement and compensation policy: Which (if any) expenses incurred by the 

Board are reimbursed? Do the Board members receive compensation? 

148



5 
 

5. Administrative Officials 

a. General manager and key staff (names, contact info, compensation, and benefits): Who 

specifically runs the agency on a day-to-day basis? How can the public contact them? 

How much do they earn in this role (as required by Assembly Bill 2040 effective January 

1, 2015)? What specific benefits are they eligible for (healthcare, retirement plan, 

educational benefits, etc.)? 

6. Audits 

a. Current financial audit 

b. Financial audits for the three years prior to the current year 

7. Contracts 

a. Current request for proposal and bidding opportunities 

b. Instructions on how to submit a bid or proposal 

8. Public Records 

a. What is the best way for the public to request public records? 

9. Revenue Sources 

a. Summary of fees received: fees for services, if any 

b. Summary of revenue sources: bonds, taxes, loans and/or grants (The public should be 

able to understand how the agency is funded, generally speaking) 

10. Agency Specific Criteria 

a. Municipalities: Downloadable permit applications, and zoning ordinances 

b. Special Districts: Authorizing statute/enabling act (Principal Act or Special Act) and 

board member ethics training certificates 

c. Joint Powers Authorities: A copy of the joint powers agreement as filed and adopted 

(with any updates) 

149



150



  
  Consent    Consent    13. 13.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Correspondence

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and file the following correspondence:

A.  CHW Fall 2024 Newsletter

B.  CHW Winter 2025 Newsletter

C.  LAFCo DEIR Comments - Village Farms Davis Feb 20, 2025

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-CHW Fall 2024 Newsletter
ATT B-CHW Winter 2025 Newsletter
ATT C-LAFCo DEIR Comments - Village Farms Davis Feb 20, 2025

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 02/18/2025 11:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/18/2025

151



152



Update on Public Law 

Newsletter  |  Fall 2024 

Update on Public Law

COLANTUONO,  HIGHSMITH &  WHATLEY,  PC   GRASS  VALLEY  |  ORANGE COUNTY  |  PASADENA | SACRAMENTO |  SONOMA  

New Statutes Defend Utility Rates 
By Michael G. Colantuono, Esq. 

In September, Governor Newsom signed three statutes to bolster defense of 
water and sewer rates. Action is needed to maximize benefits of one, but all three are 
good news for local governments. 

First, AB 2257 (Wilson, D-Suisun City) makes two helpful changes to the Prop. 
218 Omnibus Implementation Act. First, it authorizes agencies to require those who 
challenge new or increased fees, charges, or assessments for water or sewer services 
to exhaust administrative remedies before suit. That would require litigants to inform 
the agency, in writing, of the legal theories of suit along with a protest under Prop. 
218�s procedures for property-related fees or assessments. If they do not, they cannot 
sue. If they do, they can sue only on the issues an objector raised. The requirements 
for the local remedy (best clarified by ordinance or resolution) are many, but most 
restate existing law. New requirements are that an agency must state in hearing 
notices that an exhaustion requirement applies and must respond in writing to every 
substantive comment made in objection to a proposed rate, charge, or assessment. 
This will require some work and last-minute comments (common in CEQA disputes) 
will slow down ratemaking, but adopting a local policy to clarify and maximize the 
exhaustion requirement ought to be a priority for every local water or sewer provider. 

AB 2257 also provides that Prop. 218 challenges to water and sewer charges, 
fees, and assessments are litigated on the agency�s record of its ratemaking � 
expensive discovery of other information is not permitted on the merits of such 
disputes. This is what many public lawyers understood to be the law, but we have 
been litigating the point and not always winning it. So, this is a helpful change. In 
addition, the statute defines the contents of a ratemaking record, ending expensive 
disputes on that subject, too. These rules take effect in January without local action. 

SB 1072 (Padilla, D-Chula Vista) states that refund remedies are not permitted in 
Proposition 218 challenges to property-related fees, including those for water, sewer 
and trash service. If a challenge to a fee determines that one class of customers or 
another, or all customers, have been overcharged, the necessary repayment is to be 
accomplished in the next ratemaking. This will prevent the multimillion-dollar refunds 
a few cases have awarded, threatening the finances of providers of vital utility 
services. Such refunds wipe out agency reserves, which have to be refunded by rate 
increases, so this is all a very expensive way of shifting money from ratepayers� left 
pocket to their right � generating defense costs and large fee awards to plaintiffs�  

(continued on page 2)

Welcome Ajit Thind, 
Anchor of our O.C. 
Office! 
CHW welcomes Ajit Thind, City 
Attorney of La Palma and 
anchor of our new Orange 
County office. Ajit previously 
served as Assistant City 
Attorney of Laguna Beach, 
Menifee, and San Clemente. 
He also represents the 
operator of the Uptown 
Whittier Community Benefit 
District . 

He has advised a wide variety 
of clients on issues relating to 
open government, land use, 
civil rights, housing, water, 
environmental protection and 
labor/employment.  

His current cases involve the 
role of an elected city 
attorney, disruption at city 
council meetings, and gaming 
regulation. 

He anchors our new Irvine 
office, where Thais Alves, 
Carmen Brock, and Matt Slentz 
also practice. 

Welcome Ajit! Welcome, 
Orange County! 

I tem 13-ATT A

153



Page 2 Newsletter  |  Fall 2024 

COLANTUONO,  HIGHSMITH &  WHATLEY ,  PC                GRASS  VALLEY  |  ORANGE COUNTY  | PASADENA| SACRAMENTO |  SONOMA

More (But Not Much More) Than �Zilch� Needed to  
Justify Fine and Penalty Amounts 
By Holly O. Whatley, Esq. 

The Ninth Circuit recently expanded on the application 
of the Eighth Amendment�s Excessive Fines Clause to 
municipal fines in Pimentel v. City of Los Angeles (Pimentel II). 
That case follows the Court�s 2020 decision in Pimentel I, 
which found Los Angeles�s $63 parking fine did not violate the 
Eighth Amendment�s Excessive Fines Clause. But Pimentel I 
reversed and remanded as to whether Los Angeles�s $63 late 
fee, 100% of the fine and due if the fine is not paid within 21 
days, violated the Eighth Amendment. On remand, the trial 
court granted summary judgment to Los Angeles, ruling the 
late penalty was not grossly disproportionate to the failure to 
pay timely. In Pimentel II, the Ninth Circuit reversed. 

The opinion takes pains to limit its holding to its 
procedural context, grant of summary judgment, and 
whether the opposing party�s evidence created a triable issue 
of fact. The Court found a genuine factual dispute existed as 
to the City�s basis for the late fee. Plaintiff submitted 
declarations of two former City employees claiming the late 
fee was set only to raise revenue and not to induce timely 
payment. The Court of Appeals found the City provided no 
material evidence to rebut this claim and reversed. The 
decision provides valuable guidance for setting and, if 
necessary, defending fines and penalties. 

First, the opinion reiterates Pimentel I�s holding that 
cities need not prove �strict proportionality� between a fine 
and the seriousness of the offense for which it is imposed. 
But, a local government cannot rely solely on the deference 
afforded such legislation. Here, the Court recognized the 
City�s legitimate interest in ensuring timely payment of 
parking tickets, but declined to find that deference, alone,  
required a conclusion the $63 penalty was proportionate to 
the seriousness of failure to timely pay parking tickets. 

Second, a fine�s revenue-raising purpose does not make 
it unconstitutional under the Eighth Amendment. The test is 
whether the fine �bears some relationship to the gravity of 
the offense that it is designed to punish.� That it may also 
generate revenue is irrelevant. 

Third, a city�s evidentiary burden to justify a fine is low, 
but more than �zilch.� A city should demonstrate a fine is 
large enough to deter, but not �grossly out of proportion� to 
the offense. Because the Court found Los Angeles presented 
no evidence as to how or why it set its late fee, summary 

judgment was inappropriate. But the Court noted the burden 
is a �low evidentiary bar� and �just requires the government 
to provide some evidence that the fine amount was not 
wholly arbitrary.� 

When setting fines and penalties, local agencies should 
ensure the record justifies the amount and that it bears some 
relationship to the seriousness of the offense. Though the bar 
is low, an agency must still clear it to defeat an Eighth 
Amendment claim. 

For more information, please contact Holly at 
HWhatley@chwlaw.us or 213.542.5704. 

 

New Statutes Defend 
Utility Rates 

(continued from page 1) 
counsel, too. Orders that rates be corrected will be sufficient 
to protect ratepayers and to enforce Prop. 218. Indeed, this 
was how limits on revenue measures were enforced until the 
advent of class action claims in the last decade. 

Finally, AB 1827 (Papan, D-San Mateo) encourages 
adoption of tiered water rates, which make water 
progressively more expensive as customers use more of it � 
to encourage conservation. The statute is declaratory of 
existing law and allows the use of peaking factors (the extent 
to which a customer�s or customer class�s peak use exceeds 
its average or typical use) to allocate costs to rate tiers � a 
common approach. It may make such rates more easily 
defended notwithstanding published losses for the City of San 
Juan Capistrano and the Otay Water District. 

Good news for local ratemakers! Further developments 
are coming as the Supreme Court must act by year end on 
San Jose�s petition for review in a regulatory fee case under 
Prop. 26 and requests that the decision be depublished 
(making it authority only as to San Jose, binding no other 
agency). Stay tuned! 

For more information, please contact Michael at 
MColantuono@chwlaw.us or 530.432.7357.

 

154



Page 3 Newsletter  |  Fall 2024 

COLANTUONO,  HIGHSMITH &  WHATLEY ,  PC                GRASS  VALLEY  |  ORANGE COUNTY  | PASADENA| SACRAMENTO |  SONOMA

Remote Meeting Attendance for Disabled Elected Officials 
By Aleks R. Giragosian, Esq. 

The Ralph M. Brown Act governs the conduct of 
meetings of a local legislative body. In 1988, the Brown Act 
was first amended to authorize remote participation. In 2021, 
AB 361 amended the Brown Act to authorize remote 
participation during a state of emergency (like COVID). In 
2022, AB 2449 amended the Brown Act to authorize remote 
participation for �just cause� or an �emergency 
circumstance.� �Just cause� includes �a need related to a 
physical or mental disability � not otherwise accommodated 
by [the ADA].� 

The Americans with Disabilities Act prohibits 
discrimination against disabled people. Under the ADA, a 
public agency must offer a �reasonable accommodation� as 
to its programs, services, and public facilities to a �qualified 
individual� with a disability. 

In July 2024, the California Attorney General published 
Opinion No. 23-1002. The Opinion concludes members of a 
legislative body are �qualified individuals� under the ADA, 
and that the ADA may require remote participation 
consistent with the just cause exception as a �reasonable 
accommodation� for a disabled member of the legislative 
body. 

AB 2449 limits the use of its just cause exception to no 
more than two meetings per calendar year. In September 
2024, the Governor signed AB 2302, which takes effect 
January 1, 2025. AB 2302 places a combined limit on the 
number of times a member of a legislative body may use the 
just cause and emergency circumstances exceptions to:  

 two meetings per year, if the body meets once a 
month or less frequently; 

 five meetings per year, if it meets twice a month; 
and 

 seven meetings per year, if it meets three or more 
times a month. 

Unlike the Brown Act, the ADA does not limit the 
number of times a member of a legislative body may 
participate remotely. Because federal law preempts contrary 
state law, the Brown Act�s limits under AB 2449 and AB 2302 
do not apply to a disabled member of a legislative body. The 
Attorney General�s Opinion notes this distinction, stating, 
�The most logical explanation � is that the Legislature 
presupposed that a member may already participate 
remotely for an unlimited number of sessions as an ADA 
accommodation.� 

Therefore, if a member of a local legislative body 
demonstrates a disability protected by the ADA, the agency 
can follow the requirements of the just cause exception and 
waive any caps on frequency under the Brown Act. 

Note that the Opinion does not allow remote 
participation in public meetings by staff or members of the 
public. The Opinion will likely raise questions as to disabled 
members of staff or the public, however, and public agencies 
should be prepared to consult counsel if a request is made by 
one who makes an adequate showing of disability preventing 
him or her from attending a meeting in person. 

For more information, please contact Aleks at 
AGiragosian@chwlaw.us or 213.542.5734. 

 

We�ve Got Webinars! 
 
CH&W offers webinars on a variety of 
public law topics including districting 
and redistricting, this year�s 32 new 
housing laws; personnel, public works, 
and management issues under COVID-
19; and police personnel records. 
Current topics are listed on our website 
under �Resources.� Our webinars 
provide advice and Q&A for public 
agency counsel and staff in an attorney-
client-privileged setting for $1,500 per 
agency. 

To schedule a webinar, contact 
Bill Weech at BWeech@chwlaw.us or 
(213) 542-5700. 

155



420 S IERRA  COLLEGE DRIVE 
SU ITE  140 
GRASS  VALLEY ,  CA  95945  

Are you on our list?  To subscribe to our newsletter or to update your information, complete the form 
below and fax it to 530.432.7356. You can also call Marta Farmer at 530.432.7357 or subscribe via our 
website at https://chwlaw.us/newsletter-subscribe/. 

Name  Title 

Affiliation 

Address 
 

City  State  Zip Code 

Phone  Fax 

E-mail 

  Mail    Email    Both 

Our newsletter is available as a printed document sent by US Mail and as a PDF file sent by email. 
Please let us know how you would like to receive your copy. 

The contents of this newsletter do not constitute legal advice. You should seek the opinion of qualified  
counsel regarding your specific situation before acting on the information provided here.  

Copyright © 2024 Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC. All rights reserved.  

PRESORTED 
FIRST-CLASS MAIL 

U.S. POSTAGE 
PAID 

LOS ANGELES, CA 
PERMIT #200 

156



Update on Public Law 
Newsletter  |  Winter 2025 

COLANTUONO,  H IGHSMITH & WHATLEY ,  PC    GRASS  VALLEY |  ORANGE COUNTY |  PASADENA |  SACRAMENTO |  SONOMA  

Two Percent Cap on Local Sales Tax 
Fosters Litigation 
By Michael G. Colantuono, Esq. 

The Revenue & Taxation Code allows cities and counties to propose, and local 
voters to adopt, supplemental sales taxes (“transactions and use taxes”) to be 
collected by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration along with the 
Bradley-Burns 1 percent local sales tax, the state sales tax, transportation, and other 
sales and use taxes. But it imposes a 2 percent cap on all city and county special taxes 
taken together. Given recent reliance on sales taxes to address funding gaps, many 
areas (particularly LA County and the Bay Area) are hitting the cap. The Legislature has 
responded with a small handful of bills granting exceptions to the cap for a larger 
handful of cities and counties. 

Perhaps because the Revenue and Taxation Code gives enormous holdup 
leverage to plaintiffs by requiring CDTFA to escrow tax proceeds while litigation is 
pending, many challenges to local sales taxes have arisen in recent years, some 
testing the 2 percent cap and exceptions to it. 

The County of Alameda, for example, litigated its March 2020 Measure C 
initiative special tax to fund childhood healthcare and education until January 2024 – 
a four-year delay. The January 2024 decision of the San Francisco Court of Appeal 
upheld the tax, concluding in a published portion of its decision that initiative special 
taxes require only simple majority voter approval — not the two-thirds required for 
special taxes government propose. It also ruled that naming the Oakland Children’s 
Hospital as a potential advisor as to healthcare spending did not violate our 
Constitution’s prohibition on initiatives which name persons or entities to 
government roles. In unpublished (and therefore nonprecedential) discussion, the 
Court also concluded Measure C complied with the 2 percent cap on local sales taxes, 
due to statutory exceptions. It also ruled the exceptions were not unconstitutional 
“special legislation” because the Legislature had a rational basis to grant an 
exemption to Alameda County (and a few other local governments).  

Alameda County’s November 2020 Measure W — a general sales tax proposed 
by the Board of Supervisors to fund homelessness and other general fund services for 
10 years — was upheld by the San Francisco Court of Appeal on Jan. 31, 2025, nearly 
halfway through the life of the tax. The Court found the tax to be a general tax 
notwithstanding mention of homelessness services in the ballot question 

(continued on page 3)

Sacramento Office on 
the Move! 
As of February 1, CHW’s 
Sacramento office moved 
into new space. The new 
address is: 

555 University Avenue, 
Suite 275 
Sacramento, CA 95825 

The phone is unchanged 
at (916) 400-0370. 

Shareholder Gary Bell, 
City and Town Attorney 
of Auburn, Novato and 
Yountville leads the 
office. Others in this 
team are Lakeport City 
Attorney McKenzie 
Anderson, Colfax City 
Attorney Conor Harkins, 
and new associates John 
Hope and Mihir Karode. 

If you find yourself in the 
neighborhood, stop by 
and say “hello”! 

Item 13-ATT B

157



 

Page 2 Newsletter  |  Winter 2025 

COLANTUONO,  H IGHSMITH & WHATLEY ,  PC               GRASS  VALLEY |  ORANGE  COUNTY  |  PASADENA  | SACRAMENTO | SONOMA  

UPCCAA Filing Requirements 
By Aleks R. Giragosian, Esq. 

The California Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act or UPCCAA allows public agencies to lift the 
relatively low bidding threshold for public works projects. 
Under the general rules, projects valued at over $5,000 for 
cities or $15,000 for sanitary districts, for example, must be 
competitively bid. These thresholds may be onerous, as 
public bidding requires substantial administrative effort. 

UPCCAA allows higher bidding thresholds. As originally 
adopted, it allowed projects of: 

• $15,000 or less to be performed by force account 
(i.e., an agency’s own employees), negotiated 
contract, or purchase order; 

• more than $15,000 to $50,000 to be let by informal 
bidding; and 

• more $50,000 to be let by formal bidding.  
Those thresholds have increased over time.  

Effective Jan, 1, 2025, AB 2192 (Carrillo, D-Palmdale) 
established these thresholds:  

• $75,000 or less to be performed by  
force account, negotiated contract, or purchase 
order; 

• more than $75,000 to $220,000 to be let by 
informal bidding; and 

• more than $220,000 to be let by formal bidding.  
But a local public agency cannot simply rely on these new 
thresholds!  

An agency must first confirm it opted into UPCCAA by 
ordinance and provided a copy of that ordinance to the State 
Controller. If you’re not on the Controller’s list, you’re can’t 
use UPCCAA. Check here: https://www.sco.ca.gov/ 
Files-ARD-Local/participating_agencies_-_general.pdf 

Second, an agency must confirm its ordinance provides 
for automatic adjustment of bidding thresholds as the statute 
changes. Often, agencies opting into UPCCAA adopt fixed 
thresholds. If an ordinance does not authorize automatic 
adjustment, an agency must amend its ordinance or 
purchasing policy either to adopt UPCCAA’s new thresholds 
or to automatically adjust as that statute is amended. 

UPCCAA provides great flexibility to local governments. 
If your agency has not invoked it, you may wish to. If you 
have, make sure your ordinance is current and you have filed 
it with the State Controller. 

For more information, contact Aleks at 
AGiragosian@chwlaw.us or 213.542.5734 

 

Cell Tower Tug of War Continues 
By Matthew T. Summers, Esq. & John P. Hope, Esq. 

The 9th Circuit recently partly upheld a 2020 FCC ruling 
regulating cities’ and other governments’ authority to control 
changes to cell towers and other wireless facilities. The ruling 
requires agencies to streamline decision-making and 
approvals for “non-substantial” changes to cell towers. 
“Substantial changes” can be subjected to an agency’s 
standard, often stricter, cell tower permitting process.  

The good news for local governments is that the 9th 
Circuit invalidated the FCC ruling’s new definition of 
“substantial change” to a cell tower’s stealth and 
concealment elements as an improper legislative rule — one 
not adopted consistently with the Administrative Procedures 
Act. The FCC may try to fix this by a new rulemaking. Agreeing 
that concealment and stealth elements are not necessarily 
the same, the Court ruled each deserves protection under 
current law. For example, siting a cell tower atop a building, 
out of sight from the ground, is a concealment element, while 
designing it to look like a tree is a stealth element. This 
conclusion reestablishes local authority to require wireless 
facilities to maintain both stealth and concealment elements. 
To protect these rights, agencies should clearly define such 
design elements in permits and as-built surveys and 
document them to inform later permit applications. 

Less helpfully, the 9th Circuit upheld the FCC’s new shot-
clock rule. Under regulations dating to 2014, agencies have 
60 days to approve or deny applications to change a wireless 
facility, with limited tolling if an application is incomplete. A 
completed application not timely approved or denied can be 
“deemed granted.” In response, many agencies adopted 
streamlined processes to review modification applications. 
Under the new FCC rule, applicants now control when a shot 
clock starts. It now starts when an applicant takes the first 
procedural step required by the agency for a modification 
request and submits a written statement invoking the rule. 
This effectively shortens the clock, requiring cities and 
counties to review applications promptly and complete 
review within 60 days of submission, plus any tolling periods. 

The 9th Circuit also upheld other aspects of the new 
regulations – including antenna-height rules and allowing up 
to four new equipment cabinets with each modification 
application. We expect further FCC rulemaking given 
continuing technological and governance change. Stay tuned! 

For more information, contact Matt at 
MSummers@chwlaw.us or 213.542.5719 or John at 
JHope@chwlaw.us or 916.898.4727 

158



 

Page 3 Newsletter  |  Winter 2025 

COLANTUONO,  H IGHSMITH & WHATLEY ,  PC               GRASS  VALLEY |  ORANGE  COUNTY  |  PASADENA  | SACRAMENTO | SONOMA  

2025 Levine Act Updates 
By Taylor M. Anderson, Esq. 

The Levine Act aims to prevent “pay-to-play” practices 
by restricting campaign contributions to elected and 
appointed officials of an agency by those with business 
before the agency. It prohibits officials from acting on 
matters if they have received certain campaign contributions 
from those interested in a contract, permit, or other 
entitlement. 

Previously, the Levine Act applied only to appointed 
officials, but it was expanded in 2023 to include elected 
officials. The change was challenging to implement, raising 
concerns it would chill civic participation. The Legislature 
adopted AB 1181 (Zbur, D-West Hollywood) and SB 1243 
(Dodd, D-Napa), effective Jan. 1, 2025 to address these 
concerns. 

Major changes include: 

• Increased Threshold for Recusal. To trigger a duty to 
recuse, donations must now reach $500 in the 12 
months before a decision, up from $250. 

• Exempt Contracts. The “licenses, permits, or other 
entitlement for use” that may trigger a duty to 
recuse now exclude: 

o Competitively bid contracts. 
o Labor contracts. 
o Personal employment contracts. 
o Contracts valued at less than $50,000. 
o Contracts by which no one receives 

compensation. 
o Contracts between or among public 

agencies. 
o Periodic review or renewal of competitively 

bid or development agreements without 
material modifications. 

o Modifications or amendments to exempt 
contracts (other than competitively bid 
contracts). 

• Cure Period. The period in which an official can 
avoid the duty to recuse by returning a contribution 
is now 30 days (up from 14) after receiving it. This 
period starts from the later of when the officer 
makes a decision or learns about the contribution 
and a matter requiring decision. 

• Definition of “Pending.” A matter is “pending” 
before an agency so as to trigger the contribution 
limit when a related item is placed on an agency’s 
agenda; or when the officer knows the matter is 
within the agency’s jurisdiction and it is foreseeable 
that the officer will be involved. 

• Participants Don’t Pay Dues. The definition of 
“participant” now excludes individuals whose only 
financial interest results from a potential change in 
membership dues (like a Rotary Club).  

• City Attorneys and County Counsels No Longer 
“Officers.” If their role is only providing legal advice 
and they have no decision-making authority in a 
proceeding, the Levine Act no longer applies to local 
government counsel. 

The FPPC considered revised regulations to implement 
these changes on Jan. 16th. Revised regulations could be 
adopted as soon as Mar. 20th. 

For more information, contact Taylor at 
TAnderson@chwlaw.us or 626.219.2768 
 

Two Percent Cap on Local Sales Tax 
Fosters Litigation 
(continued from page 1) 
and campaign messages about such services because the 
measure said tax proceeds could be used for any lawful 
County purpose — as the “no” argument emphasized. The 
Court also ruled statutory exemptions from the cap citing 
“unique fiscal pressures” on the benefited local governments 
did not violate the special legislation rule. But unlike the 
Measure C case, this ruling is precedential. It will help us 
defend the City of Campbell in a similar case recently filed by 
the counsel who sued Alameda on Measures C and W. 

The Legislature might wish to revisit the statute 
requiring CDTFA to escrow sales tax proceeds pending 
litigation. It creates holdup leverage and invites weak 
arguments like those rejected in the two Alameda County 
cases. In the meantime, local governments should take care 
when crafting sales taxes (using CDTFA’s mandatory form of 
ordinance) to avoid inviting procedural arguments like these. 
Cross your T’s and dot your I’s! 

For more information, contact Michael at 
MColantuono@chwlaw.us or 530.432.7357 

159



 

 

420 S IERRA COLLEGE DRIVE  
SUITE  140 
GRASS  VALLEY ,  CA  95945 

 

Are you on our list? To subscribe to our newsletter or to update your information, complete the form 
below and fax it to 530.432.7356. You can also call Marta Farmer at 530.432.7357 or subscribe via our 
website at https://chwlaw.us/newsletter-subscribe/. 

Name  Title 

Affiliation 

Address 
 

City  State  Zip Code 

Phone  Fax 

E-mail 

  Mail    Email    Both 

Our newsletter is available as a printed document sent by US Mail and as a PDF file sent by email. 
Please let us know how you would like to receive your copy. 

The contents of this newsletter do not constitute legal advice. You should seek the opinion of qualified  
counsel regarding your specific situation before acting on the information provided here.  

Copyright © 2025 Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC. All rights reserved.  

PRESORTED 
FIRST-CLASS MAIL 

U.S. POSTAGE 
PAID 

LOS ANGELES, CA 
PERMIT #200 

160



 

COMMISSION 
CHAIR 

BILL BIASI 
Mayor  

City of Winters 

GLORIA PARTIDA 
VICE CHAIR 

Councilmember 
City of Davis 

LUCAS FRERICHS 
Supervisor – 2nd District 

PAMELA MILLER 
Public Member 

OSCAR VILLEGAS 
Supervisor – 1st District 

ALTERNATES 
RICHARD DELIBERTY 

Public Member 

TANIA GARCIA-CADENA 
Mayor 

City of Woodland 

SHEILA ALLEN 
Supervisor – 4th District 

STAFF 
CHRISTINE M. CRAWFORD, AICP 

Executive Officer 

JD TREBEC 
Deputy Executive Officer 

TERRI TUCK 
Retired Annuitant 

Administrative Specialist ll/Clerk 

COUNSEL 
ERIC MAY 

625 Court Street, Suite 107 
Woodland CA 95695 

(530) 666-8048
lafco@yolocounty.org 

www.yololafco.org 

YOLO 
LOCAL 

AGENCY 
FORMATION 

COMMISSION 

February 20, 2025 

Dara Dungworth, Principal Planner 
City of Davis Community Development 
23 Russell Boulevard 
Davis, CA 95616 
[via email] 

Re: Comments on the Village Farms Davis Project Draft Environmental Impact 
Report (DEIR) SCH# 2023110006 

Dear Ms. Dungworth: 

Thank you for consulting with Yolo LAFCo for the Village Farms Davis Project 
DEIR. As you are aware, LAFCo is a Responsible Agency for the project and would 
use the EIR to consider a sphere of influence amendment and annexation to 
implement the Project. Please see LAFCo staff comments below: 

Project Description 
LAFCo staff does not support the northernmost 118-acre portion of the 
proposed Project (portion of APN 042-110-029 north of the drainage channel) 
being dedicated to the City of Davis for ongoing ownership and maintenance. 
We understand the area will be used as a borrow site to harvest fill soil for the 
urbanized portion of the Project and will also be inundated during larger storm 
events that will serve to reduce downstream flows (DEIR page 4.8-27). This 
area should be either privately or homeowner’s association (HOA) owned and 
maintained. As designed, this area does not appear to promote enough “eyes 
on the street” to create a safe public space and may result in an ongoing public 
nuisance that would create an unreasonable cost burden for governmental 
services and controls in the area. LAFCo is concerned about any negative 
impacts on the City’s public safety funding and ability to maintain its high level 
of services.  

On page 3-27, we understand the confusion, but the DEIR inaccurately states 
that a municipal services review (MSR) would be required for a Yolo LAFCo 
sphere of influence (SOI) amendment. LAFCo, as necessary, reviews and 
updates each agency’s SOI every five years (Government Code §56425) and 
conducts a municipal service review in order to prepare and to update SOIs 
(§56430(a)). However, §56428 indicates any person or local agency may
request an amendment to an SOI and LAFCo can act on it accordingly. This
means that an MSR is needed for a comprehensive SOI Update every five
years, while project-specific SOI Amendments can occur on a case-by-case
basis without a comprehensive MSR. Yolo LAFCo does not plan to conduct an
MSR for the Village Farms Davis SOI Amendment.

Agricultural Resources 
In several places, the DEIR incorrectly references that Yolo LAFCo requires a 
2:1 mitigation ratio. Please note this is only for “stacked” conservation 
easements per LAFCo Policy 4.10(c).  

Item 13-ATT C

161



2 

 
Impact 4.2-1: LAFCo Policy 4.9 states “annexation of prime agricultural lands shall not be 
approved unless one of the following mitigations has been instituted, at not less than a 1:1 
replacement ratio”, i.e., regardless of a portion of the proposed Project being designated 
as UATA. The DEIR notes the entire site would be considered prime agricultural lands by 
Yolo LAFCo and will require 1:1 mitigation. The DEIR analysis indicates the City’s 2:1 
mitigation requirement for less acreage would supersede LAFCo’s required 1:1 mitigation 
for the entire acreage. But it’s worth clearly noting that as the Project is currently proposed, 
LAFCo will require a minimum of 497.6 acres of mitigation.  

 
Thank you again for consulting with Yolo LAFCo. If you have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
Best regards, 
 
 
 
Christine M. Crawford, AICP 
 
c:  Rochelle Swanson, Project Agent 

Mike Webb, City of Davis City Manager 
Stephanie Cormier, Yolo County Chief Assistant Director of Community Services 

162



  
  Regular    Regular    14. 14.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider the Municipal Service Review (MSR)/Sphere of Influence (SOI) Initial Study for the City of Woodland
(LAFCo No. 24-03) and determine a comprehensive MSR/SOI Update is not needed for this five-year review cycle
per Government Code §56425(g)

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
On the basis of the initial evaluation contained in the attached MSR/SOI Initial Study for the City of Woodland
(LAFCo No. 24-03), staff recommends LAFCo determine the following:

1. The required MSR determinations would likely not be significant;
2. An SOI Update is not warranted or requested by the City; and
3. Therefore, an MSR/SOI Update is not needed, and the City will be reviewed again in five years per

Government Code Section 56425(g).

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
A comprehensive MSR/SOI Update was last adopted for the City of Woodland on January 24, 2019, aligning the
City's SOI to coincide with its 2006 voter approved Urban Limit Line. Consideration for review is due again, as
required every five years.

Per the Cortese- Knox-Hertzberg (CKH) Act §56430, MSRs are only technically required when LAFCo intends to
update an agency's SOI. Although for our special districts, Yolo LAFCo has frequently opted to perform MSRs
notwithstanding an SOI Update in order to review and provide oversight of our smaller agencies that tend to be more
rural and volunteer in nature. In the case of a city, where there is inherently much more scrutiny, accountability, and
transparency (including comprehensive annual audits), staff evaluates whether LAFCo's report would provide
valuable information on a case by case basis. Yolo LAFCo has memorialized this approach in local policy (Project
Policies 6.2 Criteria Municipal Service Review), "Although MSRs are technically required only when updating agency
SOIs, per Government Code §56430, Yolo LAFCo will typically conduct MSRs on local special districts even if an
SOI Update is not needed because, unlike cities, Yolo County's special districts tend to be rural in nature and
staffed by limited professional staff or entirely volunteer-run, meaning there is less oversight to ensure operational
adequacy and fiscal sustainability."

Staff has utilized the MSR checklist template as an initial study screening tool to evaluate whether the MSR
determinations would be significant (see attached). Staff recommends, based on the initial study checklist prepared,
an MSR/SOI Update for the City of Woodland is not needed this cycle and LAFCo will consider it again in five years.
LAFCo has tended to make this determination for cities when an SOI Update is not needed or desired. Staff spoke
with the City Manager, Ken Hiatt, on October 10, 2024, and he confirmed the City is not seeking a change to its SOI
at this time and concurred with the recommendation that no MSR/SOI Update is needed. 

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-City of Woodland MSR-SOI Checklist LAFCo 24-03 Feb 27, 2025

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 02:58 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 02/10/2025 01:39 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/12/2025

163



164



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist 
LAFCo No. 24-03 Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

1 

AGENCY PROFILE 
The City of Woodland, first incorporated in 1871, is a general law City under the provisions of the State of 
California. The City is a legally separate and fiscally independent agency. It can issue debt, set and modify 
budgets, collect fees for services, and sue or be sued. 

Woodland operates under the Council-Manager form of government with a five-member council, elected by 
district by city residents. A directly elected five-member City Council represents citizens in determining 
services and regulations to be provided by the City. The Council appoints a full time City Manager whose 
job is to carry out the Council’s policy directives and to coordinate, control and direct City operations, 
functions, and projects. The City Manager serves as the administrative head of city government overseeing 
the departments of administrative services, community development, community services, finance, fire, 
library, police, and public works. In making its policy determinations, the Council works with advisory 
committees and receives other citizen input from the public at its regular and special meetings. The 
Council’s business meetings are scheduled for the first and third Tuesday of each month in the Council 
Chambers of City Hall. Other special or study session meetings are scheduled as needed and are open to 
the public.  

The City has ten council-appointed commissions that are devoted to various aspects of community life 
including: building appeals, aging, historical preservation, library, manufactured home fair practices, parks 
and recreation, personnel, planning traffic safety, and utility undergrounding.   

Below is the current City boundary and sphere of influence (SOI). 

Item 14-ATT A

165



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

2 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW 

P O T E N T I A L L Y  S I G N I F I C A N T  M S R  D E T E R M I N A T I O N S  

The MSR determinations checked below are either significant or potentially significant, as indicated by 
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages. 
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may 
find that a comprehensive MSR update is not warranted. 

 Growth and Population  Shared Services 

 Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities  Accountability 

 Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to 
Provide Services  Broadband Access 

 Financial Ability  Status of Previous MSR Recommendations 

L A F C O  M U N I C I P A L  S E R V I C E  R E V I E W :  

 On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant, and staff 
recommends that a comprehensive MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed 
again in five years per Government Code Section 56425(g).  

 The subject agency has significant and/or potentially significant determinations and staff 
recommends that a comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checklist.  

 

1. Growth and Population 
Growth and population projections for the affected area. 

Significant 
Issue 

Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?     

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s 
services?    

Discussion:  
According to the State Department of Finance population projections1, the City of Woodland population 
increased from 60,052 as of January 1, 2023 to 60,672 in 2024, a 1.0 percent increase. Projections suggest 
the population countywide will go up 3% by 2030 and 16% by 20402.  

The City of Woodland completed a comprehensive General Plan Update in May 2017 and has ample space 
within its current SOI to accommodate planned growth through 2035. The City is not anticipating any SOI 
changes during this planning horizon.  

 

1 State of California Department of Finance Population Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State – 
January 1, 2023 and 2024 
2 Report P-2A: Total Estimated and Projected Population for California and Counties: July 1, 2020 to 2070. 
Projections Prepared by Demographic Research Unit, California Department of Finance, Sep 2024. 

166



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

3 

Growth and Population MSR Determination 

City growth and development is occurring consistent with its adopted 2035 General Plan adopted in May 
2017. City development and population growth is not anticipated to have a significant negative impact on 
City services and/or require an update to its SOI.  

Recommendation(s) 
None. 

 

2. Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 
The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the 
sphere of influence. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, 
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are 
there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted 
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s 
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or 
less of the statewide median household income) that do not 
already have access to public water, sewer, and structural fire 
protection? 

   

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such 
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated 
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it 
is either not needed or not applicable. 

   

Discussion:  
The West Kentucky (aka “Westucky”) community is likely a disadvantaged unincorporated community 
(DUC) within the City of Woodland’s SOI. This community already received structural fire protection 
services from the City via contract with the Springlake Fire Protection District. In 2019, Yolo County, Yolo 
County Housing and the City of Woodland all partnered on an agreement (with LAFCo approval) to extend 
City water and sewer services to this community. The City plans to annex this community within the next 1-
2 years.  

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination 
The West Kentucky (aka “Westucky”) community is considered a disadvantaged unincorporated community 
(DUC) within the City of Woodland’s Sphere of Influence. The community has received City fire protection 
services for decades, and City water and sewer services were extended in 2019. The City plans to annex 
this area in the next 1-2 years. Therefore, there is equity in the provision of essential municipal services to 
this adjacent DUC.  

Recommendation(s) 
None. 

167



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

4 

3. Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services 
Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or 
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire 
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and 
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for 
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve 
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)? 

   

b) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability 
to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future 
growth? 

   

c) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged 
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and 
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous 
to the agency’s sphere of influence? 

   

d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its 
assessment of infrastructure/service needs?    

Discussion:  
The City of Woodland provides 10 distinct categories of municipal services including: cemetery; community 
facilities, parks and open space; community recreation; fire; library; municipal water; police; solid waste & 
recycling; road construction, road maintenance, street lighting and landscaping; wastewater, stormwater & 
recycled water. The City provides waste management services via contract with Waste Management.  
 
The City is struggling with several municipal service issues and is actively working to address them: 

• To address capacity needs, the City Council voted to place a one-cent sales tax measure on the 
November 2024 ballot. The measure was intended to provide annual local funding for certain 
services, such as: maintaining public spaces; addressing homelessness; improving/maintaining 
parks; repairing roads, potholes, and sidewalks; reducing emergency response times; and 
increasing police and fire protection. Firefighter, police, and first responder staffing has not kept 
pace with the City’s growing population. The sales tax measure failed at the November 2024 
election.  

• The City’s Storm Drain system continues to deteriorate, and it will require repairs and replacements 
in older areas of the City. The Storm Drain Fund currently has an unrestricted net position of $1.4 
million, with total net position of $13.4 million. Development fees pay for new construction only; 
maintenance impacts stemming from past and future new construction will continue to burden this 
fund. Storm drain rate increases must be voter approved and an attempt to increase the fee failed 
in August 2007. The City is working on a new rate study and outreach plan with hopes to have a 
successful adjustment to the user fees. 

• The City is also working on a solution to provide protection against potential future flooding events 
from the lower Cache Creek with the US Army Corps of Engineers. However, a measure to provide 
a flooding solution failed at the March 2024 election.  

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination 

The City is struggling in several areas with respect to capacity and services issues related to maintaining 
parks, repairing roads/sidewalks, repair/replacing the stormwater system, flood improvements, and 
increasing police and fire staffing. Voters have rejected the City’s attempts to pass funding measures. 
However, the City is aware and actively working on plans to address these issues, and a comprehensive 

168



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

5 

MSR will not shed any additional light or add value to addressing these needs. The City is not seeking to 
expand its SOI at this time and LAFCo will re-evaluate the City’s capacity for growth during the next MSR 
cycle.  

Recommendation(s) 
None. 

 

4. Financial Ability 
Financial ability of agencies to provide services. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Is the subject agency in a stable financial position, i.e. does the 5-
year trend analysis indicate any issues?    

b) Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being 
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming 
from grants or one-time/short-term sources? 

   

c) Is the organization’s revenue sufficient to fund an adequate level 
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement 
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the 
schedules of similar local agencies 

   

d) Does the subject agency have a capital improvement plan (CIP)? 
Has the agency identified and quantified what the possible 
significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? 
Does the agency have a reserve policy to fund it? 

   

e) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s 
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear 
debt management policy, if applicable? 

   

f) Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted 
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances, 
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of 
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree 
benefits)? Does the agency have accounting and/or financial 
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are 
recorded and presented? 

   

g) Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular 
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective 
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include 
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, 
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense 
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s 
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency 
review monthly the transactions in the County system to 
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?  

   

h) Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports 
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and 
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully 
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the 
public and financial institutions? 

   

169



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

6 

Discussion:  
The City of Woodland implements sound financial management practices, adopting an annual budget, 
spending within its budget, and performing independent audits. The City’s debt is at manageable levels.3 

 

 

3 Source: City of Woodland Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports 2018-2022 

170



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

7 

The City’s final budgeted appropriations in the General Fund increased by $15.6 million from the originally 
adopted budget in FY21/22. This increase was due primarily to carryover of money for projects not 
completed by the end of FY21, additional costs needed for contract inspection services to backfill a staff 
vacancy and manage increasing activity, overtime costs related to firefighters sent on strike teams 
throughout the state, a one-time extra payment toward the CalPERS unfunded liability, and increased 
transfers out of the fund of special sales tax revenues more than the original budget. These increases were 
possible due to better than anticipated revenues in almost all categories within the General Fund, as well 
as receipt of revenue recovery funds from the American Rescue Plan Act to assist with various public 
interest projects. 
 
The City’s total revenue was $177.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2022, an increase of $21.9 million 
or 14 percent from FY20/21. The increase in operating grants and contributions is due mostly to receipt of 
transportation funding related reimbursements that have been delayed for several years, as well as receipt 
of some operating grant money not previously received, specifically funding to address homelessness and 
affordable housing.  
 
The charges for services in the business type activities increased by $1.0 million between FY2020/21 and 
FY2021/22. This increase is primarily due to the previously approved 5.5% rate increase that was effective 
in the Water Fund, as well as increased water consumption in the City, and new development adding new 
accounts to the utility system. Other categories of revenues within the business type activities remained 
fairly consistent between FY2020/21 and FY2021/22. 
 
The cost for all governmental activities this year was $90.25 million. The City’s taxpayers paid for 
approximately 53 percent of these costs; $47.9 million (including property, sales and other taxes revenues). 
Fees, including developer fees, grants and contributions funded the balance of the costs of governmental 
activities. Total cost of services remained consistent between FY2021 and FY2022 at $90 million. The net 
cost of services (total cost offset by related revenues) for FY2021/22 decreased by $25.1 million. As noted 
previously, total costs did not change, but related revenues were increased. The most significant changes 
were in the revenues received for Operating Grant and Contributions for reimbursable grant related projects 
and delayed payments for transportation related funding. These contributed mostly to the decreased net 
cost for Community Development and Public Works. 
 
Major capital expenditures in FY 2022 included the following: 

• Improvements for pedestrian mobility and safety, including rehab of a major roadway were 
completed during the year, which added $5.7 million in governmental activities and the $0.6 million 
in business type activities was infrastructure. 

• Construction of a new pedestrian overcrossing to provide pedestrian and bikeway safety to cross 
over the State Route 113 is underway and added $2.4 million to construction in progress. 

• Major road rehabilitation with expanded bikeway and pedestrian pathways added $4.4 million to 
construction in progress for governmental activities. 

• Construction of improvements to allow for relocation of the homeless shelter in the city added $2.7 
million to construction in progress; the entire project was completed and reclassified to 
infrastructure. 

• Replacement and upgrade of a major water main and sewer pipelines added $4.0 million to 
construction in progress; the project was completed and $5.2 million was reclassified to 
infrastructure. 

 
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the City had $214.4 million and $229.5 million, respectively, in long-term debt 
outstanding. The outstanding debt of governmental activities decreased approximately $3.4 million due 
mostly to continued principal payments on outstanding debt. Outstanding debt of business-type activities 
decreased approximately $11.7 million because of continued principal payments on outstanding 
obligations, refunding of existing bond debt, and no new debt was incurred. The City continues to maintain 
good credit ratings on its debt issues. 
 
The General Fund budget for FY 2022/23 appropriates $67.95 million, which is a decrease of $9.3 million 
from final appropriations for FY21/22. The decrease is due largely to the fact that the FY21/22 final budget 
included significant appropriations for a one-time extra payment to CalPERS and other one-time allocations 

171



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

8 

for projects, including allocations toward a future fire station and second community pool. The 
appropriations for FY2022/23 include $3.5 million in one-time allocations, the largest of which is a $2 million 
set aside for construction of a second community pool. General Fund revenue for FY22/23 is projected to 
be $63.8 million, which is $5.5 million more than the original revenue budget for 2021/22, due mostly to 
improved revenue performance in property and sales taxes. 
 
Financial Ability MSR Determination 

The City of Woodland practices sound financial management, adopting budgets, spending within its limits, 
and preparing annual comprehensive financial reports. City revenues have exceeded expenses in each of 
the last four fiscal years, increasing its fund balance. The City has adequate reserve to protect against 
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs. The City’s water and sewer rate/fee schedules are 
sufficient to fund an adequate level of service, and the City is working to increase the rates for stormwater 
maintenance and restructure its City cemetery. The City’s debt is at a manageable level. The City funds 
necessary maintenance upgrades in its capital improvement budget and plans. 

Recommendation(s) 
None.  

 

5. Shared Services and Facilities 
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services 
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping, or other organizations 
that are not currently being utilized? 

   

Discussion:  
The City is currently partnering with other cities, Yolo County, and other local agencies on shared services. 
It provides fire protection services to Springlake FPD. The City also participates in many regional programs 
addressing shared resources, services, and facilities. 

The City is a member of a number of joint powers agencies/authorities (JPAs) and other regional joint 
ventures in which the City has a shared interest and exercises shared services including: Sacramento Area 
Council of Governments (transportation planning agency), Yolo County Transportation District (bus 
services), Woodland-Davis Clean Water Agency, Woodland Finance Authority, Yolo Animal Services 
Planning Agency, Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority, Yolo Emergency 
Communications Agency, Yolo Habitat Conservancy (habitat conservation) and Yolo Subbasin 
Groundwater Authority (groundwater management). 

Shared Services MSR Determination 

The City is currently partnering with other cities, Yolo County, and other local agencies on shared services, 
JPAs, and other regional joint ventures. LAFCo is not aware of any opportunities for the organization to 
share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping, or other organizations that are not currently being 
utilized. 

Recommendation(s) 
None. 

 

172



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

9 

6. Accountability, Structure, and Efficiencies 
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s 
governmental structure or operations that will increase 
accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that 
confuse the public, service inefficiencies, and/or higher 
costs/rates)? 

   

b) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial 
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the 
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not 
reviewed in an open meeting? 

   

c) Is the agency insured or in a risk management pool to manage 
potential liabilities?    

d) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining 
board members? Is there a lack of board member training 
regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial 
management? 

   

e) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a 
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program 
requirements and financial management?  

   

f) Are any agency officials and designated staff current in making 
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?    

g) Does the agency have adequate policies (as applicable) relating to 
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and 
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among 
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see 
suggested policies list)? 

   

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via 
a website (see https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-
website-transparency-scorecards)?  

   

Discussion:  
None. 

Accountability, Structure, and Efficiencies MSR Determination 
LAFCo is not aware of any recommended changes to the City’s governance to increase accountability and 
efficiencies. City meetings are accessible and well publicized in accordance with the Brown Act. There are 
no issues with filling city council vacancies and maintaining members. The City staff have been relatively 
stable for the last five years. The City prepares annual audits which are posted on the City’s website, 
although they are posted around a year later than the recommended GASB turnaround time. For example, 
the City’s FY2022 audit was just adopted in April 2024. The City of Woodland received a 93% on the 2024 
Yolo Local Government Website Transparency Scorecard4.  

 

4 https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards 

173

https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards


YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

10 

Recommendation(s) 
None. 

 

7a. Broadband Access 
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.  

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access 
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband 
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).” 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) 
available in the community?    

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital 
literacy programs available?    

Discussion:  
The CPUC California Broadband Availability Map5 indicates for most of the City, WAVE provide speeds up 
to 1 gig and AT&T provides speeds up to 50/10 Mbps in the green colored areas, but the red colored and 
uncolored areas either have legacy technology or independent infrastructure. The red square south of 
downtown and west of SR 113 is the County Fairgrounds. Both providers offer low-income subscription 
rates and digital literacy assistance is available at the local library.  

 

 

5 https://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/ 

174

https://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/


YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

11 

Broadband Access MSR Determination 
The CPUC California Broadband Availability Map indicates the City of Woodland has broadband access in 
the majority of the City, but there are a few pockets where there is a lack of high-performance broadband 
(25/3 Mbps) available in the community.  

Recommendation(s) 
None.  

 

7b. Status of Previous MSR Recommendations 
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy. 

 
Significant 

Issue 
Potentially 
Significant No Issue 

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR 
that have not been implemented?    

Discussion:  
Below are the LAFCo recommendations from the City of Woodland’s 2019 MSR and status: 

1. The City of Woodland should review and/or improve its 
budget monitoring process to minimize or eliminate 
overdrawn appropriations.  

Completed. 

2. The City of Woodland should create a strategy and 
necessary studies to increase its storm drainage fees since 
this fund has an accumulated net operating loss of almost 
$5M over the past five years.  

The City’s FY2022 ACFR 
indicates studies are 
underway, but an updated 
fee has not gone to the voters 
yet. 

3. The City should consider changing accounting and financial 
reporting of the Cemetery fund from enterprise fund to 
governmental activity as the service cannot realistically be 
self-supporting and requires general fund support. (For 
comparison, the Davis Cemetery District received $237,713 
in FY 2016/17 property tax revenue and the Winters 
Cemetery District received $137,774 in FY 2016/17 property 
tax revenue, within their respective city limits.)  

The City may have 
considered this, but the 
cemetery still operates as an 
enterprise fund.   

4. Provide any City contracts for building/fire plan check & 
inspection, fleet maintenance, park/landscape maintenance 
and arborist/tree maintenance services (per LAFCo’s March 
23, 2018 memo), to allow LAFCo to compare contractors and 
rates with the other cities and Yolo County for shared 
services opportunities.  

Completed.  

5. Strive to continue with the City’s recent practice of 
completing audits within 6 months and no more than 9 
months from the end of the fiscal year. 

Audits are still being adopted 
later than recommended by 
best practices.  

 

175



YOLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 

 

City of Woodland MSR Checklist   
LAFCo No. 24-03  Reviewed by LAFCo February 27, 2025 

12 

Status of Previous MSR Recommendations Determination 
From the City’s previous 20149 MSR, it still needs to update its storm drainage fees, consider making the 
city cemetery a regular governmental activity (because it is unrealistic that it be sustained by fees alone), 
and turnaround the City’s audits more quickly.  

Recommendation(s) 
None.  

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 
On the basis of the Municipal Service Review: 

 Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOI Update is NOT 
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE 
to the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made. 

 Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOI Update IS 
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to 
the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in 
this MSR/SOI study. 

176



  
  Regular    Regular    15. 15.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Authorize the Chair to sign Agreement 2025-01 with RSG, Inc. not to exceed $19,700, to conduct an independent
fiscal analysis of the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD) Reorganization Proposal

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Chair to sign the agreement with RSG, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
LAFCo's fiscal year 2024/25 budget adopted last May did not anticipate the Elkhorn FPD Reorganization proposal,
and appropriated only $10,000 for Professional and Specialized Services. This contract will exceed the current
appropriation in this account. However, the budget can absorb these costs, as discussed at our September 2024
meeting when LAFCo approved a request to waive Elkhorn FPD's proposal application fees. Primarily because the
budget assumed LAFCo would hire a new employee by Oct 1, 2024, but didn't until Jan 13, 2025, resulting in a
Salaries and Benefits savings of approximately $55,000. After staff completes our year-end budget projections, we
will schedule an item to adjust our budget to balance the Services and Supplies category accordingly. Therefore, no
fiscal impact is anticipated.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
An independent fiscal analysis is needed for the Elkhorn FPD Reorganization proposal. A Request for Proposals
was issued for fiscal analysis services in December 2024 to six firms. Although all the firms confirmed receipt, we
ultimately received only one proposal. However, Yolo LAFCo has worked with RSG previously (in 2011 and 2013), is
satisfied the team is well-qualified, understands the role and responsibilities of LAFCos, and can provide the
analysis needed. Staff reached out to multiple LAFCos who have worked with RSG, Inc. recently and did not receive
any negative feedback. 

RSG's scope of work will provide a comprehensive fiscal analysis to validate cost assumptions, assess
revenue sufficiency, and identify potential financial shortfalls for the Elkhorn FPD Reorganization. The analysis is
intended to guide service contract negotiations, ensure fiscal sustainability, and inform LAFCo's governance
decisions. Staff recommends approval of the contract. 

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-Contract No. 2025-01 RSG Feb 27, 2025

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 02:57 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 02/10/2025 12:07 PM
Final Approval Date: 02/12/2025

177



178



Page 1 of 3 

AGREEMENT № 2025-01   
(Short-Form Agreement) 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 27th day of February 2025, by and between the Yolo Local Agency 
Formation Commission (“LAFCo”), and RSG, Inc. (“CONTRACTOR”), who agree as follows: 

TERMS 
1. CONTRACTOR shall perform the following professional services: Independent Fiscal Analysis
Services for the Elkhorn Fire Protection District Reorganization and Plan for Services, as set forth in
greater detail in Exhibits B and C.

2. CONTRACTOR shall perform said services between March 2025 and September 2025.

3. The complete contract shall include the following Exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein:
Exhibit A: Insurance and Requirement Guidelines, Exhibit B: LAFCo’s Request for Proposals dated
December 19, 2024, and Exhibit C: Contractor’s proposal dated January 27, 2025.

4. Subject to CONTRACTOR’S satisfactory and complete performance of all the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, and upon CONTRACTOR’s submission of an appropriate claim, LAFCo shall pay
CONTRACTOR time and materials not to exceed a total amount of $19,700 as identified in Exhibit C.

5. CONTRACTOR, at his sole cost and expense, shall obtain and maintain throughout the entire term of
this Agreement, the insurance set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

6. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
LAFCo, its officers, officials, employees and agents from any and all claims, demands, liability, damages,
cost or expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees) in law or equity that may at any time arise or
be asserted based in whole or in part upon any negligent or other wrongful act or omission of the
CONTRACTOR, it’s officers, agents, or employees. CONTRACTOR responsibility for such defense and
indemnity obligations shall survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the full period of
time allowed by law. The defense and indemnification obligations of this Agreement are undertaken in
addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the insurance obligations contained in this Agreement.

7. Any SUBCONTRACTOR must agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and LAFCo in the same
manner and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR is bound to LAFCo under this Agreement.
SUBCONTRACTORS must further agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this
Agreement, including the indemnity and insurance requirements, with any SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR to
the extent they apply to the scope of the SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR’s work.

8. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to
any, which are promulgated to protect the public health, welfare and safety or prevent conflicts of interest.
CONTRACTOR shall defend LAFCo and reimburse it for any fines, damages, or costs (including
attorney fees) that might be incurred or assessed based upon a claim or determination that
CONTRACTOR has violated any applicable law or regulation.

9. This Agreement is subject to LAFCo receiving sufficient funds for the activities required of the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. If LAFCos adopted budget does not contain sufficient funds for
this Agreement, LAFCo may terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days advance written notice
thereof to Contractor, in which event LAFCo shall have no obligation to pay Contractor any further funds
or provide other consideration and the Contractor shall have no obligation to provide any further services
under this Agreement.

Docusign Envelope ID: C516F454-4BAD-47D2-A1E1-D9D3330056D0

Item 15-ATT A

179



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

10. Either party may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or no reason, upon 30 days’ written notice 
to the other party. 
 
11.  If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any part of this Agreement, LAFCo may notify the 
CONTRACTOR of the default and CONTRACTOR shall remedy the default.  If CONTRACTOR fails to 
do so, then, in addition to any other remedy that LAFCo may have, LAFCo may terminate this 
Agreement and withhold any or all payments otherwise owed to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 
12.  Attached are licenses &/or certificates required by CONTRACTOR’s profession (Indicating type; 
No.; State; & Expiration date), and CONTRACTOR certifies that he/she/it shall maintain them 
throughout this Agreement, and that CONTRACTOR’s performance will meet the standards of 
licensure/certification. 
 
13.  CONTRACTOR understands that he/she is not an employee of LAFCo and is not eligible for any 
employee benefits, including but not limited to unemployment, health/dental insurance, worker’s 
compensation, vacation, or sick leave. 
 
14.  CONTRACTOR will hold in confidence all information disclosed to or obtained by CONTRACTOR 
which relates to activities under this Agreement and/or to LAFCo’s plans or activities.  All documents 
and information developed under this Agreement and all work products, reports, and related data and 
materials shall become the property of LAFCo.  CONTRACTOR shall deliver all of the foregoing to 
LAFCo upon completion of the services hereunder, or upon earlier termination of this Agreement.  In 
addition, CONTRACTOR shall retain all of its own records regarding this Agreement and the services 
provided hereunder for a period of not less than four (4) years and shall make them available to LAFCo 
for audit and discovery purposes. 
 
15.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, and no other agreements or 
representations, oral or written, have been made or relied upon by either party.  This Agreement may only 
be amended in writing signed by both parties, and any other purported amendment shall be of no force or 
effect.  This Agreement, including all attachments, shall be subject to disclosure pursuant to the California 
Public Records Act. 
 
16.  This Agreement shall be deemed to be executed within the State of California and construed in 
accordance with and governed by laws of the State of California.  Any action or proceeding arising out of 
this Agreement shall be filed and resolved in a California State court located in Woodland, California. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first written 
above by affixing their signatures hereafter. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     LAFCo: 
 
              
Jim Simon, Principal     Bill Biasi, Chair 
RSG, Inc.  
170 Eucalyptus Avenue, Suite 200 
Vista, CA 92084 
 
(714) 316-2120 
jsimon@rsgsolutions.com 
       
  

Docusign Envelope ID: C516F454-4BAD-47D2-A1E1-D9D3330056D0

180

mailto:jsimon@rsgsolutions.com


181



182



02/12/2025

Empire Company - Orange County
550 Park Center Drive, Suite 2

Santa Ana CA 92705

Erica Hornaday
(714) 836-9945

ehornaday@empire-co.com

RSG, Inc.
170 Eucalyptus Avenue
Suite 200
Vista CA 92084

Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company 30104
Trumbull Insurance Company 27120
Navigators Specialty Insurance Co

25/26 UPDT MASTER

A Y Y 72SBABH1DMT 01/01/2025 01/01/2026

1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

A 72SBABH1DMT 01/01/2025 01/01/2026

1,000,000

A
10,000

72SBABH1DMT 01/01/2025 01/01/2026
2,000,000
2,000,000

B Y 72WECVK8727 01/01/2025 01/01/2026
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

C
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

CH25MPLX00580NC 01/01/2025 01/01/2026 LIMIT 2,000,000
AGGREGATE 4,000,000

[Job #:  Job Type: AI CO PNC WOS]
Yolo LAFCo, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are named as additional insured with primary and non-contributory wording and waiver of
subrogation in resepct to general liability per forms (SL 30 32 06 21) and (SL 00 00 10 18) attached as required by the written contract.

Yolo LAFCo
625 Court Street, Suite 107

Woodland CA 95695

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Exhibit A

183



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 36 10 18 Page 1 of 1
Process Date: 09/25/2024 © 2018, The Hartford Policy Expiration Date: 01/01/2026

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS

POLICY NUMBER: 72 SBA BH1DMT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees Or Contractors – Completed Operations

a. The person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule on the Declarations is also an additional insured, but
only with respect to liability for "bodily injury" or "property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by "your work"
and at the location designated and described in the Location And Description Of Completed Operations
Schedule in the Declarations performed for that additional insured and included in the "products-completed
operations hazard".

b. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of, or the failure to
render, any professional architectural, engineering or surveying services, including:

(1) The preparing, approving, editing of or failure to prepare or approve, shop drawings, maps, opinions,
reports, surveys, change orders, field orders, designs, drawings, specifications, warnings,
recommendations, permit applications, payment requests, manuals or instructions;

(2) Supervisory, inspection, quality control, architectural, engineering or surveying activities or services;

(3) Maintenance of job site safety, construction administration, construction contracting, construction
management, computer consulting or design software development or programming service, or selection
of a contractor or programming service;

(4) Monitoring, sampling, or testing service necessary to perform any of the services included in (1), (2) or (3)
above;

(5) Supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others who are performing any of the services
included in (1), (2) or (3) above;

c. The insurance afforded to these additional insureds only applies to the extent permitted by law.

d. If coverage provided to these additional insureds is required by a written contract, agreement or written permit
issued by a state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, the insurance afforded to
these additional insureds will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract, agreement or
permit to provide for these additional insureds.

Policy Number: 72SBABH1DMT

184



Form SL 00 00 10 18

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY

QUICK REFERENCE Beginning On Page

A. COVERAGES 1

Business Liability 1

Medical Expenses 2

Coverage Extension - Supplementary Payments 2

B. EXCLUSIONS 3

C. WHO IS AN INSURED 12

D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES

LIMITS OF INSURANCE 14

E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES GENERAL CONDITIONS 15

1. Bankruptcy 15

2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit 15

3. Legal Action Against Us 16

4. Separation Of Insureds 16

5. Representations 16

6. Other Insurance 16

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us 18

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS 18

185



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 1 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this Policy restrict coverage. Read the entire Policy carefully to determine rights, duties and what is
and is not covered.
Throughout this Coverage Part the words "you" and "your" refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations. The
words "we", "us" and "our" refer to the insurance company shown in the Declarations.
"Policy period", as used in this Coverage Part, means the period from the effective date of this Coverage Part to the
expiration date of the Coverage Part as stated in the Declarations or the date of cancellation, whichever is earlier.
The word "insured" means any person or organization qualifying as such under Section C. Who Is An Insured.
Other words and phrases that appear in quotation marks have special meaning. Refer to Section F. Liability And Medical
Expenses Definitions.

A. COVERAGES

1. Business Liability Coverage (Bodily Injury, Property Damage, Personal And Advertising Injury) Insuring
Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because of "bodily
injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance applies. We will have
the right and duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking those damages. However, we will have no
duty to defend the insured against any "suit" seeking damages for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" to which this insurance does not apply.
We may, at our discretion, investigate any "occurrence" or offense and settle any claim or "suit" that may
result. But:
(1) The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in Section D. Liability And Medical Expenses

Limits Of Insurance; and
(2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the payment

of judgments, settlements or medical expenses to which this insurance applies.
No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless explicitly provided for
under Coverage Extension - Supplementary Payments.

b. This insurance applies:
(1) To "bodily injury" and "property damage" only if:

(a) The “bodily injury” or “property damage” is caused by an “occurrence” that takes place in the
“coverage territory”;

(b) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs during the policy period; and
(c) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section C. Who Is An Insured and

no "employee" authorized by you to give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or claim, knew that the
"bodily injury" or "property damage" had occurred, in whole or in part. If such a listed insured or
authorized "employee" knew, prior to the policy period, that the "bodily injury" or "property damage"
occurred, then any continuation, change or resumption of such "bodily injury" or "property damage"
during or after the policy period will be deemed to have been known prior to the policy period.

(2) To "personal and advertising injury" caused by an offense arising out of your business, but only if the
offense was committed in the "coverage territory" during the policy period.

c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will be deemed to have been known to have occurred at the earliest time
when any insured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section C. Who Is An Insured or any "employee" authorized by
you to give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or claim:
(1) Reports all, or any part, of the "bodily injury" or "property damage" to us or any other insurer;
(2) Receives a written or verbal demand or claim for damages because of the "bodily injury" or "property

damage"; or

186



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 2 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(3) Becomes aware by any other means that "bodily injury" or "property damage" has occurred or has begun
to occur.

d. Damages because of "bodily injury" include damages claimed by any person or organization for care, loss of
services or death resulting at any time from the "bodily injury".

e. Incidental Medical Malpractice

(1) "Bodily injury" arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional health care services as a
physician, dentist, nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic shall be deemed to be caused by
an "occurrence", but only if:
(a) The physician, dentist, nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic is employed by you to

provide such services; and
(b) You are not engaged in the business or occupation of providing such services.

(2) For the purpose of determining the limits of insurance for incidental medical malpractice, any act or
omission together with all related acts or omissions in the furnishing of these services to any one person
will be considered one "occurrence".

2. Medical Expenses

Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay medical expenses as described below for "bodily injury" caused by an accident:
(1) On premises you own or rent;
(2) On ways next to premises you own or rent; or
(3) Because of your operations;
provided that:
(1) The accident takes place in the "coverage territory" and during the policy period;
(2) The expenses are incurred and reported to us within three years of the date of the accident; and
(3) The injured person submits to examination, at our expense, by physicians of our choice as often as we

reasonably require.
b. We will make these payments regardless of fault. These payments will not exceed the applicable limit of

insurance. We will pay reasonable expenses for:
(1) First aid administered at the time of an accident;
(2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and dental services, including prosthetic devices; and
(3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional nursing and funeral services.

3. Coverage Extension - Supplementary Payments

a. We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we defend:
(1) All expenses we incur.
(2) Up to $1,000 for the cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations arising out of

the use of any vehicle to which Business Liability Coverage for "bodily injury" applies. We do not have to
furnish these bonds.

(3) The cost of appeal bonds or bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the
applicable limit of insurance. We do not have to furnish, finance, arrange for, guarantee, or collateralize
these bonds, whether the collateralization is characterized as premium or not.

(4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the investigation or defense
of the claim or "suit", including actual loss of earnings up to $500 a day because of time off from work.

(5) All court costs taxed against the insured in the "suit". However, such costs do not include attorneys’ fees,
attorneys’ expenses, witness or expert fees, or any other expenses of a party taxed against the insured.

(6) Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If we make an
offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment interest based on that
period of time after the offer.

187



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 3 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(7) All interest on the full amount of any judgment that accrues after entry of the judgment and before we
have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment that is within the applicable limit
of insurance.
Any amounts paid under (1) through (7) above will not reduce the Limits of Insurance.

b. If we defend an insured against a "suit" and an indemnitee of the insured is also named as a party to the
"suit", we will defend that indemnitee if all of the following conditions are met:
(1) The "suit" against the indemnitee seeks damages for which the insured has assumed the liability of the

indemnitee in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract";
(2) This insurance applies to such liability assumed by the insured;
(3) The obligation to defend, or the cost of the defense of, that indemnitee, has also been assumed by the

insured in the same "insured contract";
(4) The allegations in the "suit" and the information we know about the "occurrence" are such that no conflict

appears to exist between the interests of the insured and the interest of the indemnitee;
(5) The indemnitee and the insured ask us to conduct and control the defense of that indemnitee against

such "suit" and agree that we can assign the same counsel to defend the insured and the indemnitee; and
(6) The indemnitee:

(a) Agrees in writing to:
(i) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement or defense of the "suit";
(ii) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in

connection with the "suit";
(iii) Notify any other insurer whose coverage is available to the indemnitee; and
(iv) Cooperate with us with respect to coordinating other applicable insurance available to the

indemnitee; and
(b) Provides us with written authorization to:

(i) Obtain records and other information related to the "suit"; and
(ii) Conduct and control the defense of the indemnitee in such "suit".

So long as the above conditions are met, attorneys' fees incurred by us in the defense of that indemnitee,
necessary litigation expenses incurred by us and necessary litigation expenses incurred by the
indemnitee at our request will be paid as Supplementary Payments.
Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 1.b.(b) of Section B. Exclusions, such payments will not be
deemed to be damages for "bodily injury" and "property damage" and will not reduce the Limits of
Insurance.

Our obligation to defend an insured's indemnitee and to pay for attorneys' fees and necessary litigation
expenses as Supplementary Payments ends when:
(1) We have used up the applicable limit of insurance in the payment of judgments or settlements; or
(2) The conditions set forth above, or the terms of the agreement described in Paragraph (6) above, are no

longer met.

B. EXCLUSIONS

1. Applicable To Business Liability Coverage

This insurance does not apply to:
a. Expected Or Intended Injury

(1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured. This
exclusion does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" resulting from the use of reasonable force
to protect persons or property; or

(2) "Personal and advertising injury" arising out of an offense committed by, at the direction of or with the
consent or acquiescence of the insured with the expectation of inflicting "personal and advertising injury".

188



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 4 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

b. Contractual Liability

(1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage"; or
(2) "Personal and advertising injury"
for which the insured is obligated to pay damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or
agreement.
This exclusion does not apply to liability for damages because of:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" that the insured would have in
the absence of the contract or agreement; or

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" assumed in a contract or agreement that is an "insured contract",
provided the "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs subsequent to the execution of the contract
or agreement. Solely for the purpose of liability assumed in an "insured contract", reasonable
attorneys' fees and necessary litigation expenses incurred by or for a party other than an insured are
deemed to be damages because of "bodily injury" or "property damage" provided:
(i) Liability to such party for, or for the cost of, that party’s defense has also been assumed in the

same "insured contract"; and
(ii) Such attorneys' fees and litigation expenses are for defense of that party against a civil or

alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which damages to which this insurance applies are
alleged.

c. Liquor Liability

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which any insured may be held liable by reason of:
(1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of any person;
(2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a person under the legal drinking age or under the influence of

alcohol;
(3) Providing or failing to provide transportation with respect to any person that may be under the influence of

alcohol; or
(4) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating to the sale, gift, distribution or use of alcoholic beverages.
This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury” or “property damage” involved
that which is described in Paragraph (1), (2), (3) or (4) above.
However, this exclusion applies only if you are in the business of manufacturing, distributing, selling, serving
or furnishing alcoholic beverages. For the purposes of this exclusion, permitting a person to bring alcoholic
beverages on your premises, for consumption on your premises, whether or not a fee is charged or a license
is required for such activity, is not by itself considered the business of selling, serving, or furnishing alcoholic
beverages.

d. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws

Any obligation of the insured under a workers' compensation, disability benefits or unemployment
compensation law or any similar law.

e. Employer’s Liability

"Bodily injury" to:
(1) An "employee" of the insured arising out of and in the course of:

(a) Employment by the insured; or
(b) Performing duties related to the conduct of the insured’s business; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that "employee" as a consequence of (1) above.
This exclusion applies:
(1) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and
(2) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the

injury.

189



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 5 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

This exclusion does not apply to liability assumed by the insured under an "insured contract".
f. Pollution

(1) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the actual, alleged or
threatened discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape of "pollutants":
(a) At or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time owned or occupied by, or rented

or loaned to any insured. However, this paragraph does not apply to:
(i) "Bodily injury" if sustained within a building and caused by smoke, fumes, vapor or soot produced

by or originating from equipment that is used to heat, cool or dehumidify the building, or
equipment that is used to heat water for personal use, by the building's occupants or their guests;

(ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which you may be held liable, if you are a contractor and
the owner or lessee of such premises, site or location has been added to this Coverage Part as
an additional insured with respect to your ongoing operations performed for that additional
insured at that premises, site or location and such premises, site or location is not and never was
owned or occupied by, or rented or loaned to, any insured, other than that additional insured; or

(iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of heat, smoke or fumes from a "hostile fire";
(b) At or from any premises, site or location which is or was at any time used by or for any insured or

others for the handling, storage, disposal, processing or treatment of waste;
(c) Which are or were at any time transported, handled, stored, treated, disposed of, or processed as

waste by or for:
(i) Any insured; or
(ii) Any person or organization for whom you may be legally responsible;

(d) At or from any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or subcontractors
working directly or indirectly on any insured's behalf are performing operations if the "pollutants" are
brought on or to the premises, site or location in connection with such operations by such insured,
contractor or subcontractor. However, this paragraph does not apply to:
(i) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the escape of fuels, lubricants or other

operating fluids which are needed to perform the normal electrical, hydraulic or mechanical
functions necessary for the operation of "mobile equipment" or its parts, if such fuels, lubricants or
other operating fluids escape from a vehicle part designed to hold, store or receive them. This
exception does not apply if the "bodily injury" or "property damage" arises out of the intentional
discharge, dispersal or release of the fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids, or if such fuels,
lubricants or other operating fluids are brought on or to the premises, site or location with the
intent that they be discharged, dispersed or released as part of the operations being performed
by such insured, contractor or subcontractor;

(ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" sustained within a building and caused by the release of
gases, fumes or vapors from materials brought into that building in connection with operations
being performed by you or on your behalf by a contractor or subcontractor; or

(iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of heat, smoke or fumes from a "hostile fire"; or
(e) At or from any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or subcontractors

working directly or indirectly on any insured’s behalf are performing operations if the operations are to
test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or
assess the effects of, "pollutants".

(2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:
(a) Request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement that any insured or others test for,

monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way respond to, or assess
the effects of, "pollutants"; or

(b) Claim or “suit” by or on behalf of a governmental authority for damages because of testing for,
monitoring, cleaning up, removing, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing, or in any way
responding to, or assessing the effects of, "pollutants".

190



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 6 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

However, this paragraph does not apply to liability for damages because of "property damage" that the
insured would have in the absence of such request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement,
or such claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a governmental authority.

g. Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

(1) Unmanned Aircraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to
others of any aircraft that is an "unmanned aircraft". Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".
This Exclusion g.(1) applies even if the claims against any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing
in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by that insured, if the "bodily injury”
or “property damage” arises out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any
aircraft that is an "unmanned aircraft".

(2) Aircraft (Other Than Unmanned Aircraft), Auto or Watercraft

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to
others of any aircraft (other than “unmanned aircraft”), "auto" or watercraft owned or operated by or
rented or loaned to any insured. Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".
This Exclusion g.(2) applies even if the claims against any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing
in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by that insured, if the "bodily injury"
or "property damage" arises out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any
aircraft (other than “unmanned aircraft”), "auto" or watercraft that is owned or operated by or rented or
loaned to any insured.
This Exclusion g.(2) does not apply to:
(a) A watercraft while ashore on premises you own or rent;
(b) A watercraft you do not own that is:

(i) Less than 51 feet long; and
(ii) Not being used to carry persons or property for a charge;

(c) Parking an "auto" on, or on the ways next to, premises you own or rent, provided the "auto" is not
owned by or rented or loaned to you or the insured;

(d) Liability assumed under any "insured contract" for the ownership, maintenance or use of aircraft
(other than “unmanned aircraft”) or watercraft;

(e) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:
(i) The operation of any of the machinery or equipment listed in Paragraph f.(2) or f.(3) of the

definition of "mobile equipment"; or
(ii) The operation of machinery or equipment that is attached to, or part of, a land vehicle that would

qualify under the definition of “mobile equipment” if it were not subject to a compulsory or financial
responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is
licensed or principally garaged; or

(f) An aircraft (other than “unmanned aircraft”) that is not owned by any insured and is hired, chartered
or loaned with a paid crew. However, this exception does not apply if the insured has any other
insurance for such "bodily injury" or "property damage", whether the other insurance is primary,
excess, contingent or on any other basis.

h. Mobile Equipment

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:
(1) The transportation of "mobile equipment" by an "auto" owned or operated by or rented or loaned to any

insured; or
(2) The use of “mobile equipment” in, or while in practice or preparation for, a prearranged racing, speed or

demolition contest or in any stunting activity.

191



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 7 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

i. War
"Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury", however caused, arising, directly or
indirectly, out of:
(1) War, including undeclared or civil war;
(2) Warlike action by a military force, including action in hindering or defending against an actual or expected

attack, by any government, sovereign or other authority using military personnel or other agents; or
(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped power, or action taken by governmental authority in hindering

or defending against any of these.
j. Professional Services

"Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the rendering of or failure
to render any professional service. This includes but is not limited to:
(1) Legal, accounting or advertising services;
(2) Preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys,

field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications;
(3) Supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities;
(4) Medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing services, treatment, advice or instruction;
(5) Any health or therapeutic service treatment, advice or instruction;
(6) Any service, treatment, advice or instruction for the purpose of appearance or skin enhancement, hair

removal or replacement or personal grooming;
(7) Optical or hearing aid services including the prescribing, preparation, fitting, demonstration or distribution

of ophthalmic lenses and similar products or hearing aid devices;
(8) Optometry or optometric services including but not limited to examination of the eyes and the prescribing,

preparation, fitting, demonstration or distribution of ophthalmic lenses and similar products;
(9) Any:

(a) Body piercing (not including ear piercing);
(b) Tattooing, including but not limited to the insertion of pigments into or under the skin; and
(c) Similar services;

(10)Pharmaceutical services including but not limited to:
(a) The administering, prescribing, preparing, distributing or compounding of pharmaceutical drugs,

vaccinations, immunizations or any of their component parts;
(b) The providing of or failure to provide home health care or home infusion products or services; and
(c) Advising and consulting customers;

(11)Computer consulting, design or programming services, including web site design.
This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service.
Paragraphs (4) and (5) of this exclusion do not apply to the Incidental Medical Malpractice coverage afforded
under Paragraph 1.e. in Section A. Coverages.

k. Damage To Property

"Property damage" to:
(1) Property you own, rent or occupy, including any costs or expenses incurred by you, or any other person,

organization or entity, for repair, replacement, enhancement, restoration or maintenance of such property
for any reason, including prevention of injury to a person or damage to another's property;

(2) Premises you sell, give away or abandon, if the "property damage" arises out of any part of those
premises;

192



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 8 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(3) Property loaned to you;
(4) Personal property in the care, custody or control of the insured;
(5) That particular part of real property on which you or any contractors or subcontractors working directly or

indirectly on your behalf are performing operations, if the "property damage" arises out of those
operations; or

(6) That particular part of any property that must be restored, repaired or replaced because "your work" was
incorrectly performed on it.
Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to "property damage" (other than damage by
fire) to premises, including the contents of such premises, rented to you for a period of 7 or fewer
consecutive days. A separate limit of insurance applies to Damage To Premises Rented To You as
described in Section D. Limits Of Insurance.
Paragraph (2) of this exclusion does not apply if the premises are "your work" and were never occupied,
rented or held for rental by you.
Paragraphs (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to the use of elevators.
Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclusion do not apply to liability assumed under a sidetrack
agreement.
Paragraphs (3) and (4) of this exclusion do not apply to "property damage" to borrowed equipment while
not being used to perform operations at a job site.
Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply to "property damage" included in the "products-completed
operations hazard".

l. Damage To Your Product

"Property damage" to "your product" arising out of it or any part of it.
m. Damage To Your Work

"Property damage" to "your work" arising out of it or any part of it and included in the "products-completed
operations hazard".
This exclusion does not apply if the damaged work or the work out of which the damage arises was
performed on your behalf by a subcontractor.

n. Damage To Impaired Property Or Property Not Physically Injured

"Property damage" to "impaired property" or property that has not been physically injured, arising out of:
(1) A defect, deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous condition in "your product" or "your work"; or
(2) A delay or failure by you or anyone acting on your behalf to perform a contract or agreement in

accordance with its terms.
This exclusion does not apply to the loss of use of other property arising out of sudden and accidental
physical injury to "your product" or "your work" after it has been put to its intended use.

o. Recall Of Products, Work Or Impaired Property

Damages claimed for any loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others for the loss of use, withdrawal,
recall, inspection, repair, replacement, adjustment, removal or disposal of:
(1) "Your product";
(2) "Your work"; or
(3) "Impaired property";
if such product, work or property is withdrawn or recalled from the market or from use by any person or
organization because of a known or suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous condition in it.

p. Personal And Advertising Injury

"Personal and advertising injury":
(1) Arising out of oral, written, electronic, or any other manner of publication of material, if done by or at the

direction of the insured with knowledge of its falsity;

193



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 9 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Arising out of oral, written, electronic, or any other manner of publication of material whose first
publication took place before the beginning of the policy period;

(3) Arising out of a criminal act committed by or at the direction of the insured;
(4) Arising out of any breach of contract, except an implied contract to use another’s "advertising idea" in

your "advertisement";
(5) Arising out of the failure of goods, products or services to conform with any statement of quality or

performance made in your "advertisement";
(6) Arising out of the wrong description of the price of goods, products or services;
(7) Arising out of:

(a) Any actual or alleged infringement or violation of any intellectual property rights, such as copyright,
patent, right of publicity, trademark, trade dress, trade name, trade secret, service mark or other
designation of origin or authenticity; or

(b) Any injury or damage alleged in any claim or “suit” that also alleges an infringement or violation of any
intellectual property right, whether such allegation of infringement or violation is made against you, or
by you or by any other party involved in the claim or “suit”, regardless of whether this insurance would
otherwise apply.

However, this exclusion does not apply if the only allegation in the claim or “suit” involving any intellectual
property right is limited to:

(i) Infringement, in your “advertisement”, of:
a. Copyright;
b. Slogan; unless the slogan is also a trademark, trade dress, trade name, service mark or other

designation of origin or authenticity; or
c. Title of any literary or artistic work; or

(ii) Copying, in your “advertisement”, a person’s or organization’s “advertising idea” or style of
“advertisement”.

Paragraph (7)(b)ii above shall not apply to claims or “suits” alleging infringement or violation of trademark,
trade dress, trade name, service mark or other designation of origin or authenticity.
(8) Arising out of an offense committed by an insured whose business is:

(a) Advertising, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting;
(b) Designing or determining content of web sites for others; or
(c) An Internet search, access, content or service provider.
However, this exclusion does not apply to Paragraphs a., b. and c. under the definition of "personal and
advertising injury" in Section F. Liability And Medical Expenses Definitions.
For the purposes of this exclusion, the placing of frames, borders, or links, or advertising, for you or
others anywhere on the Internet, is not by itself, considered the business of advertising, broadcasting,
publishing or telecasting;

(9) Arising out of an electronic chat room or bulletin board the insured hosts, owns, or over which the insured
exercises control;

(10)Arising out of the unauthorized use of another's name or product in your e-mail address, domain name or
metatags, or any other similar tactics to mislead another's potential customers;

(11)Arising out of the violation of a person's right of privacy created by any state or federal act.
However, this exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the insured would have in the
absence of such state or federal act;

(12)Arising out of:
(a) Advertising content for others on your web site;
(b) Placing a link to a web site of others on your web site;

194



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 10 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(c) Content from a web site of others displayed within a frame or border on your web site. Content
includes information, code, sounds, text, graphics or images; or

(d) Computer code, software or programming used to enable:
(i) Your web site; or
(ii) The presentation or functionality of an "advertisement" or other content on your web site;

(13)Arising out of a violation of any anti-trust law;
(14)Arising out of the fluctuation in price or value of any stocks, bonds or other securities;
(15)Arising out of any access to or disclosure of any person's or organization's confidential or personal

information, including patents, trade secrets, processing methods, customer lists, financial information,
credit card information, health information or any other type of nonpublic information.
This exclusion applies even if damages are claimed for notification costs, credit monitoring expenses,
forensic expenses, public relations expenses or any other loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others
arising out of any access to or disclosure of any person's or organization's confidential or personal
information; or

(16)Arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any aircraft that is an
"unmanned aircraft". Use includes operation and "loading or unloading".
This exclusion applies even if the claims against any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the
supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by that insured, if the "personal and
advertising injury" arises out of the ownership, maintenance, use or entrustment to others of any aircraft
that is an "unmanned aircraft".
However, this exclusion does not apply if the only allegation in the claim or "suit" involves an intellectual
property right which is limited to:
(a) Infringement, in your "advertisement", of:

(i) Copyright;
(ii) Slogan; or
(iii) Title of any literary or artistic work; or

(b) Copying, in your "advertisement", a person's or organization's "advertising idea" or style of
"advertisement".

q. Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal Information And Data-Related Liability

(1) Damages because of “bodily injury” or “property damage” arising out of any access to or disclosure of any
person’s or organization’s confidential or personal information, including patents, trade secrets,
processing methods, customer lists, financial information, credit card information, health information or
any other type of nonpublic information; or

(2) Damages arising out of the loss of, loss of use of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, or inability
to manipulate "electronic data".

This exclusion applies even if such damages are claimed for notification costs, credit monitoring expenses,
forensic expenses, public relations expenses or any other loss, cost or expense incurred by you or others
arising out of that which is described in Paragraphs (1) or (2) above.
However, unless Paragraph (1) above applies, this exclusion does not apply to damages because of “bodily
injury”.

r. Employment-Related Practices

"Bodily injury" or "personal and advertising injury" to:
(1) A person arising out of any:

(a) Refusal to employ that person;
(b) Termination of that person's employment; or

195



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 11 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(c) Employment-related practices, policies, acts or omissions, such as coercion, demotion, evaluation,
reassignment, discipline, defamation, harassment, humiliation, discrimination, malicious prosecution
or false arrest directed at that person; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that person as a consequence of "bodily injury" or "personal
and advertising injury" to that person at whom any of the employment-related practices described in
Paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) above is directed.

This exclusion applies:
(1) Whether the injury-causing event described in Paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) above occurs before

employment, during employment or after employment of that person;
(2) Whether the insured may be liable as an employer or in any other capacity; and
(3) To any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the

injury.
s. Asbestos

(1) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the "asbestos
hazard".

(2) Any damages, judgments, settlements, loss, costs or expenses that:
(a) May be awarded or incurred by reason of any claim or “suit” alleging actual or threatened injury or

damage of any nature or kind to persons or property which would not have occurred in whole or in
part but for the "asbestos hazard";

(b) Arise out of any request, demand, order or statutory or regulatory requirement that any insured or
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, encapsulate, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize or in any
way respond to or assess the effects of an "asbestos hazard"; or

(c) Arise out of any claim or “suit” for damages because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, removing,
encapsulating, containing, treating, detoxifying or neutralizing or in any way responding to or
assessing the effects of an "asbestos hazard".

t. Recording And Distribution Of Material Or Information In Violation Of Law

"Bodily injury", "property damage", or "personal and advertising injury" arising directly or indirectly out of any
action or omission that violates or is alleged to violate:
(1) The Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), including any amendment of or addition to such law;
(2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including any amendment of or addition to such law;
(3) The Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), and any amendment of or addition to such law, including the Fair

and Accurate Credit Transaction Act (FACTA); or
(4) Any federal, state or local statute, ordinance or regulation, other than the TCPA, CAN-SPAM Act of 2003

or FCRA and their amendments and additions, that addresses, prohibits or limits the printing,
dissemination, disposal, collecting, recording, sending, transmitting, communicating or distribution of
material or information.

Damage To Premises Rented To You – Exception For Damage By Fire, Lightning Or Explosion

Exclusions c. through h. and k. through o. do not apply to damage by fire, lightning or explosion to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner. A separate limit of insurance applies
to this coverage as described in Section D. Liability And Medical Expenses Limits Of Insurance.

2. Applicable To Medical Expenses Coverage

We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury":
a. Any Insured

To any insured, except "volunteer workers".
b. Hired Person

To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of any insured or a tenant of any insured.

196



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 12 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

c. Injury On Normally Occupied Premises

To a person injured on that part of premises you own or rent that the person normally occupies.
d. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws

To a person, whether or not an "employee" of any insured, if benefits for the "bodily injury" are payable or
must be provided under a workers' compensation or disability benefits law or a similar law.

e. Athletics Activities

To a person injured while practicing, instructing or participating in any physical exercises or games, sports or
athletic contests.

f. Products-Completed Operations Hazard

Included with the "products-completed operations hazard".
g. Business Liability Exclusions

Excluded under Business Liability Coverage.

C. WHO IS AN INSURED

1. If you are designated in the Declarations as:
a. An individual, you and your spouse are insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of a business, other

than that described in b. through e. below, of which you are the sole owner.
b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an insured. Your members, your partners, and their spouses are also

insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of your business.
c. A limited liability company, you are an insured. Your members are also insureds, but only with respect to the

conduct of your business. Your managers are insureds, but only with respect to their duties as your
managers.

d. An organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, you are an insured. Your
"executive officers" and directors are insureds, but only with respect to their duties as your officers or
directors. Your stockholders are also insureds, but only with respect to their liability as stockholders.

e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees are also insureds, but only with respect to their duties as trustees.
2. Each of the following is also an insured:

a. Employees And Volunteer Workers

Your "volunteer workers" only while performing duties related to the conduct of your business, or your
"employees", other than either your "executive officers" (if you are an organization other than a partnership,
joint venture or limited liability company) or your managers (if you are a limited liability company), but only for
acts within the scope of their employment by you or while performing duties related to the conduct of your
business.
However, none of these "employees" or "volunteer workers" are insureds for:
(1) "Bodily injury" or "personal and advertising injury":

(a) To you, to your partners or members (if you are a partnership or joint venture), to your members (if
you are a limited liability company), or to a co-"employee" while in the course of his or her
employment or performing duties related to the conduct of your business, or to your other "volunteer
workers" while performing duties related to the conduct of your business;

(b) To the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of that co-"employee" or that "volunteer worker" as a
consequence of Paragraph (1)(a) above;

(c) For which there is any obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay
damages because of the injury described in Paragraphs (1)(a) or (b) above; or

(d) Arising out of his or her providing or failing to provide professional health care services.
If you are not in the business of providing professional health care services, Paragraph (d) does not apply
to any nurse, emergency medical technician or paramedic employed by you to provide such services.

(2) "Property damage" to property:

197



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 13 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(a) Owned, occupied or used by:
(b) Rented to, in the care, custody or control of, or over which physical control is being exercised for any

purpose by you, any of your "employees", "volunteer workers", any partner or member (if you are a
partnership or joint venture), or any member (if you are a limited liability company).

b. Real Estate Manager

Any person (other than your "employee" or "volunteer worker"), or any organization while acting as your real
estate manager.

c. Temporary Custodians Of Your Property

Any person or organization having proper temporary custody of your property if you die, but only:
(1) With respect to liability arising out of the maintenance or use of that property; and
(2) Until your legal representative has been appointed.

d. Legal Representative If You Die

Your legal representative if you die, but only with respect to duties as such. That representative will have all
your rights and duties under this insurance.

e. Unnamed Subsidiary

Any subsidiary and subsidiary thereof, of yours which is a legally incorporated entity of which you own a
financial interest of more than 50% of the voting stock on the effective date of this Coverage Part.
The insurance afforded herein for any subsidiary not shown in the Declarations as a named insured does not
apply to injury or damage with respect to which an insured under this insurance is also an insured under
another policy or would be an insured under such policy but for its termination or upon the exhaustion of its
limits of insurance.

3. Newly Acquired Or Formed Organization

Any organization you newly acquire or form, other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company,
and over which you maintain financial interest of more than 50% of the voting stock, will qualify as a Named
Insured if there is no other similar insurance available to that organization. However:
a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only until the 180th day after you acquire or form the organization or

the end of the policy period, whichever is earlier; and
b. Coverage under this provision does not apply to:

(1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" that occurred; or
(2) "Personal and advertising injury" arising out of an offense committed
before you acquired or formed the organization.

4. Operator Of Mobile Equipment

With respect to "mobile equipment" any person is an insured while driving such equipment along a public highway
with your permission. Any other person or organization responsible for the conduct of such person is also an
insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the operation of the equipment, and only if no other
insurance of any kind is available to that person or organization for this liability. However, no person or
organization is an insured with respect to:
a. "Bodily injury" to a co-"employee" of the person driving the equipment; or
b. "Property damage" to property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of

any person who is an insured under this provision.
5. Operator Of Nonowned Watercraft

With respect to watercraft you do not own that is less than 51 feet long and is not being used to carry persons or
property for a charge, any person is an insured while operating such watercraft with your permission. Any other
person or organization responsible for the conduct of such person is also an insured, but only with respect to
liability arising out of the operation of the watercraft, and only if no other insurance of any kind is available to that
person or organization for this liability.
However, no person or organization is an insured with respect to:

198



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 14 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

a. "Bodily injury" to a co-"employee" of the person operating the watercraft; or
b. "Property damage" to property owned by, rented to, in the charge of or occupied by you or the employer of

any person who is an insured under this provision.
No person or organization is an insured with respect to the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint venture or
limited liability company that is not shown as a Named Insured in the Declarations.

D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Most We Will Pay

The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix the most we will pay regardless of the
number of:
a. Insureds;
b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or
c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits".

2. Aggregate Limits

The most we will pay for:
a. Damages because of "bodily injury" and "property damage" included in the "products-completed operations

hazard" is the Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations.
b. Damages because of all other "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury",

including medical expenses, is the General Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations.
This General Aggregate limit does not apply to "property damage" to premises while rented to you or
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner, arising out of fire, lightning or explosion.

3. Each Occurrence Limit

Subject to 2.a. or 2.b above, whichever applies, the most we will pay for the sum of all damages because of all
"bodily injury", "property damage" and medical expenses arising out of any one "occurrence" is the Liability and
Medical Expenses Limit shown in the Declarations.
The most we will pay for all medical expenses because of "bodily injury" sustained by any one person is the
Medical Expenses Limit shown in the Declarations.

4. Personal And Advertising Injury Limit

Subject to 2.b. above, the most we will pay for the sum of all damages because of all "personal and advertising
injury" sustained by any one person or organization is the Personal and Advertising Injury Limit shown in the
Declarations.

5. Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit

The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay under Business Liability Coverage for
damages because of "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, or in the case of damage by
fire, lightning or explosion, while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner.
In the case of damage by fire, lightning or explosion, the Damage to Premises Rented To You Limit applies to all
damage proximately caused by the same event, whether such damage results from fire, lightning or explosion or
any combination of these.

6. How Limits Apply To Additional Insureds

The most we will pay on behalf of a person or organization who is an additional insured under this Coverage Part
is the lesser of:
a. The limits of insurance required in a written contract, written agreement or permit; or
b. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.
Such amount shall be a part of and not in addition to the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and
described in this Section.

If more than one limit of insurance under this Policy and any endorsements attached thereto applies to any claim or
"suit", the most we will pay under this Policy and the endorsements is the single highest limit of liability of all

199



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 15 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

coverages applicable to such claim or "suit". However, this paragraph does not apply to the Medical Expenses limit
set forth in Paragraph 3. above.
The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply separately to each consecutive annual period and to any
remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy period shown in the Declarations,
unless the policy period is extended after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 months. In that case, the
additional period will be deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance.

E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve us of our obligations under this
Coverage Part.

2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit

a. Notice Of Occurrence Or Offense

You or any additional insured under this Coverage Part must see to it that we are notified as soon as
practicable of an "occurrence" or an offense which may result in a claim. To the extent possible, notice should
include:
(1) How, when and where the "occurrence" or offense took place;
(2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and
(3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the "occurrence" or offense.

b. Notice Of Claim

If a claim is made or "suit" is brought against any insured, you or any additional insured under this Coverage
Part must:
(1) Immediately record the specifics of the claim or "suit" and the date received; and
(2) Notify us as soon as practicable.
You or any additional insured under this Coverage Part must see to it that we receive a written notice of the
claim or "suit" as soon as practicable.

c. Assistance And Cooperation Of The Insured

You and any other involved insured must:
(1) Immediately send us copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in connection

with the claim or “suit”;
(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other information;
(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement of the claim or defense against the "suit"; and
(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the enforcement of any right against any person or organization that may

be liable to the insured because of injury or damage to which this insurance may also apply.
d. Obligations At The Insured's Own Cost

No insured will, except at that insured's own cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any obligation, or
incur any expense, other than for first aid, without our consent.

e. Additional Insured's Other Insurance

If we cover a claim or "suit" under this Coverage Part that may also be covered by other insurance available
to an additional insured under this Coverage Part, such additional insured must submit such claim or "suit" to
the other insurer for defense and indemnity.
However, this provision does not apply to the extent that you have agreed in a written contract, written
agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and non-contributory with such additional insured's own
insurance.

f. Knowledge Of An Occurrence, Offense, Claim Or Suit

Paragraphs a. and b. apply to you or to any additional insured under this Coverage Part only when such
"occurrence", offense, claim or "suit" is known to:

200



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 16 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(1) You or any additional insured under this Coverage Part that is an individual;
(2) Any partner, if you or an additional insured under this Coverage Part is a partnership;
(3) Any manager, if you or an additional insured under this Coverage Part is a limited liability company;
(4) Any "executive officer" or insurance manager, if you or an additional insured under this Coverage Part is a

corporation;
(5) Any trustee, if you or an additional insured under this Coverage Part is a trust; or
(6) Any elected or appointed official, if you or an additional insured under this Coverage Part is a political

subdivision or public entity.
This Paragraph f. applies separately to you and any additional insured under this Coverage Part.

3. Legal action Against Us

No person or organization has a right under this Coverage Part:
a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into a "suit" asking for damages from an insured; or
b. To sue us on this Coverage Part unless all of its terms have been fully complied with.
A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final judgment against an
insured; but we will not be liable for damages that are not payable under the terms of this insurance or that are in
excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a settlement and release of liability
signed by us, the insured and the claimant or the claimant's legal representative.

4. Separation Of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this Policy to the
first Named Insured, this insurance applies:
a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and
b. Separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or "suit" is brought.

5. Representations

a. When You Accept This Policy

By accepting this Policy, you agree:
(1) The statements in the Declarations are accurate and complete;
(2) Those statements are based upon representations you made to us; and
(3) We have issued this Policy in reliance upon your representations.

b. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazards

If unintentionally you should fail to disclose all hazards relating to the conduct of your business at the
inception date of this Coverage Part, we shall not deny any coverage under this Coverage Part because of
such failure.

6. Other Insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available for a loss we cover under this Coverage Part, our obligations
are limited as follows:
a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary except when b. below applies. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with
all that other insurance by the method described in c. below.

b. Excess Insurance

This insurance is excess over any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other
basis:
(1) Your Work

That is Fire, Extended Coverage, Builder's Risk, Installation Risk, Owner Controlled Insurance Program
or OCIP, Contractor Controlled Insurance Program or CCIP, Wrap Up Insurance or similar coverage for
"your work";

201



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 17 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Premises Rented To You

That is fire, lightning or explosion insurance for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner;

(3) Tenant Liability

That is insurance purchased by you to cover your liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner;

(4) Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft

If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to
Exclusion g. of Section B. Exclusions.

(5) Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment Or Use Of Elevators

If the loss arises out of "property damage" to borrowed equipment or the use of elevators to the extent not
subject to Exclusion k. of Section B. Exclusions.

(6) When You Are Added As An Additional Insured To Other Insurance

That is other insurance available to you covering liability for damages arising out of the premises or
operations, or products and completed operations, for which you have been added as an additional
insured by that insurance; or

(7) When You Add Others As An Additional Insured To This Insurance

That is other insurance available to an additional insured.
However, the following provisions apply to other insurance available to any person or organization who is
an additional insured under this Coverage Part:
(a) Primary Insurance When Required By Contract

This insurance is primary if you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that
this insurance be primary. If other insurance is also primary, we will share with all that other insurance
by the method described in c. below.

(b) Primary And Non-Contributory To Other Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract, written agreement or permit that this insurance is primary and
non-contributory with the additional insured's own insurance, this insurance is primary and we will not
seek contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs (a) and (b) do not apply to other insurance to which the additional insured has been added as
an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under this Coverage Part to defend the insured against
any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends,
we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.
When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if
any, that exceeds the sum of:
(1) The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance;

and
(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess
Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this
approach, each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of
the loss remains, whichever comes first.

202



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 18 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under
this method, each insurer’s share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total
applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

7. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us

a. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have
made under this Coverage Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to
impair them. At our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce
them. This condition does not apply to Medical Expenses Coverage.

b. Waiver Of Rights Of Recovery (Waiver Of Subrogation)

If the insured has waived any rights of recovery against any person or organization for all or part of any
payment, including Supplementary Payments, we have made under this Coverage Part, we also waive that
right, provided the insured waived their rights of recovery against such person or organization in a contract,
agreement or permit that was executed prior to the injury or damage.

F. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL EXPENSES DEFINITIONS

1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast or published to the general public or specific market segments
about your goods, products or services for the purpose of attracting customers or supporters. For the purpose of
this definition:
a. Notices that are published include material placed on the Internet or on similar electronic means of

communication; and
b. Regarding web sites, only that part of a web site that is about your goods, products or services for the

purpose of attracting customers or supporters is considered an advertisement.
2. "Advertising idea" means any idea for an "advertisement".
3. "Asbestos hazard" means an exposure or threat of exposure to the actual or alleged properties of asbestos and

includes the mere presence of asbestos in any form.
4. "Auto" means:

a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semi-trailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached
machinery or equipment; or

b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance or motor vehicle registration law where it is licensed or principally garaged.

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equipment".
5. "Bodily injury" means physical:

a. Injury;
b. Sickness; or
c. Disease
sustained by a person and, if arising out of the above, mental anguish or death at any time.

6. "Coverage territory" means:
a. The United States of America (including its territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and Canada;
b. International waters or airspace, but only if the injury or damage occurs in the course of travel or

transportation between any places included in a. above;
c. All other parts of the world if the injury or damage arises out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in the territory described in a. above;
(2) The activities of a person whose home is in the territory described in a. above, but is away for a short time

on your business; or

203



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 19 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(3) "Personal and advertising injury" offenses that take place through the Internet or similar electronic means
of communication.

provided the insured's responsibility to pay damages is determined in the United States of America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico or Canada, in a "suit" on the merits according to the substantive law in
such territory, or in a settlement we agree to.

7. "Electronic data" means information, facts or computer programs stored as or on, created or used on, or
transmitted to or from computer software (including systems and applications software), on hard or floppy disks,
CD-ROMs, tapes, drives, cells, data processing devices or any other repositories of computer software which are
used with electronically controlled equipment. The term computer programs, referred to in the foregoing
description of “electronic data”, means a set of related electronic instructions which direct the operations and
functions of a computer or device connected to it, which enable the computer or device to receive, process, store,
retrieve or send data.

8. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". "Employee" does not include a "temporary worker".
9. "Executive officer" means a person holding any of the officer positions created by your charter, constitution, by-

laws or any other similar governing document.
10. "Hostile fire" means one which becomes uncontrollable or breaks out from where it was intended to be.
11. "Impaired property" means tangible property, other than "your product" or "your work", that cannot be used or is

less useful because:
a. It incorporates "your product" or "your work" that is known or thought to be defective, deficient, inadequate or

dangerous; or
b. You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract or agreement;
if such property can be restored to use by:
a. The repair, replacement, adjustment or removal of "your product" or "your work"; or
b. Your fulfilling the terms of the contract or agreement.

12. "Insured contract" means:
a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of premises that

indemnifies any person or organization for damage by fire, lightning or explosion to premises while rented to
you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner is subject to the Damage To Premises
Rented To You limit described in Section D. Liability And Medical Expenses Limits Of Insurance.

b. A sidetrack agreement;
c. Any easement or license agreement, including an easement or license agreement in connection with

construction or demolition operations on or within 50 feet of a railroad;
d. Any obligation, as required by ordinance, to indemnify a municipality, except in connection with work for a

municipality;
e. An elevator maintenance agreement; or
f. That part of any other contract or agreement pertaining to your business (including an indemnification of a

municipality in connection with work performed for a municipality) under which you assume the tort liability of
another party to pay for "bodily injury" or "property damage" to a third person or organization. Tort liability
means a liability that would be imposed by law in the absence of any contract or agreement.
Paragraph f. includes that part of any contract or agreement that indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" or
"property damage" arising out of construction or demolition operations within 50 feet of any railroad property
and affecting any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing.
However, Paragraph f. does not include that part of any contract or agreement:
(1) That indemnifies an architect, engineer or surveyor for injury or damage arising out of:

(a) Preparing, approving or failing to prepare or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or
damage; or

204



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 20 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(2) Under which the insured, if an architect, engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for an injury or damage
arising out of the insured's rendering or failure to render professional services, including those listed in (1)
above and supervisory, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

13. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by a labor leasing firm under an agreement between you and the
labor leasing firm, to perform duties related to the conduct of your business. "Leased worker" does not include a
"temporary worker".

14. "Loading or unloading" means the handling of property:
a. After it is moved from the place where it is accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft, watercraft or

"auto";
b. While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or "auto"; or
c. While it is being moved from an aircraft, watercraft or "auto" to the place where it is finally delivered;
but "loading or unloading" does not include the movement of property by means of a mechanical device, other
than a hand truck, that is not attached to the aircraft, watercraft or "auto".

15. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following types of land vehicles, including any attached machinery or
equipment:
a. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other vehicles designed for use principally off public roads;
b. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to premises you own or rent;
c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;
d. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, on which are permanently mounted:

(1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or drills; or
(2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment such as graders, scrapers or rollers;

e. Vehicles not described in a., b., c., or d. above that are not self-propelled and are maintained primarily to
provide mobility to permanently attached equipment of the following types:
(1) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, geophysical

exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment; or
(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to raise or lower workers;

f. Vehicles not described in a., b., c., or d. above maintained primarily for purposes other than the transportation
of persons or cargo.
However, self-propelled vehicles with the following types of permanently attached equipment are not "mobile
equipment" but will be considered "autos":
(1) Equipment, of at least 1,000 pounds gross vehicle weight, designed primarily for:

(a) Snow removal;
(b) Road maintenance, but not construction or resurfacing; or
(c) Street cleaning;

(2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted on automobile or truck chassis and used to raise or lower
workers; and

(3) Air compressors, pumps and generators, including spraying, welding, building cleaning, geophysical
exploration, lighting and well servicing equipment.

However, “mobile equipment” does not include any land vehicle that is subject to a compulsory or financial
responsibility law or other motor vehicle insurance or motor vehicle registration law where they are licensed or
principally garaged. Land vehicles subject to a compulsory or financial responsibility law or other motor vehicle
insurance law or motor vehicle registration law are considered “autos”.

16. "Occurrence" means an accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the same general
harmful conditions.

17. "Personal and advertising injury" means injury, including consequential "bodily injury", arising out of one or more
of the following offenses:

205



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 21 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment;
b. Malicious prosecution;
c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the right of private occupancy of a room,

dwelling or premises that a person or organization occupies, committed by or on behalf of its owner, landlord
or lessor;

d. Oral, written, electronic, or any other manner of publication of material that slanders or libels a person or
organization or disparages a person's or organization's goods, products or services;

e. Oral, written, electronic, or any other manner of publication of material that violates a person's right of privacy;
f. Copying, in your "advertisement", a person’s or organization’s "advertising idea" or style of "advertisement"; or
g. Infringement of copyright, slogan, or title of any literary or artistic work, in your "advertisement".

18. "Pollutants" means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot,
fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.

19. "Products-completed operations hazard";
a. Includes all "bodily injury" and "property damage" occurring away from premises you own or rent and arising

out of "your product" or "your work" except:
(1) Products that are still in your physical possession; or
(2) Work that has not yet been completed or abandoned. However, "your work" will be deemed to be

completed at the earliest of the following times:
(a) When all of the work called for in your contract has been completed.
(b) When all of the work to be done at the job site has been completed if your contract calls for work at

more than one job site.
(c) When that part of the work done at a job site has been put to its intended use by any person or

organization other than another contractor or subcontractor working on the same project.
Work that may need service, maintenance, correction, repair or replacement, but which is otherwise
complete, will be treated as completed.
The "bodily injury" or "property damage" must occur away from premises you own or rent, unless your
business includes the selling, handling or distribution of "your product" for consumption on premises you own
or rent.

b. Does not include "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of:
(1) The transportation of property, unless the injury or damage arises out of a condition in or on a vehicle not

owned or operated by you, and that condition was created by the "loading or unloading" of that vehicle by
any insured; or

(2) The existence of tools, uninstalled equipment or abandoned or unused materials.
20. "Property damage" means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including all resulting loss of use of that property. All such loss of use shall
be deemed to occur at the time of the physical injury that caused it; or

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not physically injured. All such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at
the time of "occurrence" that caused it.

As used in this definition, "electronic data" is not tangible property.
21. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages because of "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and

advertising injury" to which this insurance applies are alleged. "Suit" includes:
a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured must submit or does

submit with our consent; or
b. Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the

insured submits with our consent.

206



Form SL 00 00 10 18 Page 22 of 22
© 2018, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

22. "Temporary worker" means a person who is furnished to you to substitute for a permanent "employee" on leave or
to meet seasonal or short-term workload conditions.

23. "Unmanned aircraft" means an aircraft that is not:
a. Designed;
b. Manufactured; or
c. Modified after manufacture;
to be controlled directly by a person from within or on the aircraft.

24. "Volunteer worker" means a person who:
a. Is not your "employee";
b. Donates his or her work;
c. Acts at the direction of and within the scope of duties determined by you; and
d. Is not paid a fee, salary or other compensation by you or anyone else for their work performed for you.

25. "Your product":
a. Means:

(1) Any goods or products, other than real property, manufactured, sold, handled, distributed or disposed of
by:
(a) You;
(b) Others trading under your name; or
(c) A person or organization whose business or assets you have acquired; and

(2) Containers (other than vehicles), materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such goods
or products.

b. Includes:
(1) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, durability,

performance or use of "your product"; and
(2) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.

c. Does not include vending machines or other property rented to or located for the use of others but not sold.
26. "Your work":

a. Means:
(1) Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and
(2) Materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.

b. Includes:
(1) Warranties or representations made at any time with respect to the fitness, quality, durability,

performance or use of "your work"; and
(2) The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.

207



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 06 21 Page 1 of 3
© 2021, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Except as otherwise stated in this endorsement, the terms and conditions of the Policy apply.

A. The following is added to Section C. WHO IS AN INSURED:

Additional Insureds When Required By Written Contract, Written Agreement Or Permit

The person(s) or organization(s) identified in Paragraphs a. through f. below are additional insureds when you
have agreed, in a written contract or written agreement, or when required by a written permit issued by a state or
governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision that such person or organization be added as an
additional insured on your Coverage Part, provided the injury or damage occurs subsequent to the execution of
the contract or agreement, or the issuance of the permit.

A person or organization is an additional insured under this provision only for that period of time required by the
contract, agreement or permit.

However, no such person or organization is an additional insured under this provision if such person or
organization is included as an additional insured by any other endorsement issued by us and made a part of this
Coverage Part.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the
contract, agreement, or permit to provide for such additional insured.

The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law.

The limits of insurance that apply to additional insureds are described in Section D. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES LIMITS OF INSURANCE. How this insurance applies when other insurance is available to an
additional insured is described in the Other Insurance Condition in Section E. LIABILITY AND MEDICAL
EXPENSES GENERAL CONDITIONS.

a. Vendors

Any person(s) or organization(s) (referred to below as vendor), but only with respect to "bodily injury" or
"property damage" arising out of "your products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the
vendor's business and only if this Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage"
included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

(1) The insurance afforded to the vendor is subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay damages by reason of
the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not apply to liability for
damages that the vendor would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection, demonstration, testing, or
the substitution of parts under instructions from the manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original
container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to
make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the
distribution or sale of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations performed at the
vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

Policy Number: 72SBABH1DMT

208



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 06 21 Page 2 of 3
© 2021, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or used as a
container, part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the vendor; or

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor for its own acts or
omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its behalf. However, this exclusion
does not apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to make or normally
undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in connection with the distribution or sale of
the products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization from whom you have acquired such
products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, accompanying or containing such products.

b. Lessors Of Equipment

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment; but only with respect to their liability for
"bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your
maintenance, operation or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to any
"occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that equipment.

c. Lessors Of Land Or Premises

(1) Any person or organization from whom you lease land or premises, but only with respect to liability arising
out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the land or premises leased to you.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to lease that land or be a tenant in that premises;
or

(b) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such
person or organization.

d. Architects, Engineers Or Surveyors

(1) Any architect, engineer, or surveyor, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage"
or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In connection with your premises;

(b) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but
only if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion
applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising
injury" arising out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services, including:

(i) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions,
reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(ii) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision,
hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property

209



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Form SL 30 32 06 21 Page 3 of 3
© 2021, The Hartford

(May include copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission)

damage”, or “personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any
professional service.

e. State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision Issuing Permit

(1) Any state or governmental agency or subdivision or political subdivision, but only with respect to
operations performed by you or on your behalf for which the state or governmental agency or subdivision
or political subdivision has issued a permit.

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of operations
performed for the federal government, state or municipality; or

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed operations hazard".

f. Any Other Party

(1) Any other person or organization who is not in one of the categories or classes listed above in
Paragraphs a. through e. above, but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or
omissions of those acting on your behalf:

(a) In the performance of your ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf;

(b) In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you; or

(c) In connection with "your work" and included within the "products-completed operations hazard", but
only if:

(i) The written contract, written agreement or permit requires you to provide such coverage to such
additional insured; and

(ii) This Coverage Part provides coverage for "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the
"products-completed operations hazard".

(2) With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional exclusion
applies:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury"
arising out of the rendering of, or the failure to render, any professional architectural, engineering or
surveying services, including:

(a) The preparing, approving, or failure to prepare or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, field orders, change orders, designs or drawings and specifications; or

(b) Supervisory, surveying, inspection, architectural or engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims allege negligence or other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring,
employment, training or monitoring of others by an insured, if the “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or
“personal and advertising injury” arises out of the rendering of or the failure to render any professional
service described in Paragraphs f.(2)(a) or f.(2)(b) above.

210



Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Request for Proposals 
to provide: 

Independent Fiscal Analysis Services

Response due by 12:00 p.m. noon on Monday, January 27, 2025 
Issued December 19, 2024 

Yolo LAFCo 
625 Court Street, Suite 107 

Woodland, CA 95695 
(530) 666-8048

www.yololafco.org 

To analyze the fiscal impact of the proposed 
Elkhorn Fire Protection District Reorganization 

and Plan for Services, inform the fire service 
contract negotiation process, and  

provide recommendations   

Exhibit B

211

http://www.yololafco.org/


Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  2 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
Introduction 
The Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is processing a proposal to reorganize the 
Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD), which would result in a change to the District’s boundaries 
and governance, and contracting out its services to the Cities of West Sacramento and Woodland. 
This Request for Proposals (RFP) seeks a qualified consulting firm to provide fiscal consulting 
services, including review of the proposed plan for services and confirm LAFCo’s approach to 
estimate cities’ service costs as a starting point for agency negotiation, compare city contract costs 
to existing service areas to inform contract negotiations, compare Elkhorn FPD revenue to 
proposed costs determining any financial shortfall, and recommend a plan to address any 
shortfall.  
 
Proposal Background 
The Elkhorn FPD provides fire suppression and emergency response to approximately 48 square 
miles of unincorporated territory east of Woodland and North of West Sacramento. Yolo LAFCo 
adopted a Municipal Services Review in July 2022 which recommended the Elkhorn FPD should 
be dissolved and its territory annexed into Springlake FPD (for the City of Woodland service area) 
and County Service Area (CSA) 9 (for the City of West Sacramento service area), dividing up the 
territory geographically to minimize response times.   

Recognizing volunteer service is not sustainable in the long term, the Elkhorn FPD submitted an 
application to dissolve the district on September 26, 2024.  Pursuant to its powers under the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, LAFCo is amending the application reorganizing the FPD as follows1:  

• Detach the northern portion of Elkhorn FPD territory (i.e. the proposed contracted service 
area for the City of Woodland Fire Department) and annex it into the Springlake FPD 
(likely as a separate Zone of Benefit); 

• Change the Elkhorn FPD’s Board of Directors from being appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors to being the Board of Supervisors; 

• Adopt a Sphere of Influence Update for Elkhorn FPD to include the CSA 9 territory south 
of West Sacramento; and 

• Dissolve CSA 9 and annex the CSA 9 territory into the Elkhorn FPD. The City of West 
Sacramento Fire Department would provide fire services via contract. 

The map below illustrates this approach to reorganizing the Elkhorn FPD, with Woodland and 
West Sacramento's fire departments providing fire protection services via contract. Of note, 
rather than dissolving the FPD, LAFCo staff recommends that the FPD be kept intact, but directly 
governed by the Board of Supervisors, and that its territory be limited to the West Sacramento 
service territory. Under this approach, Woodland's service territory would be annexed into the 
Springlake FPD which is currently already served by the City of Woodland Fire Department via 
contract. 

 
1 This reflects LAFCo’s current working proposal and does not preclude LAFCo from ultimately making a 
different governance decision regarding successor agencies, such as putting all Elkhorn FPD into CSA 9, for 
example.   

212

https://www.yololafco.org/fire-protection-districts


Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  3 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

 

 

A detailed LAFCo process chart is attached for context, which includes among other milestones a 
Plan for Services, Negotiating Fire Service Contracts, and an Independent Fiscal Analysis. Fiscal 
analysis services are needed to validate the estimated Cities costs per each city’s Book of Fees, 
compare these costs to other Cities service areas outside their jurisdiction (i.e. West Sacramento 
currently serves Area 3/CSA 9 and Woodland currently serves Springlake FPD north of CR 29), and 
inform the Elkhorn FPD and Cities in their contract negotiation process, and help inform LAFCo’s 

213



Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  4 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

determination if there is sufficient FPD revenue and reserve, and recommendations to address 
any shortfall.  

Scope of Services and Deliverables 

Yolo LAFCo is seeking qualified proposals for an independent fiscal consultant to complete the 
following: 

Phase I 

1. Consultant will attend a kick-off meeting with LAFCo staff to review the Elkhorn FPD 
Reorganization Proposal, Scope of Services, and schedule. 

2. Consultant will review LAFCo’s Plan for Services which will include: (1) methodology for 
determining Cities cost per call type (based on each city’s adopted Book of Fees, call data, 
and a 3-year average of Elkhorn FPD’s calls 2022-2024) to estimate an average cost to 
provide service to the Elkhorn FPD per year, and (2) cost comparison to Cities’ existing 
service areas outside its jurisdiction (e.g., CSA 9 for City of West Sacramento and 
Springlake FPD north of CR 29). 

3. Consultant will collect, review, and analyze fiscal information with costs estimated in Item 
2 including: (1) Elkhorn FPD revenue separated into Areas 1 and 2 per the map above, 
plus a 3-year projection; and (2) Revenue for Springlake FPD (north of CR 29) and CSA 9 
(Area 3), plus a 3-year projection. 

4. Consultant will prepare an initial white paper of their analysis and findings for Phase I. 

5. LAFCO staff will distribute the initial report to the Reorganization Committee for review 
and Consultant will attend Committee meeting in Woodland, CA to answer questions 
(attendance via Zoom may be an option). 

6. Completion of the initial report may be an iterative process and will inform the contract 
negotiation between the Elkhorn FPD (undertaken by Yolo County) and Cities. 

Phase II 

7. Once contract costs are negotiated and known, Consultant will determine if there is 
sufficient Elkhorn FPD revenue currently, plus going forward three (3) fiscal years and a 
reasonable reserve, to cover the contract costs (with Cities), determine any shortfall, 
compare and determine any potential fiscal impact to existing Elkhorn FPD and City 
customers, and provide recommendations to resolve any shortfall. 

8. Consultant will provide a Draft Report of the complete analysis to staff for review and 
comment, and Consultant will resolve any questions/comments. 

9. Consultant will provide Final Report (both PDF and Word versions) and attend the LAFCo 
Public Hearing considering the reorganization to answer any Commission or public 
questions if necessary.  

Additional Services 

Consultant will provide additional services as needed to inform LAFCo’s decision-making 
related to the reorganization proposal. 

Process and Deliverables 

Preparation of the report will include the following steps: 

214



Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  5 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

• Data collection: Consultant will provide a list of information needed and LAFCo staff will 
gather the information for the Consultant (e.g. reports from County Treasury, Auditor, 
and Prop 218 info).  

• Consultant will review, interpret, and analyze of all the information collected. 

• Consultant will work closely with LAFCo staff to resolve any questions and issues. 

• Consultant will produce administrative drafts of reports for LAFCo staff review in Word 
version.  

• Consultant will prepare final report addressing comments from LAFCo staff and the 
Reorganization Committee (provide electronic PDF and Word versions). 

Contents of Proposal 

The proposal shall be specifically responsive to this request and shall include, but not necessarily 
be limited to, the following: 

• General statement by the firm or individual about the proposal, including an 
understanding and general approach to accomplishing the work as outlined. The 
statement should demonstrate the experience and qualifications to perform the required 
fiscal analysis, including information regarding similar experience. 

• Specific substantiated statement of the firm or individual’s qualifications to perform the 
work, ability to stay within budget, and meet deadlines. 

• Identification and designation of the individual(s) who would perform the work, including 
resumes documenting their experience and competence to perform that work.  Note that 
any subsequent changes in staff performing the work will require prior approval by LAFCo. 

• General timeline and scope of work required to complete the documents in the most 
efficient and timely manner. The timeline should identify numerous check-in meetings 
with LAFCo staff as appropriate.  

• General proposal costs and identification of the tasks associated with Phases I and II, 
including a list of the firm’s hourly rate and estimate of hours by employee needed to 
complete the scope of work. The costs should specify deliverables and number of 
meetings/presentations included in the fee. LAFCo is anticipating a fixed fee or hourly 
not-to-exceed type of contract, subject to negotiation.  

• A list of not less than three (3) client references for which similar services to those 
outlined in this request for proposals have recently been, or are currently being, provided. 
For each reference listed provide the name of the organization, dates, and type of 
service(s) provided, and the name, address, e-mail address and telephone number of the 
appropriate contact. 

Proposal deadline is 12:00 p.m. noon on Monday, January 27, 2025. 

Evaluation Process 

During the evaluation process, LAFCo reserves the right to request additional information or 
clarifications from responders or to allow corrections of errors or omissions. At the discretion of 
the LAFCo, firms submitting proposals may be requested to make oral presentations as part of 
the evaluation process. LAFCo reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any 
ideas in a proposal regardless of whether the proposal was selected.  

Yolo LAFCo staff will review each proposal and evaluate the ability of each individual or firm to 
meet the expectations defined herein. References will be contacted. The proposals will be ranked, 

215



Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  6 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

and the top firms may be invited to an interview with LAFCo and subject agency representatives. 
A consultant will then be selected, and the contract approval process will begin. LAFCo may 
modify this evaluation process as appropriate. 

The successful bidder will be required to enter into a contract with Yolo LAFCo. A copy of the 
contract template is included in Exhibit C.  Objections/exceptions to the template contract must 
be included in the proposal. There is no expressed or implied obligation for LAFCo to reimburse 
responding firms for any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request.  

Consultant Selection  

The following attributes will be considered in determining the award of the contract: 

• Qualifications and experience of the consultant team, and ability to work well with the 
staff from LAFCo and subject agencies. 

• Prior experience with similar projects, fostering multi-agency partnerships, and 
cooperative problem-solving. 

• Thoroughness of approach to conducting the scope of work and demonstration of the 
understanding of the objectives, explicitly identifying any suggested changes to the Scope 
of Services. 

• Ability to analyze and present information in an organized format and in a timely manner. 

• Overall cost including a clear and reasonable outline of cost estimates and past 
performance with staying within budget. 

• Comments on the draft contract and ability of the firm to meet the insurance 
requirements and other provisions. 

• Information provided by references. 

Firm interviews may be held as part of the selection process, if needed, likely via Zoom in early 
February.  

Additional Information 

Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Proposal: 

If additional clarification of the proposal is needed, a study session was held at the October 31, 
2024 LAFCo meeting and can be viewed here: https://www.yololafco.org/2024-10-31-
commission-meeting. 

Timeline: 

The schedule below is preliminary, and a final project schedule will be determined and agreed to 
by LAFCo and the selected consultant. 

Task Estimated Date 
RFP Issued Thursday, December 19, 2024 

Proposal Due 12:00 p.m. noon on Monday, January 27, 2025 
Contract Approval by Yolo LAFCo February 27, 2025 

Kick off Meeting Week of March 3rd, 2025 
Phase I White Paper Monday, April 14th, 2025 
Phase II Final Report TBD (likely early summer 2025) following agency 

service contract negotiation 
 

216

https://www.yololafco.org/2024-10-31-commission-meeting
https://www.yololafco.org/2024-10-31-commission-meeting


Yolo LAFCo Request for Proposals  7 December 19, 2024 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Fiscal Analysis Services  

Reorganization Committee: 

LAFCo staff has formed a steering committee to help advise on proposal process with 
representatives from the following affected agencies: CSA 9, Elkhorn FPD, Springlake FPD, City of 
West Sacramento Fire Chief, City of Woodland Fire Chief, and LAFCo staff. Currently, meetings are 
held on the 3rd Thursday of the month at 9am in Woodland.  

Insurance:  

The form of contract includes standard form insurance requirements and standard form insurance 
certificates, which are utilized by the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance 
Authority (YCPARMIA), a self-insurance joint powers agency, of which Yolo LAFCo is a member. A 
copy of YCPARMIA’s “Insurance Requirement Guidelines” is attached (Exhibit B), as is a draft 
contract (Exhibit C). 

Yolo County Financial System: 

The County implemented a new financial system, the Infor CloudSuite, in July 2023.   

Contract Provisions: 

Yolo LAFCo reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, waive any irregularity in the 
proposals and/or to conduct negotiations with any firms, whether or not they have submitted a 
proposal. The Commission's initial draft of the contract form to be used for agreements is 
attached to this RFP. Although the attached draft is subject to revision before execution by the 
parties, by submission of a proposal or statement of qualification the potential contractor 
indicates that except as specifically and expressly noted in its submission, it has no objection to 
the attached draft contract or any of its provisions, and if selected will enter into a final agreement 
based substantially upon the attached draft contract. 

Signature Authority: 

Certify that the person signing the proposal is entitled to represent the firm, empowered to 
submit the bid, and authorized to sign a contract with LAFCo. 

Consultants: 

During the preparation phases, Yolo LAFCo reserves the right to hire consultants as necessary, in 
its discretion, to advise and assist Yolo LAFCo in this project. 

Submittal 

Any questions regarding this proposal shall be submitted in writing to 
christine.crawford@yolocounty.gov. LAFCo practice has been to create an FAQ page online that 
can be viewed by all prospective firms. Proposals shall be submitted electronically to 
christine.crawford@yolocounty.gov.  

Proposal Deadline: 

12:00 p.m. noon on Monday, January 27, 2025  

Exhibits 

A. Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Process Chart 

B. Insurance Requirement Guidelines 

C. Draft Contract 

217

mailto:christine.crawford@yolocounty.gov
mailto:christine.crawford@yolocounty.gov


Page 1 
10/22/2024 

 

Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Process Chart 

  
 

 

  

Elkhorn Dissolution 
Application Submitted      

Sep 26, 2024

•LAFCo sets up working 
group and regular meetings

•LAFCo determine district 
boundary changes to 
propose (to work towards 
in application process, i.e. 
not final) which defines the 
"affected territory" for 
application purposes

•Correspondingly, LAFCo will 
need to add SOI 
Amendment and 
Annexations to application.

•LAFCo study session 
10/31/2024 to check in on 
governance approach 
before developing plan, 
contracts, and analysis.

LAFCo Routes 
Reorganization Application

•LAFCo routes to affected 
agencies (Springlake FPD 
can request termination of 
annexation if desired)

•Assessor determines 
property valuation

•Auditor determines portion 
of 1% property taxes that 
would be exchanged 
(provides info for financing 
new services) 

•BOS consults and 
negotiates proposed tax 
exchange on behalf of 
districts (not binding if 
boundary changes don't go 
through)

LAFCo Prepares Plan for 
Services

•Description/enumeration 
of new fire services (level of 
service, etc.)

•Any improvements or 
upgrades required

•Total estimated cost to 
provide the new services to 
affected territory

•Plan for financing new 
services

•Fiscal impact to remainder 
of Elkhorn (and 
Springlake/CSA 9) 
customers

•Potential fiscal impact to 
existing customers

•Consideration of any 
alternatives

•Timing of new services

County/Cities Negotiate Fire 
Service Contracts

•County negotiates 
proposed contracts with 
cities on behalf of Elkhorn 
and Springlake FPDs.

•Cities either (i) get approval 
from cities’ fire 
associations, or (ii) provide 
copy of contract to fire 
associations w/ 30 days’ 
notice before hearing.

•Cities public hearing to 
authorize city managers to 
sign contracts for extended 
fire services subject to 
LAFCo ordering the 
Reorganization.

Independent Fiscal Analysis

•LAFCo hires consultant
•Review plan for services
•Comparison of existing 

provider to other services
•Determines if sufficient 

revenue to provide services 
for at least 3 FYs (LAFCo can 
condition agency payments 
or assessments to provide 
sufficient revenue)

These steps can occur in tandem 

See next page 

218



Page 2 
10/22/2024 

 

 

 

 

Definitions: 

56014. "Affected local agency" means any local agency that contains, or would contain, or whose sphere of influence contains or would contain, any territory for which a change 
of organization is proposed or ordered, either singularly or as part of a reorganization or for which a study is to be reviewed by the commission. 

56015. "Affected territory" means any territory for which a change of organization, reorganization, or sphere of influence change is proposed or ordered, or any territory to which 
services are proposed to be provided. 

56073. "Reorganization" means two or more changes of organization contained within a single proposal. 

LAFCo Certificate of Filing

•Once EO has determined 
the application is complete 
with all these previous 
items, schedule hearing 
within 90 days.

•At least 21 days prior to 
hearing, Executive Officer 
gives notice to each affected 
local agency, county, mailed 
notices to landowners and 
registered voters within 
affected territory +300' 
radius, and anyone who 
filed a written request, and 
publishes notice in 
newspaper and LAFCo 
website.

LAFCo Hearing

•Commission consideration 
of reorganization (i.e. 
dissolution, annexation, and 
extended services) [districts 
receiving new territory need 
to be in agreement]

•LAFCo determines if the 
affected territory is 
expected to receive 
sufficient revenue and 
reasonable reserve for at 
least three FYs post contract 
start date. If insufficient 
revenues, LAFCo may 
condition approval on 
concurrent approval of 
sufficient revenue sources.

LAFCo Annexation Protest 
Process/Hearing

•Executive Officer must set 
protest hearing within 35 
days, hearing must occur 21-
60 days from set date, and 
not during 30-day 
reconsderation period

•Notices published and 
mailed to all landowners 
and registered voters in 
"affected territory" (i.e. 
areas of change)

•LAFCo meeting to count 
protest and determine 
results:

•0-24% orders reorganization
•25%-49% triggers election
•50% + terminates 

proposal/reorg
•If reorg goes through, LAFCo 

adopts a resolution which 
will set timing/effective date 
of changeover, plus any 
conditions that must be met 
first (i.e. service contracts, 
payments, etc.)

LAFCo Certificate of 
Completion

•Issued by Executive Officer 
once all terms and 
conditions are met.

•Documents recorded and 
filed with Board of 
Equalization to change 
agency boundaries and Tax 
Rate Areas (TRAs)

•Change goes into effect, per 
effective date set in 
resolution.

219



Updated 12/14/2022  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Insurance Requirements 
 

1. INSURANCE 

a. During the term of this Contract, Contractor shall at all times maintain, at its expense, the 

following coverages and requirements: 

i. Minimum Scope of Insurance – Coverage shall be at least as broad as the latest version of the 

following: 

1. Commercial General Liability: Insurance Services Office form CG 000. The policy shall not 

contain any exclusions contrary to the Contract, including but not limited to 

endorsements or provisions limiting coverage for 1) Contractual liability such as ISO CG 

24 26 or 21 29; or 2) cross liability or suits by one insured against another. 

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01, code 1- Any Auto or 

including Hired and Non-Owned vehicles. 

3. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as 

required by the State of California and Employers’ Liability. 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) (If applicable, see below) 

ii. Minimum Limits (as applicable) - Insurance coverage shall be with limits not less than the 

following: 

1. Commercial General Liability – $2,000,000/occurrence and $4,000,000 annual aggregate 

or an aggregate of $2,000,000 that applies separately to this project (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 

04). 

2. Automobile Liability – $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage 

3. Professional Liability/Malpractice/Errors and Omissions - $2,000,000 per occurrence and 

annual aggregate.  

(If any engineer, architect, attorney, accountant, medical professional, psychologist, or 

other licensed professional performs work under a contract, or other professional 

contractors, such as computer and software designers the contractor must provide this 

insurance. If not, then this requirement automatically does not apply) 

4. Workers’ Compensation – Statutory Limits/Employers’ Liability - $1,000,000/accident for 

bodily injury or disease.  

(If no employees, this requirement automatically does not apply) 

It shall be a requirement under this agreement that any available insurance proceeds broader 

than or in excess of the specified minimum Insurance coverage requirements and/or limits 

shall be available to the Additional Insured. Furthermore, the requirements for coverage and 

limits shall be (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Contract; or (2) the 

broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any Insurance policy or proceeds 

available to the named Insured; whichever is greater. 

iii. Other Insurance Provisions 

1. Additional Insured Status - LAFCo, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers shall 

be named as additional insured on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 

work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including, materials, 

parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. Coverage can 

be provided in the form or an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as 

broad as CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 37 and 

one of the following: CG 20 10, CG 20 26, or CG 20 33). [NOTE: Evidence of additional 

220



Updated 12/14/2022  

insured is needed as a separate endorsement or comparable policy language due to 

wording on the certificate negating any additional coverage listed writing in the 

description box.] 

2. Primary Coverage - The Contractor’s policy shall be “primary and non-contributory” and 

will not seek contribution from LAFCo’s insurance or self-insurance and shall be at least 

as broad as CG 20 01 04 13. 

3. Notice of Cancellation – Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage 

shall not be cancelled, except with notice to LAFCo. 

4. Waiver of Subrogation – Contractor hereby grants to LAFCo a waiver of any right to 

subrogation which any insurer of said Contractors may acquire against LAFCo by 

virtue of the payment or any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any 

endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this 

provision applies regardless of whether or not LAFCo has received a waiver of 

subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

iv. The limits of Insurance required in this Contract may be satisfied by a combination of primary 

and umbrella or excess Insurance. Any umbrella or excess Insurance shall contain or be 

endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a primary and 

noncontributory basis for the benefit of LAFCo (if agreed to in a written contract or 

agreement) before LAFCo’s own Insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect 

it as a named insured. 

v. Said policies shall remain in force through the life of this Contract and, with the exception of 

professional liability coverage, shall be payable on a “per occurrence” basis unless the LAFCo 

Risk Manager specifically consents in writing to a “claims made” basis. For all “claims made” 

coverage, in the event that the Contractor changes insurance carriers Contractor shall 

purchase “tail” coverage covering the term of this Contract and not less than three years 

thereafter. Proof of such “tail” coverage shall be required at any time that the Contractor 

changes to a new carrier prior to receipt of any payments due. 

vi. The Contractor shall declare all aggregate limits on the coverage before commencing 

performance of this Contract, and LAFCo’s Risk Manager reserves the right to require 

higher aggregate limits to ensure that the coverage limits required for this Contract as set 

forth above are available throughout the performance of this Contract. 

vii. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and are subject to the approval 

of LAFCo’s Risk Manager. All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to Risk 

Management for approval and shall not reduce the limits of liability. Policies containing any 

SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that the SIR may be satisfied either by 

the named Insured or LAFCo. 

viii. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, 

unless otherwise approved by LAFCo’s Risk Manager. 

ix. The policies shall cover all activities of Contractor, its officers, employees, agents and 

volunteers arising out of or in connection with this Contract. 

x. For any claims relating to this Contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary, 

including as respects LAFCo, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance 

maintained by LAFCo shall apply in excess of, and not contribute with, insurance provided 

by Contractor's liability insurance policy. 

221



Updated 12/14/2022  

 

b. Prior to commencing services pursuant to this Contract, Contractor shall furnish LAFCo with 

original policies or endorsements reflecting coverage required by this Contract. The 

endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

behalf. All endorsements are to be received by, and are subject to the approval of, LAFCo’s 

Risk Manager before work commences. Upon LAFCo’s request, Contractor shall provide 

complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements reflecting 

the coverage required by these specifications. 

c. During the term of this Contract, Contractor shall furnish LAFCo with original endorsements 

reflecting renewals, changes in insurance companies and any other documents reflecting the 

maintenance of the required coverage throughout the entire term of this Contract. The 

endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

behalf. Upon LAFCo’s request, Contractor shall provide complete, certified copies of all required 

insurance policies, including endorsements reflecting the coverage required by these 

specifications. LAFCo reserves the right to obtain a full certified copy of any Insurance policy and 

endorsements. Failure to exercise this right shall not constitute a waiver of right to exercise 

later. 

d. Contractor agrees to include with all Subcontractors in their subcontract the same requirements 

and provisions of this Contract including the indemnity and Insurance requirements to the extent 

they apply to the scope of the Subcontractor’s work. Subcontractors hired by Contractor agree to 

be bound to Contractor and LAFCo in the same manner and to the same extent as Contractor 

is bound to LAFCo under the Contract Documents. Subcontractor further agrees to include these 

same provisions with any Sub-subcontractor. A copy of the Owner Contract Document 

Indemnity and Insurance provisions will be furnished to the Subcontractor upon request. The 

General Contractor/and or Contractor shall require all Subcontractors to provide a valid 

certificate of insurance and the required endorsements included in the Contract prior to 

commencement of any work and General Contractor/and or Contractor will provide proof of 

compliance to LAFCo. (Coverage can be provided in the form or an endorsement to the 

Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as CG 20 38 for operations and CG 20 40 for completed 

operations). 

e. Contractor shall maintain insurance as required by this contract to the fullest amount allowed by 

law and shall maintain insurance for a minimum of five years following the completion of this 

project. In the event Contractor fails to obtain or maintain completed operations coverage as 

required by this Contract, LAFCo at its sole discretion may purchase the coverage required and 

the cost will be paid by Contractor. 

222



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

AGREEMENT №          
(Short-Form Agreement) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this       day of       ,      , by and between the Yolo Local Agency Formation 
Commission (”LAFCo”), and       (“CONTRACTOR”), who agree as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 
1. CONTRACTOR shall perform the following professional services:      , as set forth in greater detail in Exhibit 

     . 
 
2. CONTRACTOR shall perform said services between      ,      , and      ,      . 

 
3. The complete contract shall include the following Exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein:  Exhibit A: 

Insurance Requirement Guidelines,      . 
   
4. Subject to CONTRACTOR’S satisfactory and complete performance of all the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, and upon CONTRACTOR’s submission of an appropriate claim, LAFCo shall pay CONTRACTOR 
no more than a total amount of $     , as identified in      . 

 
5. CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall obtain and maintain throughout the entire term of this 

Agreement, the insurance set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 

6. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
LAFCo, its officers, officials, employees and agents from any and all claims, demands, liability, 
damages, cost or expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees) in law or equity that may at any 
time arise or be asserted based in whole or in part upon any negligent or other wrongful act or omission 
of the CONTRACTOR, it’s officers, agents, or employees. CONTRACTOR responsibility for such 
defense and indemnity obligations shall survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the 
full period of time allowed by law. The defense and indemnification obligations of this Agreement are 
undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the insurance obligations contained 
in this Agreement. 

 
7. Any SUBCONTRACTOR must agree to be bound to CONTRACTOR and LAFCo in the same manner 

and to the same extent as CONTRACTOR is bound to LAFCo under this Agreement.  
SUBCONTRACTORS must further agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this 
Agreement, including the indemnity and insurance requirements, with any SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR 
to the extent they apply to the scope of the SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR’s work. 

 
8. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to any, 

which are promulgated to protect the public health, welfare and safety or prevent conflicts of interest.  
CONTRACTOR shall defend LAFCo and reimburse it for any fines, damages or costs (including 
attorney fees) that might be incurred or assessed based upon a claim or determination that 
CONTRACTOR has violated any applicable law or regulation. 

 
9. This Agreement is subject to LAFCo receiving sufficient funds for the activities required of the Contractor 

pursuant to this Agreement. If LAFCos adopted budget does not contain sufficient funds for this Agreement, 
LAFCo may terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days advance written notice thereof to Contractor, in 
which event LAFCo shall have no obligation to pay Contractor any further funds or provide other consideration 
and the Contractor shall have no obligation to provide any further services under this Agreement. 

 

223



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

10. Either party may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or no reason, upon 30 days’ written notice to the other 
party. 

 
11. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any part of this Agreement, LAFCo may notify the CONTRACTOR of the 

default and CONTRACTOR shall remedy the default. If CONTRACTOR fails to do so, then, in addition to any 
other remedy that LAFCo may have, LAFCo may terminate this Agreement and withhold any or all payments 
otherwise owed to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
12. Attached are licenses &/or certificates required by CONTRACTOR’s profession (Indicating type; No.; State; & 

Expiration date), and CONTRACTOR certifies that he/she/it shall maintain them throughout this Agreement, and 
that CONTRACTOR’s performance will meet the standards of licensure/certification. 

 
13. CONTRACTOR understands that he/she is not an employee of LAFCo and is not eligible for any employee 

benefits, including but not limited to unemployment, health/dental insurance, worker’s compensation, vacation 
or sick leave. 

 
14. CONTRACTOR will hold in confidence all information disclosed to or obtained by CONTRACTOR which 

relates to activities under this Agreement and/or to LAFCo’s plans or activities. All documents and information 
developed under this Agreement and all work products, reports, and related data and materials shall become the 
property of LAFCo. CONTRACTOR shall deliver all of the foregoing to LAFCo upon completion of the 
services hereunder, or upon earlier termination of this Agreement. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall retain all 
of its own records regarding this Agreement and the services provided hereunder for a period of not less than 
four (4) years, and shall make them available to LAFCo for audit and discovery purposes. 

 
15. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, and no other agreements or representations, oral 

or written, have been made or relied upon by either party. This Agreement may only be amended in writing 
signed by both parties, and any other purported amendment shall be of no force or effect. This Agreement, 
including all attachments, shall be subject to disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act. 

 
16. This Agreement shall be deemed to be executed within the State of California and construed in accordance with 

and governed by laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be 
filed and resolved in a California State court located in Woodland, California. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first written above by affixing 
their signatures hereafter. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     LAFCo: 
 
              
Contractor, Title     Christine Crawford, LAFCo Executive Officer 
Business Name      625 Court Street, Suite 107 
Street Address/POB     Woodland, CA 95695 
City/State/Zip      (530) 666-8048       
Phone       Christine.Crawford@yolocounty.org  
Email Address        
 
       Approved to form: 
          
          
     
        Eric May, Commission Counsel 
             

224

mailto:Christine.Crawford@yolocounty.org


 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CERTIFICATION:  I hereby certify under the penalty of perjury that all statements made in or incorporated into this 
Agreement are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.  I understand and agree that LAFCo may, in its sole 
discretion, terminate this Agreement if any such statements are false, incomplete, or incorrect. 
 
              
       Contractor Signature 

225



226



PROPOSAL FOR 

INDEPENDENT FISCAL ANALYSIS 
SERVICES – YOLO LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISION 

YOLO LAFCO 

January 27, 2025 

Exhibit C

227



 

CONTENTS 

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE...................................................................................... 1 

Mission Statement ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Core Values ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Insurance ............................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

RSG Qualifications ........................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Work Experience .............................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Reorganizational Studies ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

Annexation Studies .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Municipal Service Reviews ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Incorporation Studies ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Other Fiscal or Operational Studies .................................................................................................................. 5 

WORK SAMPLES ................................................................................................................................... 6 

PROJECT TEAM AND KEY PERSONNEL........................................................................................... 7 

SCOPE OF WORK AND METHODOLOGY......................................................................................... 11 

Project Understanding ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

PHASE I: Preliminary Fiscal Analysis ................................................................................................................... 12 

Task 1: Project Initiation .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Task 2: Service Cost Analysis................................................................................................................................ 12 

Task 3: Fiscal Forecast ............................................................................................................................................. 13 

Task 4: Draft Memorandum ................................................................................................................................ 13 

Task 5: Reorganization Committee Meeting ............................................................................................. 13 

Task 6: Final Memorandum ................................................................................................................................. 13 

PHASE II: Final Fiscal Analysis ................................................................................................................................. 13 

Task 7: Revised Fiscal Forecast .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Task 8: Draft Report .................................................................................................................................................. 14 

Task 9: Final Report .................................................................................................................................................. 14 

Tentative Project Schedule ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

REFERENCES ......................................................................................................................................... 16 

Sutter County Countywide Fire and Emergency Medical Services Municipal Service Review 
and Sphere of Influence Update – Sutter LAFCO ........................................................................................ 16 

Beckwourth Peak Fire Protection District Formation and Special Tax – Eastern Plumas 
County Local Emergency Services Study Group (Plumas LAFCO, and Planwest Partners, 
Inc.) ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

228



 

Four Cities Municipal Services Review – LA LAFCO.................................................................................... 17 

COMPLIANCE WITH RFP REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................... 18 

Statement of compliance with insurance requirements (Exhibit B) ............................................... 18 

Acknowledgment of acceptance (or any exceptions) to the draft contract (Exhibit C) ........ 18 

COST PROPOSAL .................................................................................................................................. 19 

RSG Billing Rates & Fee Schedule ........................................................................................................................ 19 

229



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

January 27, 2025 Via Email 

 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
625 Court Street, Suite 107,  
Woodland CA 95695 
 
PROPOSAL FOR INDEPENDENT FISCAL ANALYSIS SERVICES FOR THE ELKHORN FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT REORGANIZATION & PLAN FOR SERVICES – YOLO LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION  
 
Dear Ms. Crawford,  

In response to your Request for Proposals (“RFP”), RSG Inc. (“RSG”) is pleased to present this 
proposal for consulting services to assist the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
(“LAFCO”) with analyzing the fiscal impact of the proposed Elkhorn Fire Protection District 
Reorganization and Plan for Services.  

The Yolo LAFCO seeks to reorganize the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD) to ensure 
sustainable fire suppression and emergency response services by redistributing its 
governance and contracting operations to the Cities of Woodland and West Sacramento. This 
project involves a comprehensive fiscal analysis to validate cost assumptions, assess revenue 
sufficiency, and identify potential financial shortfalls. The analysis will guide contract 
negotiations, ensure fiscal sustainability, and support informed governance decisions.  

We understand the critical role this project plays in enhancing public safety and operational 
efficiency while maintaining financial accountability. Our team is committed to delivering a 
thorough, objective evaluation of service costs, revenue projections, and funding strategies to 
meet LAFCO’s goals within an established timeline. 

RSG has previously conducted annexation studies for several clients in the last two years: 
Belmont, Citrus Heights, Martinez, and Huntington Beach, while also preparing the 
comprehensive fiscal analysis for incorporation of a new city (Mountain House) in San Joaquin 
County. We have provided a list of clients for whom we have completed similar projects for 
other LAFCOs across California, along with references that we encourage Yolo LAFCO to 
contact to discuss RSG’s expertise and achievements.   

RSG has extensive knowledge of and experience working with the provisions of the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Act (“CKH Act”), and related legislative updates. RSG is proud to be active 
members of the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (“CALAFCO”), 
where RSG’s Jim Simon, Brandon Fender, and Carol Ieromnimon are honored to serve as 
Advisory members of the CALAFCO Legislative Committee, which provides the CALAFCO 
Board with direction and analysis of legislative updates to the CKH Act.  

This assignment will follow a time-and-materials billing approach, with a not to exceed budget 
of $19,700, as outlined in the Cost Proposal section of this proposal.  

230



 

 

Should you wish to discuss any of the information presented please contact me directly at 
jsimon@rsgsolutions.com or by phone at (714) 316-2120. 

Respectfully, 
 

 
Jim Simon, Principal

231

mailto:jsimon@rsgsolutions.com


 

1 
 

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE  

RSG is a California-based, Subchapter “S” Corporation. Founded in 1979, the firm is currently 
managed by active Principals Jim Simon and Tara Matthews. Our corporate address is 170 
Eucalyptus Ave., Suite 200, Vista, CA 92084, and we have three hubs in California (San Diego, 
Los Angeles, and Oakland) where we collaborate periodically as a team to accommodate the 
needs of our clients and growing firm. 

RSG is a creatively charged consultant to California public agencies. We collaborate with the 
people responsible for creating vibrant places to accomplish their goals. The inspired leaders 
at RSG create stronger communities capable of achieving bolder futures by bringing more 
than four decades of native knowledge to each engagement. As diverse as the agencies we 
work with, our services span fiscal health, real estate, economic development, and housing 
initiatives.  

RSG’s federal taxpayer identification number is 95-343-5849 and state taxpayer identification 
number is 27600915. RSG is also a State certified Small Business Enterprise (SBE - 2006876 
DGS).  

MISSION STATEMENT 

RSG creates solutions to enhance communities’ physical, economic, and social future.  

CORE VALUES 

Our core values define who we are as people and the standards by which we provide services 
to our clients.  

 

INSURANCE  

RSG affirms that it has the required insurance policies in place through Hartford Insurance. 
These policies provide coverage in acceptable amounts for Professional Liability, Workers 
Compensation, Comprehensive General Liability, and Auto (Owned and Non-Owned). Prior to 
the commencement of services, RSG will furnish certificates of insurance coverage to LAFCO 
to verify compliance with insurance requirements. 

Our insurance providers rank in the excellence category for AM Best Rating Services. A 
Certificate of Insurance with applicable endorsements will be provided upon contract award. 

  

232



 

2 
 

RSG QUALIFICATIONS 

RSG provides a range of fiscal services to help government agencies become more effective 
with the resources they use to serve communities. We offer fiscal impact analyses, assistance 
in securing financing, annexation and incorporation studies, municipal service reviews, and 
community engagement services. 

Our fiscal impact studies aim to provide clarity and insight to staff and decision-makers, 
helping under-resourced communities gain access to the resources needed for sustainability 
and quality of life.  

We prepare municipal service reviews and sphere of influence updates, and evaluate 
reorganization, annexation, or incorporation proposals, providing independent analysis and 
recommendations.  

Our community engagement experience includes facilitating public discussions, designing 
strategic plans, working with diverse groups, and presenting complex information to facilitate 
informed decision-making. 

With our expertise in tax increment financing and a strong foundation in community 
engagement, we assist clients in achieving their goals through insightful processes that value 
the community's expertise. 

RSG has provided cutting-edge solutions for local government agencies, including 
outsourcing, shared service studies, and long-range fiscal planning.  We have helped LAFCOs 
develop policies for island annexations and have worked with cities on crafting a viable path 
in delivering services to areas in their sphere of influence.  We have helped cities understand 
how they need to restructure the services they deliver, and the manner in which they evaluate 
how they will take discretionary actions in the future.  With our assistance, our clients have 
been able to instill more fiscal discipline at all levels of their organization, become more 
effective, and have staff engaged in identifying solutions that meet the strategic needs of their 
community.   

Our experience working with LAFCOs around the state has allowed us to participate in the 
MSR process and observe the variety of ways MSRs can be used to meet LAFCOs’ goals. In 
some situations, a lack of growth pressure or lack of significant changes in service levels do not 
warrant an extensive review and a “checklist” approach is sufficient to reaffirm an existing SOI.   
In other situations, a comprehensive, in-depth analysis of demographic trends, financial data, 
infrastructure capacity/conditions, rate structures, service extension barriers for 
disadvantaged unincorporated communities, and shared service delivery alternatives is 
warranted to lay the groundwork for SOI updates and/or imminent changes of 
(re)organization.  And when political considerations impact agencies, the MSR is a necessary 
tool that allows LAFCO to play independent facilitator and evaluator to bring parties together 
around common data and agreement points. 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

RSG has prepared comprehensive fiscal analyses and feasibility studies to support 
incorporations, most recently leading to the formation of California’s newest city – Mountain 
House. We have experience preparing municipal service reviews of cities, fire districts, and 

233



 

3 
 

special districts, including the Siskiyou County LAFCO Countywide Fire MSR and SOI update, 
and Sutter County LAFCO Countywide Fire and EMS MSR and SOI update. We have completed 
annexation studies, reorganizational studies, operational studies, and other fiscal and 
economic impact analyses.  

Below is a list of clients we have provided services for, along with samples of our work, to give 
Yolo LAFCO an opportunity to see our expertise in action.  

REORGANIZATIONAL STUDIES 

Town of Yountville (Napa Co.) 

Domain Chandon Reorganization (Underway) 

City of Portola / Local Emergency Services Study Group (Plumas Co.) 

Portola/East Plumas Fire Protection Reorganization (Completed 2022, with Planwest 
Partners)  

County of San Bernardino  

CSA 79 Reorganization Fiscal Analysis (Completed 2018, Updated in 2022)  

City of Nevada City (Nevada Co.)  

SOI Update and Annexation Plan (Completed 2017)  

ANNEXATION STUDIES 

City of Capitola (Santa Cruz Co.) 

Sphere of Influence Annexation Study (Underway) 

City of Belmont (San Mateo Co.) 

Harbor Bl Annexation Strategy (Underway) 

601 Harbor Bl Annexation (Completed 2023) 

608 Harbor Bl Annexation (Completed 2023) 

Old County Rd/Harbor Bl Annexation (Completed 2021) 

1304 Elmer Street Annexation (Completed 2018)  

City of Citrus Heights (Sacramento Co.)  

Sphere of Influence Annexation Study (Completed 2023) 

City of Huntington Beach (Orange Co.)  

Bolsa Chica Annexation Study (Completed 2009, Updated 2013, Updated 2022)  

City of Martinez (Contra Costa Co.)  

Sphere of Influence Annexation Study (Completed 2021, Updated 2023)  

Alhambra Valley / North Pacheco Annexation Study (Completed 2015)  

234



 

4 
 

City of San Carlos (San Mateo Co.)  

252 Club Drive Annexation (Completed 2020)  

Hyde Park Estates Annexation (Completed 2019)  

Cranfield Annexation (Completed 2015)  

Desert Healthcare District (Riverside Co.)  

AB 2414 Annexation Fiscal Analysis (Completed 2017)  

Berger Foundation / Cathedral City (Riverside Co.)  

SOI Expansion and Annexation Fiscal Analysis (Completed 2013)  

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS 

Alameda LAFCO  

Community Services MSR Update (Underway)  

Placer LAFCO  

Public Utilities Services MSR Update (Underway)  

Cemetery District MSR Update (Underway) 

Sutter LAFCO  

Fire and EMS MSR Update with Planwest Partners (Underway)  

Siskiyou LAFCO  

Fire Services MSR Update with Planwest Partners (Underway) 

Sonoma LAFCO 

Santa Rosa MSR and SOI Update (Completed 2024) 

Orange LAFCO 

Central Region MSR Update (Underway) 

Southwest Region MSR Update (Completed 2023) 

West Region MSR Update (Completed 2023) 

Riverside LAFCO 

28 City MSR and SOI Update (Completed 2022) 

Los Angeles LAFCO 

Bell, Maywood, South El Monte, and Vernon MSRs and SOI Review (Completed 2023) 

La Mirada and Whittier MSR and SOI Update (Completed 2021) 

Consolidated Fire Protection District MSR and SOI Update (Completed 2020) 

235



 

5 
 

Yolo LAFCO 

Water Districts MSR and SOI Update (Completed 2013) 

INCORPORATION STUDIES 

San Joaquin LAFCO 

Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis – Mountain House Incorporation (Completed 2023)  

Malaga County Water District / Malaga (Fresno Co.)  

Initial Fiscal Analysis – Malaga Incorporation (Completed 2018)  

Placer LAFCO  

Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis – Olympic Valley Incorporation (Completed 2015)  

San Bernardino LAFCO  

Rim Communities Incorporation Feasibility Study (Completed 2015)  

OTHER FISCAL OR OPERATIONAL STUDIES 

Placer County 

Parks and Recreation Service Delivery Model (Underway)  

Orange LAFCO  

GIS Mapping Services (Underway)  

March Joint Powers Authority (Riverside Co.) 

JPA Sunsetting Services (Completed 2023) 

CALAFCO 

Update Map of Statewide Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities (Completed 2022) 

Riverside LAFCO 

Update Map of Statewide Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities (Completed 2021) 

City of Carlsbad (San Diego Co.)  

Custodial Service Level Study (Completed 2020)  

Public Works Paint Shop Cost Benefits Analysis (Completed 2016)  

Public Works Department Lines of Business Operational Study (Completed 2013)  

Street & Signal Maintenance Division Business Plan (Completed 2011)  

City of Irwindale (Los Angeles Co.)  

General Fund Fiscal Plan and Sustainability Model (Completed 2018)  

City of Grand Terrace (San Bernardino Co.)  

236



 

6 
 

General Fund Sustainability Analysis (Completed 2011)  

City of South Gate (Los Angeles Co.)  

Housing Division Efficiency Study (Completed 2021)  

WORK SAMPLES 

Due to their size and length, we have elected to provide hyperlinks to three recent LAFCO work 
products we have prepared below: 

1. Consolidated Fire Protection District of the County of Los Angeles Municipal Services 
Review and Sphere of Influence Update (LA LAFCO) 

2. Beckwourth Fire Protection District Formation Feasibility Study (City of Portola) 
3. West Region Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update (OC LAFCO) 

 

  

237

https://lalafco.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/msr/CFPD%202020%20MSR%20Final.pdf
https://lalafco.org/wp-content/uploads/documents/msr/CFPD%202020%20MSR%20Final.pdf
https://bpfpd.ca.gov/files/55dd7e138/Beckwourth+Peak+FPD+Formation+Feasibility+Study+and+Plan+of+Service_Adopted+Oct+2022_vf_tc.pdf
https://oclafco.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/MSR2209_West-Region-MSR-1.pdf


 

7 
 

PROJECT TEAM AND KEY PERSONNEL  

RSG dedicates a Principal to each project assignment and creates a core group of staff who 
work on the individual assignments on a consistent basis throughout all stages of the contract 
engagement. Our staff is focused, committed, and passionate about the work we do. We 
conduct our engagements around our Core Values and are proud of it. We pride ourselves on 
our ability to appropriately allocate our time and resources to ensure that a project is 
completed on time and within budget. 

RSG has assigned members of our consulting team, all with experience working on projects 
similar in scope to what has been proposed by the City. The team would be led by Jim Simon, 
Principal. Mr. Simon would be assisted by Brandon Fender, Senior Associate and Carol 
Ieromnimon, Associate. Additional RSG staff will be assigned as needed and will be clearly 
communicated with LAFCO.  

Jim Simon, President & Principal, would serve as Principal in charge of this engagement, and 
oversee all aspects of the scope of work. Jim would be able to present our work at meetings, 
provide strategic and expert advice based on findings and recommendations, and ensure 
quality control on our deliverables. Jim has served in this capacity on all MSR assignments at 
RSG, including the Riverside LAFCO 28 Cities MSR, LA LAFCO Consolidated Fire Protection 
District MSR, several city MSRs for LA LAFCO, and MSR and SOI updates for 13 cities and 12 
special districts for Orange County LAFCO. Jim has been an active member of CALAFCO, where 
he has shared his experience on annexations, special studies, and incorporation assignments 
at workshops and on their Legislative Committee. 

Brandon Fender, Senior Associate, will handle day-to-day project management, coordination 
with LAFCO staff, preparation of the fiscal analysis, draft reports, and presentation of findings. 
Brandon specializes in real estate feasibility, economic and fiscal impact analyses, and housing 
program and policy development. He has prepared financial feasibility analyses for office, life 
science, industrial, and retail projects, contributing to over $137 million in community benefits, 
and conducted inclusionary housing in-lieu fee studies for cities like Chula Vista and Jurupa 
Valley. Brandon has also supported LAFCO projects, including Countywide Fire and EMS MSRs 
in Siskiyou and Sutter Counties, a reorganization feasibility study for the Beckwourth Peak 
FPD, and the San Bernardino County Service Area 79 Reorganization Fiscal Impact Analysis. 
Additionally, he developed a Municipal Service Review methodology for LA LAFCO and 
reviewed Burbank Housing Corporation’s long-term liabilities, providing debt restructuring 
recommendations to preserve affordable housing for future generations. 

Carol Ieromnimon, Associate, will provide support in preparing the service cost analysis, fiscal 
forecasting, and draft report. Carol joined the RSG team in 2024 after working at San Diego 
LAFCO and brought with her a background in local government and economic development. 
Her experience in the intricacies of municipal boundary adjustments, research and analysis, as 
well as project management empowers her to further facilitate the efficient growth and 
prosperity of communities across the state. She is currently engaged in an Alameda LAFCO 
Community Services MSR, a Placer LAFCO South Placer Municipal Utility District MSR and SOI 
Update, a Sutter LAFCO Fire and Emergency Medical Service MSR, and supporting 
reorganization services for the Town of Yountville. While at San Diego LAFCO, she assisted in 
the detachment and annexation of the Rainbow Municipal Water District and Fallbrook Public 
Utility District from the San Diego County Water Authority.  

238



JIM SIMON 
Principal & President 
 
714.316.2120 
jsimon@rsgsolutions.com 

 

 
 rsgsolutions.com  |  San Diego • Los Angeles • Oakland  |  714.541.4585 

PROFILE 
“With determination and 
imagination, I serve myself and 
others to discover our capacity 
for what is possible by 
designing solutions for a 
complex world so we can 
cherish and nurture our 
communities.” 

OUT & ABOUT 
California Association for Local 
Economic Development (CALED) 40 at 
40 Honoree for contributions to 
California Economic Development 

“Business Retention and Attraction” – 
Advanced Certification Program 
Instructor (CALED) 

“Community Economic Development” 
– Keys Program 

Legislative Committee and 2024 
Conference Committee for California 
Association of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions (CALAFCO) 

International Council of Shopping 
Centers (ICSC) 

Housing California 

Southern California Association of 
Non-Profit Housing (SCANPH) 

San Diego Housing Federation (SDHF) 

Urban Land Institute (ULI) 

ABOUT JIM 

Inspired to improve the Golden State in his work, Jim delivers intelligence, 
innovation, and passion to projects requiring his unparalleled expertise in fiscal 
health, real estate, and economic development. For over 30 years, Jim is proud to 
have led projects that have resulted in the investment of over $10 billion in private 
and public capital, transforming cities and communities across California. As 
President of RSG, Jim is helping to shape the next generation of the firm’s legacy - 
leading RSG’s team of inspired, creative, and insightful consultants that serve over 
100 communities each year. 

EDUCATION 
Jim joined RSG in 1991 and has served as a Principal and shareholder since 2001. He 
received a BA in Business Administration with a concentration in entrepreneurial 
management from California State University, Fullerton. In 2014, Jim was selected 
as an Advisory Board member of the California Association for Local Economic 
Development, where he serves as Co-Chair of CALED’s Economic Development, Real 
Estate and Finance technical committee.  Jim is also an Advisory member of the 
Legislative Committee for the California Association of LAFCOs (CALAFCO), and 
active in other professional organizations including NAIOP, ICSC, NPH, and SCANPH. 

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS 
Oversaw the Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis and led the Cityhood Incorporation 
Resident Workshop for the Town of Mountain House for San Joaquin LAFCO, who 
unanimously approved the incorporation application to advance it to the voters, 
who then approved in March 2024. 

Prepared fiscal impact analysis for several annexations proposals within city SOIs, 
including Martinez, San Carlos, Huntington Beach, and Belmont. 

Prepared the 2020 Municipal Services Review and SOI Update for the Consolidated 
Fire Protection District of Los Angeles County, the largest special district in 
California, for LA LAFCO. 

Led the preparation of a MSR for the 28 cities in Riverside County, provided MSR 
and SOI updates for 13 cities and 12 special districts for Orange County LAFCO, and 
provided MSR and SOI updates for 4 cities for LA LAFCO. 

 

239



BRANDON FENDER 
Senior Associate 
 
714.316.2106 
bfender@rsgsolutions.com 

 

 
 rsgsolutions.com  |  San Diego • Los Angeles • Oakland  |  714.541.4585 

EIFPROFILE 
“I enjoy creating equitable and 
sustainable urban spaces for 
communities. I thrive in a 
challenging environment and 
seek to provide innovative 
solutions.” 

OUT & ABOUT 
Advisory Board member for 
the CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee 

Associate Member of Urban 
Land Institute 

International Council of 
Shopping Centers 

Housing California  

Southern California Association 
of Non-Profit Housing 
(SCANPH) 

San Diego Housing Federation 
(SDHF) 

California Association of Local 
Agency Formation 
Commissions (CALAFCO) 

 

ABOUT BRANDON 
Brandon specializes in providing support in real estate feasibility, economic and 
fiscal impact analyses, and housing administration. He is most engaged when his 
research translates to solutions for local governments and access to healthy and 
safe environments for their citizens. 

In 2014, Brandon became an entrepreneur, starting the Good Beer Company, the 
first brewery and tasting room in Santa Ana. After five years of success from concept 
to business plan and fundraising, to opening a warehouse location, Brandon sold 
the brewery and returned to RSG, with a direct appreciation for the life of the small 
business owner which he applies to his work at the firm. 

EDUCATION 
Brandon initially joined RSG in 2009 while attending the University of California, 
Irvine where he earned a BA in Social Ecology. As a member of numerous project 
teams, Brandon gained experience in housing administration, economic and market 
analyses, housing construction and development, municipal finance, and 
development feasibility. 

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS 
Assisting with a Siskiyou County LAFCO Countywide Fire MSR as well as a Sutter 
County LAFCO Countywide Fire and EMS MSR. 

Assisted Riverside LAFCO with a municipal services review for the 28 cities in 
Riverside County. RSG’s study included a focused review of the most rapidly growing 
region in California, and included thorough municipal service review determinations 
and sphere of influence recommendations. 

Provided detailed fiscal impact analysis and advisory services for the proposed Bolsa 
Chica Annexation by the City of Huntington Beach. The analysis included estimated 
fiscal impacts associated with existing environmental issues in the Bolsa Chica 
wetlands, including ongoing oil extraction operations and impending threat of sea-
level rise. 

Developed a methodology for a Municipal Service Review for LA LAFCO that sought 
to inform service and sphere of influence recommendations for a joint sphere of 
influence between the cities of Whittier and La Mirada. 

 

240



CAROL IEROMNIMON 
Associate 
 
714.316.2197 
cieromnimon@rsgsolutions.com 

 

 
 

rsgsolutions.com  |  San Diego • Los Angeles • Oakland  |  714.541.4585 

PROFILE 
“I find success in helping 
others find success. Creating 
meaningful relationships and 
collaborating with others to 
achieve a goal is where most of 
my passion lies. By applying 
my skillsets and experience to 
my role with RSG, I hope to 
further enhance communities 
and empower others.” 

OUT & ABOUT 
Member, CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee 

Housing California 

Southern California Association 
of Non-Profit Housing 
(SCANPH) 

San Diego Housing Federation 
(SDHF) 

California Association of Local 
Agency Formation 
Commissions (CALAFCO) 

 

ABOUT CAROL 
Carol joined the RSG team in 2024 and brought with her a background in local 
government and economic development. Her experience in the intricacies of 
municipal boundary adjustments, research and analysis, grant administration, 
underwriting, public speaking as well as project management empowers her to 
further facilitate the efficient growth and prosperity of communities across the 
state. Her passion in creating meaningful relationships and making a difference in 
the communities she serves propels her to deliver results, provide solutions, and 
embrace new challenges. 

EDUCATION 
Carol holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Sociology from the University of 
California, Riverside as well as a Master’s Degree in Public Administration from 
California State University, Long Beach. Carol served as an Advisory Member to the 
SANDAG Communities Working Group between 2023-2024 and is currently an 
Advisory Member of the Legislative Committee for the California Association of 
LAFCOs (CALAFCO).  

RECENT ENGAGEMENTS 
Conducting a reorganization study of two legal parcels in Napa County on behalf of 
the Town of Yountville. 

Preparing the Municipal Service Review on behalf of Placer County involving the 
South Placer Municipal Utility District. 

Performing a service delivery study for Placer County involving the Placer Vineyards 
Park and Recreation District. 

Assisted in the preparation of the Municipal Service Review on behalf of Alameda 
LAFCO involving the community services districts in Alameda County. 

Assisted with the review of fiscal impacts associated with proposed residential 
development for communities in the City of Costa Mesa and neighborhood of 
Orangethorpe. 

Facilitated the preparation of the Municipal Service Review on behalf of Siskiyou 
LAFCO involving the fire protection service providers in Siskiyou County.  

 

241



 

11 
 

SCOPE OF WORK AND METHODOLOGY  

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING  

RSG understands that the Yolo LAFCO is currently processing a proposal to reorganize the 
Elkhorn Fire Protection District (“Elkhorn FPD”). This reorganization will result in changes to 
the District’s boundaries and governance and will involve contracting out the Elkhorn FPD’s 
services to the cities of West Sacramento and Woodland. RSG will assist with the following 
services: 

• Review the Proposed Plan for Services,  
• Confirm LAFCO’s approach to estimating cities’ service costs as a starting point for 

agency negotiation,  
• Compare the cities’ contract costs to existing service areas to inform contract 

negotiations,  
• Compare Elkhorn FPD revenue to proposed costs to determine any financial shortfall, 
• Work with LAFCO staff to recommend a plan to address any deficits, and 
• Provide reports and presentations to detail RSG’s findings and recommendations.  

 

The Elkhorn FPD currently provides fire suppression and emergency response services to 
approximately 48 square miles of unincorporated territory east of Woodland and north of West 
Sacramento. While the district is geographically extensive, the district’s boundaries include 
approximately 80-90 residents, and two highly trafficked roadways – Interstate 5 and Old River 
Road.  

In July 2022, Yolo LAFCO adopted a Municipal Services Review which recommended the 
dissolution of the Elkhorn FPD and the annexation of its territory into the Springlake FPD (to 
be serviced by the City of Woodland under contract) and County Service Area (“CSA”) 9 to be 
dissolved and annexed into the Elkhorn FPD (to be serviced by the City of West Sacramento). 
The reorganization aims to minimize response times by geographically dividing the territory.  

LAFCO recognizes that volunteer service is not sustainable in the long term, and the Elkhorn 
FPD submitted an application to dissolve the district on September 26, 2024. Pursuant to its 
powers under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act (“CKH Act”), LAFCO is amending the 
application to reorganize the FPD by:  

• Detaching the northern portion of Elkhorn FPD territory and annexing it into the 
Springlake FPD, with the City of Woodland providing fire services via contract,  

• Changing the Elkhorn FPD’s Board of Directors to the Board of Supervisors (LAFCO staff 
recommends that the FPD be kept intact, but limited to the service territory where 
West Sacramento is providing contract services),  

• Adopting a Sphere of Influence Update for Elkhorn FPD to include the CSA 9 territory 
south of West Sacramento, and  

• Dissolving CSA 9 to annex its territory into the Elkhorn FPD with the City of West 
Sacramento Fire Department providing fire services via contract. 

 

RSG’s conceptual scope of work is outlined below, but we are open to discussing and refining 
the scope of work and budget to fit LAFCO staff’s needs. RSG assumed that all meetings, 
except the final Commission meeting, would be virtual. We are open to discussing alternatives 
with LAFCO staff.  

242



 

12 
 

PHASE I: PRELIMINARY FISCAL ANALYSIS 

Phase I consists of several tasks immediately following contract approval, up until the County 
negotiates proposed contracts on behalf of Elkhorn and Springlake FPDs with the cities. We 
understand that the preliminary fiscal analysis and draft memorandum will be utilized during 
the negotiations.  

RSG has broken down our approach for this project phase into five (5) tasks.  

TASK 1: PROJECT INITIATION 

RSG will thoroughly review LAFCO’s Proposed Plan for Services before the kickoff meeting. 
This comprehensive review will ensure that we are well-prepared for the kickoff meeting and 
can provide informed recommendations. 

RSG will initiate the project by scheduling a kickoff meeting with LAFCO staff. During this 
meeting, we will review the Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Proposal, Scope of Services, and 
schedule. The agenda for the kickoff meeting will include: 
 

• Introduction and project overview 
• Review of Proposed Plan for Services 
• Discussion of project objectives and scope 
• Identification of known issues and concerns 
• Review of the updated project schedule 
• Data requests and exchange of contact information 
• Preferred methods and frequency of communications 
• Next steps and action items 

 

RSG’s data request will be discussed during the kickoff meeting, and RSG would follow up with 
an email outlining the data request and any other actions discussed during the kickoff 
meeting. Based on a conversation and email exchange with LAFCO staff, RSG understands 
that LAFCO staff has already begun collecting critical data, which may result in some budget 
savings during the project initiation phase.  

RSG will coordinate with LAFCO staff during the kickoff meeting to determine an appropriate 
frequency for status updates and progress check ins. We are assuming weekly or biweekly 
status updates via email. RSG also anticipates several check in meetings with LAFCO staff to 
ensure alignment and to receive input or feedback on findings and recommendations.  

TASK 2: SERVICE COST ANALYSIS 

RSG will prepare an analysis to determine each the cost per call type for each city, which is 
based on the adopted Book of Fees for each city, historical call data, and a 3-year average of 
Elkhorn FPD’s calls from 2022 to 2024. RSG will also review revenues and expenditures outlined 
in audits and budgets published by each agency. We will estimate the average cost to provide 
service to the Elkhorn FPD district, and each of the Elkhorn FPD Subareas (identified as Area 1 
and 2 in the RFP) per year. Additionally, RSG will compare these costs to the existing service 
areas outside the jurisdiction of each City, such as CSA 9 (Area 3) for the City of West 
Sacramento and Springlake FPD north of CR 29 for the City of Woodland. 

243



 

13 
 

TASK 3: FISCAL FORECAST 

RSG will utilize the conclusions from the cost analysis along with estimated revenues 
generated by each of the Subareas, to prepare a 3-year forecast for the Subareas, the 
Springlake FPD (north of CR 29), and CSA 9.  

Estimated revenues will be based on each agency’s AB8 property tax revenues, and other 
revenues. RSG will review historical property tax revenue growth rates and use Costar to 
understand any known developments in the pre-planning, planning, or construction phases 
within each Subarea that would affect near-term property tax revenue growth.  

TASK 4: DRAFT MEMORANDUM 

RSG will prepare a memorandum outlining the findings, recommendations, analysis, and 
methodology. RSG’s analysis will support clear and concise findings and recommendations 
outlined in the memorandum. RSG’s summary of the analysis and methodology will include a 
review of the data used in the analysis as well as any key assumptions.  

RSG expects LAFCO staff to complete an administrative review of the memorandum. RSG 
would revise the memorandum based on LAFCO’s review.  

TASK 5: REORGANIZATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

LAFCO staff would distribute the draft memorandum to the Reorganization Committee. RSG 
would also virtually attend one Reorganization Committee meeting to present our findings 
and answer questions about the fiscal analysis and forecast. Depending on the project budget 
and if LAFCO prefers an in-person meeting, RSG would be happy to attend the Reorganization 
Committee meeting in-person.  

TASK 6: FINAL MEMORANDUM 

LAFCO staff would compile redline corrections and comments to the draft memorandum. 
After receiving feedback on the draft memorandum, RSG would revise and finalize the 
memorandum for use during negotiations between the County and cities providing contract 
services. RSG would transmit the final memorandum to LAFCO.  

PHASE II: FINAL FISCAL ANALYSIS  

RSG understands that the fiscal analysis and draft memorandum generated under Phase I will 
be used by the County to negotiate proposed contracts on behalf of Elkhorn and Springlake 
FPDs with the cities. Following negotiations, RSG would complete the tasks outlined under 
Phase II, including revising the fiscal analysis based on the results of the negotiations, and 
preparation of a final report.  

TASK 7: REVISED FISCAL FORECAST 

RSG will evaluate the negotiated terms of the reorganization between the County and cities 
to determine if there is sufficient revenue for Elkhorn FPD to cover contract costs. We will 
assess the negotiated terms over a 3-year forecasted period, ensuring that the Elkhorn FPD 
can sustain reasonable reserve levels. If RSG identifies a shortfall, we will determine the total 

244



 

14 
 

impact and work with LAFCO staff to develop financial recommendations to resolve any 
financial deficit. 

RSG would deliver the findings and recommendations of the revised fiscal forecast to LAFCO 
staff for review. Assuming the revised fiscal forecast indicates that the reorganization would 
be financial sustainable, RSG would proceed to the next task. RSG’s budget and scope of work 
assumes that the reorganization will be sustainable, and the schedule outlined in this proposal 
is roughly adhered to.  If fiscal sustainability is not achievable, RSG will work with LAFCO staff 
to determine the next steps.  

TASK 8: DRAFT REPORT 

RSG would expand on and update the narrative content and 3-year financial forecasts 
contained in the Final Memorandum (Task 6) based on the results of the negotiation and 
revised fiscal forecast (Task 7) to create a Draft Report. The Draft Report would include 3-year 
financial forecasts for each affected district.  

We expect LAFCO staff to perform an administrative review of the draft report. RSG will revise 
the draft report as needed prior to distribution. LAFCO staff would circulate the draft report to 
the Reorganization Committee. The parties reviewing the draft report may be determined by 
LAFCO staff. 

TASK 9: FINAL REPORT 

LAFCO staff will transmit comments or questions to RSG. RSG would revise the report based 
on feedback from LAFCO and the Reorganization Committee during this stage and issue a 
Final Report (in PDF and DOCX file types) to LAFCO staff for distribution. RSG would attend the 
Commission Public Hearing considering the reorganization to answer questions raised by the 
Commission or the public.   

245



 

15 
 

TENTATIVE PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Below, RSG has prepared a tentative schedule for completion of the scope of work. The 
timeline assumes contract approval and execution no later than February 27, 2025 as well as 
reasonable timeframes for agency response to requests for information and interviews.  

We have conservatively estimated the anticipated duration for review of documents, 
scheduling of meetings, and the negotiation period. We will work with LAFCO staff to ensure 
that the fiscal analysis is done in an efficient manner.  

Phase/Task Timeline 

Phase I  

Task 1: Project Initiation March 3, 2025 

Task 2: Service Cost Analysis March, 2025 

Task 3: Fiscal Forecast March 2025 

Task 4: Draft Memorandum April 2025 

Task 5: Meeting with Reorganization Committee April 2025 

Task 6: Final Memorandum (may vary based on 
feedback meeting scheduling) April/May 2025 

Phase II 

Assumed Service Contract Negotiation Period May-June 2025 

Task 7: Revised Fiscal Analysis July 2025 

Task 8: Draft Report August 2025 

Task 9: Final Report September 2025 

 

If awarded the contract, RSG would update the schedule in consultation with LAFCO staff and 
discuss at the kickoff meeting.  

  

246



 

16 
 

REFERENCES 

The projects below demonstrate RSG’s recent experience comparable to the services 
requested in this RFP. We encourage you to contact our references or follow up with additional 
questions.  

SUTTER COUNTY COUNTYWIDE FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES MUNICIPAL 
SERVICE REVIEW AND SPHERE OF INFLUENCE UPDATE – SUTTER LAFCO 

In July 2024, RSG and Planwest began working with Sutter County LAFCO to prepare a 
Countywide Fire and EMS MSR and SOI Update. The MSR will include review of five agencies, 
including two fire protection districts, two cities, and Sutter County Fire, which provides fire 
protection and emergency medical services to four County Service Areas. RSG and Planwest’s 
review will also include coordination with Bi-County Ambulance, a pre-hospital medical care 
service provider that is outside the purview of LAFCO. We expect to complete the MSR and SOI 
Update by mid-2025. 

Contact:   Doug Libby, Executive Officer 
Sutter Local Agency Formation Commission 
530.822.3231 / dlibby@yubacity.net 

   1201 Civic Center Blvd, Yuba City, CA 95993 
Date of Services:  July 2024 – Current 

BECKWOURTH PEAK FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FORMATION AND SPECIAL TAX – 
EASTERN PLUMAS COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY SERVICES STUDY GROUP (PLUMAS 
LAFCO, AND PLANWEST PARTNERS, INC.) 

RSG contracted with Planwest Partners, Inc. to prepare a feasibility study for a new fire 
protection district in eastern Plumas County. The City of Portola identified deficiencies in its 
volunteer fire department in 2017, which resulted in stand down orders, a contract for services 
with Beckwourth Fire Protection District, and a planning effort to evaluate the level of fire 
services in the eastern portion of the County. As a result of the planning efforts, four local fire 
service providers began working together to form a consolidated fire district. RSG’s 
contribution to the feasibility study included evaluation of the historical financial performance 
for each of the four agencies, an assessment of staffing, facilities, and equipment needs for the 
new fire district, and the calculations for a new special assessment. In November 2023, voters 
approved the formation of the Beckwourth Peak Fire Protection District and the special 
assessment.  

Contact:  Colette Santsche AICP, Project Manager, Senior Planner and Partner 
 Planwest Partners, Inc. 

1125 16th Street, Suite 200, Arcata, CA 95521 
 707.825.8260 / colettem@planwestpartners.com 

Cary Curtis 
Beckwourth Fire Protection District 
916.747.6584 / cary.curtis77@gmail.com 

Date of Services:  October 2021 – December 2022 
  

247



 

17 
 

FOUR CITIES MUNICIPAL SERVICES REVIEW – LA LAFCO 

RSG was retained in 2022 by the Local Agency Formation Commission for the County of Los 
Angeles to provide Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence updates for the cities of 
Bell, Maywood, South El Monte, and Vernon. Our work has also included interviewing the four 
cities to understand service challenges and opportunities and analyzing budget and audit 
data to make determinations about fiscal health. The LA LAFCO Commission adopted the MSR 
and SOI updates in August 2023.  

Contact:     Paul Novak, Executive Officer 
    80 South Lake Avenue, Pasadena, CA, 91101 
    (626) 204-6500/ pnovak@laLAFCO.org 
Date of Services:  July 2022 – Current  
 
  

248

mailto:pnovak@laLAFCO.org


 

18 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH RFP REQUIREMENTS 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS (EXHIBIT B) 

RSG complies fully with the insurance requirements outlined in Exhibit B of the RFP. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ACCEPTANCE (OR ANY EXCEPTIONS) TO THE DRAFT CONTRACT 
(EXHIBIT C) 

RSG acknowledges acceptance of the draft contract in Exhibit C and has no exceptions. 
 
  

249



 

19 
 

COST PROPOSAL 

The assignment would be billed on a time and materials basis, with a grand total not-to-exceed 
fee of $19,700 based on the approach to scope and billing policies herein. Additional services 
outside the scope of work may require a contract amendment.  

 

Part Budget 

Phase I: Project initiation, service cost analysis, 
fiscal forecasts, draft memorandum, meetings, 
and final memorandum  

$14,300 

Part 2 – Revised fiscal analysis, draft report, 
final report $5,400 

GRAND TOTAL $19,700 

 

RSG BILLING RATES & FEE SCHEDULE 

Our Billing Rates are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RSG does not charge clients for travel or mileage (except direct costs related to field 
work/surveys), parking, standard telephone/fax expenses, general postage, or incidental 
copies. However, we do charge for messenger services, overnight shipping/express mail costs 
and teleconferencing services. We also charge for copies of reports, documents, notices, and 
support material more than five (5) copies. We bill reimbursable costs at the actual expense 
plus a 10% surcharge. 

RSG issues monthly invoices payable upon receipt, unless otherwise agreed upon in advance. 
Invoices identify tasks completed to date, hours expended and the hourly rate. 

 

Principal $305 
Director   $295 
Senior Associate $250 
Associate $205 
Senior Analyst $185 
Analyst $170 
Research Assistant   $145 
Technician   $120 
Clerical $100 
Reimbursable Expenses Cost plus 10% 

250



  
  Regular    Regular    16. 16.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to the Commission to serve one-year terms, beginning March 1, 2025, and ending
February 1, 2026

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to the Commission to serve one-year terms, beginning March 1, 2025, and ending
February 1, 2026.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
Each year, the members of the Commission elect a Chair and Vice Chair to serve a one-year term as stated in the
Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures and consistent with state law. The current Chair is City Member
Bill Biasi and the current Vice Chair is City Member Gloria Partida.

AttachmentsAttachments
No file(s) attached.

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 02/12/2025 03:00 PM
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 02/12/2025 11:09 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/12/2025

251



252



  
  Executive Officer Report    Executive Officer Report    17. 17.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 02/27/2025  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update of staff activity for the
month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request that action be taken on any item listed.  

     a.  CALAFCO Update 

     b.  CALAFCO Legislative Summary 

     c.  Long Range Planning Calendar

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT b-CALAFCO Legislative Summary-Feb 27, 2025
ATT c-02.27.2025 Long Range Planning Calendar

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 02/12/2025 10:50 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/12/2025

253



254



1 

CALAFCO Legislative Summary 
LAFCo Meeting February 27, 2025 

The legislature reconvened on January 6 and the last day for new legislation to be introduced is February 
21. The session gets busier in May with the revised State Budget and committee meetings.

As of February 20, 2025, CALAFCO is only tracking one bill removing the sunset date for teleconferencing 
procedures, thus extending them indefinitely (see attached log). But more bills will certainly be added this 
spring.  

The CALAFCO Legislative Committee is meeting again and considering what it will include in its omnibus 
bill. Of note, Yolo LAFCo submitted a recommendation to add a code reference for protest hearing noticing 
requirements we discovered last year with the PIRMI and Sports Park Reorganization for the City of 
Woodland.  

Please see the attached CALAFCO List of Current Bills dated 2/20/2025. 

Item 17-ATT b

255



�����������	�
������	����������������� ������ ����� !��"#$%#�&'����(���)��	��*�+��
,-��-*��,���+�	���,
�����,��.����� ����	�/�0	+�1234567896:�;<;=<>?>@���ABCD���EFG� H�	
I�,�I+�;<;=<>?>@� J	-	��+�><;?<>?>@KL9M94496�35�N5OP�52�QP�RSTP� �
,-	�
�+�><;?<>?>@KUP�QP�RSTP� V9WX Y
��,Z [\W8]̂ [̂554 V9WX _5̂\8̀ [\W8]̂ [̂554 N52MPN528P a245̂9̂6 T93596 Nb]c39496;W3�d57W9 >26�d57W9� J�))-Z+�eb9�L]̂cb�fP�g45h2�U83�]73b54\i9W�3b9�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�5M�]�̂58]̂�]j928̀�35�7W9�39̂9852M94928\2jm]W�Wc98\M\96m�]26�49n7\49W�]�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�5M�]�̂58]̂�]j928̀�3b]3�9̂983W�35�7W9�39̂9852M94928\2j�35�85Oĉ`h\3b�Wc98\M\96�49n7\49O923Wm�\28̂76\2j�3b]3�3b9�̂58]̂�]j928̀�c5W3�]j926]W�]3�]̂�̂39̂9852M949289�̂58]3\52Wm\6923\M̀�9]8b�39̂9852M949289�̂58]3\52�\2�3b9�253\89�]26�]j926]�5M�3b9�O993\2j�54�c458996\2jm�]26�b]k9�9]8b39̂9852M949289�̂58]3\52�l9�]889WW\l̂9�35�3b9�c7l̂\8P�N744923�̂]hm�723\̂�o]27]4̀�;m�>?>=m�]73b54\i9W�3b99̂j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�5M�]�̂58]̂�]j928̀�35�7W9�]̂3942]3\k9�39̂9852M94928\2j�\Mm�674\2j�3b9�39̂9852M949289�O993\2jm�]39̂]W3�]�n7547O�5M�3b9�O9Ol94W�5M�3b9�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�c]43\8\c]39W�\2�c94W52�M45O�]�W\2j7̂]4�cb̀W\8]̂�̂58]3\528̂9]4̂̀ �\6923\M\96�52�3b9�]j926]�3b]3�\W�5c92�35�3b9�c7l̂\8�]26�W\37]396�h\3b\2�3b9�l5726]4\9W�5M�3b9�3944\354̀5k94�hb\8b�3b9�̂58]̂�]j928̀�9p948\W9W�q74\W6\83\52m�]26�3b9�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�85Oĉ\9W�h\3b�c49W84\l9649n7\49O923WP�N744923�̂]h�49n7\49W�]�O9Ol94�35�W]3\WM̀�Wc98\M\96�49n7\49O923W�35�c]43\8\c]39�\2�]�O993\2j49O539̂ �̀c74W7]23�35�3b9W9�]̂3942]3\k9�39̂9852M94928\2j�c45k\W\52Wm�\28̂76\2j�3b]3�Wc98\M\96�8\487OW3]289W]cĉ P̀�N744923�̂]h�9W3]l̂\Wb9W�̂\O\3W�52�3b9�27Ol94�5M�O993\2jW�]�O9Ol94�O]̀�c]43\8\c]39�\2�W5̂9̂ �̀l̀39̂9852M949289�M45O�]�49O539�̂58]3\52�c74W7]23�35�3b9W9�]̂3942]3\k9�39̂9852M94928\2j�c45k\W\52Wm�\28̂76\2jc45b\l\3\2j�W78b�c]43\8\c]3\52�M54�O549�3b]2�>�O993\2jW�c94�̀9]4�\M�3b9�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�49j7̂]4̂̀ �O993W�5289c94�O523b�54�̂9WWP�eb\W�l\̂̂�h57̂6�49O5k9�3b9�o]27]4̀�;m�>?>=m�6]39�M45O�3b5W9�c45k\W\52Wm�3b949l̀�9p3926\2j3b9�]̂3942]3\k9�39̂9852M94928\2j�c45896749W�\269M\2\39̂ P̀� r��	
Z+����o]2P�;=�L9]6�M\4W3�3\O9P�e5�c4\23Po]2P�;s�[45O�c4\2394P�f]̀�l9�b9]46�\2�85OO\3399�[9l47]4̀�;=P[9lP�;?�L9M94496�35�N5OP�52�QP�RSTP� � � Y
��	�
�� � � � �� � � t]38b� � � � �� � ���������
))��	�+��N744923�̂]h�9W3]l̂\Wb9W�̂\O\3W�52�3b9�27Ol94�5M�O993\2jW�]�O9Ol94�O]̀�c]43\8\c]39\2�W5̂9̂ �̀l̀�39̂9852M949289�M45O�]�49O539�̂58]3\52�c74W7]23�35�3b9W9�]̂3942]3\k9�39̂9852M94928\2j�c45k\W\52Wm\28̂76\2j�c45b\l\3\2j�W78b�c]43\8\c]3\52�M54�O549�3b]2�>�O993\2jW�c94�̀9]4�\M�3b9�̂9j\Ŵ]3\k9�l56̀�49j7̂]4̂̀O993W�5289�c94�O523b�54�̂9WWP�UW�\234567896m�3b\W�l\̂̂�h57̂6�49W8\26�R5k942O923�N569�u983\52�u983\52�@vw@xmhb\8b�Wc9]XW�35�39̂9852M94928\2j�49n7\49O923WP�13�h57̂6�]̂W5�W34\X9�49M949289W�35�9MM983\k9�6]39W�5M�o]27]4̀�;m>?>=�52�53b94�W983\52WP/
	-��y�-����+�z/
	-��/-,{��*��
)�+�z|}|~}|~|����~��~����
256



Long Range Meeting Calendar – Tentative Items 

February 27, 2025 

Meeting Date Tentative Agenda Items 
Mar 2025 • LAFCo Audit FYs 2022, 2023, and 2024

• Consider and adopt LAFCo Annual Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2025/26

Apr 2025 • Adopt Draft LAFCo Budget for FY2025/26

• FY 24/25 Q3 Financial Update

May 2025 • Adopt Final LAFCo Budget for FY2025/26

• Cemetery Services MSR/SOI (6 districts) (placeholder)

Jun 2025 • Sac-Yolo Port District MSR/SOI (placeholder)

• EO Performance Evaluation

Jul 2025 • YECA JPA Service Review (dispatch agency) (placeholder)

• CALAFCO Board Recruitment

• CALAFCO Achievement Awards

Sep 2025 • Elkhorn FPD Reorganization (LAFCo No. 24-02)

• YCPARMIA JPA Service Review (risk management pool) (placeholder)

• FY 24/25 Q4 Financial Update

New Applications Received Since Last Meeting 

Date Received Application Name 
None 

Item 17-ATT c

257


	Agenda
	Item 5-LAFCo Minutes 10/31/24
	ATT-Minutes 10.31.24

	Item 6-Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 First Quarter Financial Update
	ATT A-FY24-25 Q1 Budget Status Summary
	ATT B-FY24-25 Q1 Transactions

	Item 7-Review and file Fiscal Year 2024/25 Second Quarter Financial Update
	ATT A-FY24-25 Q2 Budget Status Summary
	ATT B FY24-25 Q2 Transactions

	Item 8-Consider an update to the Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures to amend Section 2.5 Political Contribution Disclosure in compliance with SB-1243
	Item 9-Consider an amendment to the Yolo LAFCo Project Policies to add a new Section 3.4 requiring an annexation agreement of property owners that receive out of area services.
	ATT A-Annexation Agreement Form

	Item10-MOU with County for Shared Staffing Services
	ATT A-LAFCo-County MOU No. 2025-02 Re Shared Staffing

	Item 11-MOU with County for Office Space/Shared Services
	ATT A-LAFCo-County MOU No. 2025-03 Re Office Space and Admin Services

	Item 12-2024 Website Transparency Scorecard
	ATT A-2024 Web Transparency Scorecard Report
	ATT A-Scorecard Summaries by Agency Type-Dec2024
	ATT B-Detailed Scorecards for Each Agency-Dec2024
	ATT C-Adopted Yolo Local Govt Accountability and Transparency Statement


	Item 13-Correspondence
	ATT A-CHW Fall 2024 Newsletter
	ATT B-CHW Winter 2025 Newsletter
	ATT C-LAFCo DEIR Comments - Village Farms Davis Feb 20, 2025

	Item 14-Determine MSR/SOI for City of Woodland is not needed
	ATT A-City of Woodland MSR-SOI Checklist LAFCo 24-03 Feb 27, 2025

	Item 15-AGR w/RSG Inc. for Elkhorn FPD Reorg Fiscal Analysis
	ATT A-Contract No. 2025-01 RSG Feb 27, 2025

	Item 16-Elect Chair & Vice Chair
	Item 17-EO Report
	ATT b-CALAFCO Legislative Summary-Feb 27, 2025
	ATT c-02.27.2025 Long Range Planning Calendar




